
 
 555 COUNTY CENTER, 5TH FLOOR, REDWOOD CITY, CA 94063   PHONE: 650.599.1406   FAX: 650.361.8227 

C/CAG 
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

OF SAN MATEO COUNTY 
 

Atherton ● Belmont ● Brisbane ● Burlingame ● Colma ● Daly City ● East Palo Alto ● Foster City ● Half Moon Bay ● Hillsborough ● Menlo Park  
 Millbrae ● Pacifica ● Portola Valley ● Redwood City ● San Bruno ● San Carlos ● San Mateo ● San Mateo County ● South San Francisco ● Woodside 

 

C/CAG FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
 

 

Date:          Wednesday, May 22, 2024 
 
Time:         12:00 p.m. 
 
Location:   San Mateo City Hall 
                   Conference Room C 
                   300 W. 20th Ave 

San Mateo, CA 94403 

 

Join by Zoom Webinar:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89349437177?pwd
=ZGlZT1VUTEFEakltSk85ZWlRdGNhZz09 
 
Zoom Webinar ID: 893 4943 7177 
 
Password:  875833 
 
Join by Phone: (669) 900-6833 
 

 
***HYBRID MEETING - IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEOCONFERENCE*** 

 
This meeting of the C/CAG Finance Committee will be held in person and by teleconference pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953(e). Members of the public will be able to participate in the meeting remotely 
via the Zoom platform or in person at the location above. The Committee welcomes comments, including 
criticism, about the policies, procedures, programs, or services of the agency, or of the acts or omissions of the 
Board and committees. Speakers shall not disrupt, disturb, or otherwise impede the orderly conduct of a Board 
meeting. For information regarding how to participate in the meeting, either in person or remotely, please refer 
to the instructions at the end of the agenda. 
   

************************************************************************* 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 
Chair Colson No materials 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON RELATED ITEMS NOT ON THE 
AGENDA 

Chair Colson No materials 

Note: Public comment is limited to two minutes per speaker. Please refer to the instructions at the end of this 
agenda for details regarding how to provide public comments. Members of the public who wish to address the 
Committee should complete a speaker’s slip to make a public comment in person or raise their hand in Zoom to 
speak virtually. 

 
3. Approval of minutes from the April 24, 2024 meeting. (Action) 

 
Wever Page 1-2 

4. Receive copies of monthly investment statements for January, 
February, and March 2024. (Information) 
 

Wever Page 3-21 

5. Review of the quarterly investment report and recommend 
modifications to the C/CAG investment portfolio as needed. 
(Action) 
 
 

Charpentier/Harris Page 22-26 



 
 555 COUNTY CENTER, 5TH FLOOR, REDWOOD CITY, CA 94063   PHONE: 650.599.1406   FAX: 650.361.8227 

6. Review and recommend Board approval of the draft final C/CAG 
Program Budget and Member Fees for Fiscal Year 2024/25. (Action) 
 

Charpentier Page 27-59 

7. Receive a copy of the Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) Programs as of June 30, 2023 and 
GASB 75 Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. (Action) 
 

Charpentier Page 60-110 

8. Receive a presentation on the C/CAG Strategic Plan development 
process and participate in a discussion on the proposed Agency 
mission, vision, core values, goals, objectives, and performance 
measures. (Information) 

 

Charpentier Page 111-123 

9. Discussion on changing the Committee meeting time. (Possible 
Action) 

Charpentier Page 124 

 
ADJOURN 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting will be on August 21, 2024. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 PUBLIC NOTICING:  All notices of C/CAG regular Board meetings, standing committee meetings, and special meetings 

will be posted at the San Mateo County Court Yard, 555 County Center, Redwood City, CA, and on C/CAG’s website at: 
http://www.ccag.ca.gov. 
 

 PUBLIC RECORDS:  Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular Finance Committee 
meeting, standing committee meeting, or special meeting are available for public inspection.  Those public records that are 
distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular Finance Committee meeting are available for public inspection at the same time 
they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members, of the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee has 
designated the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG), located at 555 County Center, 5th 
Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose of making public records available for inspection.  Such public records are 
also available on C/CAG’s website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov. Please note that C/CAG’s office is temporarily closed to the 
public; please contact Kim Wever at (650) 599-1451 to arrange for inspection of public records.  

  
 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DURING VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETINGS: Persons with disabilities who require 

auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting should contact Kim Wever at (650) 599-1451, five working days prior 
to the meeting date. 

 
 ADA REQUESTS: Persons with disabilities who require auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting should contact 

Kim Wever at (650) 599-1451 or kwever@smcgov.org by 10:00 a.m. prior to the meeting date. 
 
 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DURING HYBRID MEETINGS: During hybrid meetings of the Finance Committee, 

members of the public may address the Committee as follows: 
 
 Written comments should be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the following instructions carefully: 
1. Your written comment should be emailed to kwever@smcgov.org. 
2. Your email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item 

that is not on the agenda. 
3. Members of the public are limited to one comment per agenda item. 
4. The length of the emailed comment should be commensurate with the two minutes customarily allowed for verbal comments, 

which is approximately 250-300 words. 
5. If your emailed comment is received at least 2 hours prior to the meeting, it will be provided to the C/CAG Finance Committee 

members and made publicly available on the C/CAG website along with the agenda. We cannot guarantee that emails received 
less than 2 hours before the meeting will be made publicly available on the C/CAG website prior to the meeting, but such 
emails will be included in the administrative record of the meeting. 

 
Spoken comments will be accepted during the meeting in person and through Zoom. Public comments will be taken first by 



 
 555 COUNTY CENTER, 5TH FLOOR, REDWOOD CITY, CA 94063   PHONE: 650.599.1406   FAX: 650.361.8227 

speakers in person, followed by via Zoom. Please read the following instructions carefully: 
 
*In-person participation: 
1. If you wish to speak to the C/CAG Finance Committee, please fill out a speaker’s slip located on the 2nd floor auditorium side 

table against the wall. If you have anything that you wish distributed to the Committee and included in the official record, 
please hand it to the C/CAG staff who will distribute the information to the Committee members and staff. 

 
*Remote participation: 
 Spoken comments will be accepted during the meeting through Zoom. Please read the following instructions carefully: 
1. The C/CAG Finance Committee meeting may be accessed through Zoom at the online location indicated at the top of this 

agenda. 
2. You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting using an internet browser. If using your browser, make sure you 

are using a current, up-to-date browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+, Microsoft Edge 12+, Safari 7+. Certain functionality may 
be disabled in older browsers including Internet Explorer. 

3. You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify yourself by your name as this will be 
visible online and will be used to notify you that it is your turn to speak. 

4. When C/CAG Staff or Co-Chairs call for the item on which you wish to speak, click on “raise hand.” Staff will activate and 
unmute speakers in turn. Speakers will be notified shortly before they are called on to speak.  If calling in via phone, press *9 
to raise your hand and when called upon press *6 to unmute. 

5. When called, please limit your remarks to the time allotted. 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, please contact Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org or 
Kim Wever at kwever@smcgov.org  



ITEM 3 
 

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
April 24, 2024 

 
In compliance with the provisions of the Government Code section 54953(e), this meeting of the 
C/CAG Finance Committee was be held in person and by teleconference. 
 
Committee Members Attending In-Person:  
Carlos Romero (City of East Palo Alto) 
Donna Colson (City of Burlingame)  
Adam Rak (City of San Carlos) 
Michael Salazar (City of San Bruno) 
 
Guests or Staff Attending In-Person: 
Sean Charpentier, Kaki Cheung, Kim Wever  – C/CAG Staff 
Drew Corbett – DKG Consultants  
 
Guests or Staff Attending Remotely: 
Paul Harris – City of San Carlos Finance Staff 
 
1. Call to order/Roll Call 
 
At 12:07 P.M. Chair Colson called the Finance Committee meeting to order.  
 
2. Public comment on related items not on the agenda. 
 
There were no public comments regarding items not on the agenda. 
 
3. Approval of minutes from the November 29, 2023 and February 14, 2024 meetings. 

(Action) 
 
Motion – To approve the minutes from the November 29, 2023 and February 14, 2024 Finance 
Committee meetings, Rak/ Romero.  All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed. 
 
4. Review the initial draft, assumptions, and input on the C/CAG Fiscal Year 2024/25 

Program Budget and Member Fees. (Information) 
 
C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier introduced Drew Corbett, Principal at DKG 
Consultants who assisted C/CAG on developing the agency budget. Sean and Drew presented on 
the FYE2024 accomplishments and FYE2025 goals. Drew provided budget highlights and next 
steps. Drew explained the large variance in the FYE2025 budget is due to timing of receiving 
certain revenues and then distributing the funds the following fiscal year, such as the Northern 
Cities Smart Corridor project.  
 
C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier added that there may be a need for a budget 
amendment for the possible $60M NOAA grant in the Fall 2024. Chair Colson inquired about 

1



 

 
 

the coordination with OneShoreline on this grant. Sean confirmed that they incorporated 
elements from OneShoreline and they did also provide a letter of support.  
 
Member Romero requested to have the presentation available online before the meeting. Staff 
confirmed they can upload future presentations before and will also upload and email this 
presentation after this meeting.  
 
5. Adjournment.  

 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 12:52 P.M.  

 

2



ITEM 4 

 C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To:  C/CAG Finance Committee  
 
From:  Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
   
Subject: Receive copies of monthly investment statements for January, February, and 

March 2024 
 

(For further information contact Kim Wever at kwever@smcgov.org) 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee receives copies of monthly investment statements for 
January, February, and March 2024. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
C/CAG funds are held by the C/CAG Financial Agent (City of San Carlos) 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current C/CAG Investment Policy states that the C/CAG Finance Committee shall analyze 
investment portfolio at least every quarter. Attached are the monthly statements for C/CAG 
investment funds for the quarter ending on March 31, 2024. 
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
C/CAG’s Investment Policy supports investment in authorized issuers that display adherence to 
strong environmental, social and governance (ESG) principles, including but not limited to, 
environmental sustainability, social and economic justice, and good corporate governance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. C/CAG’s Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows, LAIF, and SMC Investment Fund 
Summary for January, February, and March 2024. 

2. LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending March 31, 2024. 
3. San Mateo County Treasurer’s Office Pool Participants Distribution March 31, 2024. 
4. County Summary of Pool Earnings for January, February, and March 2024. 
5. Overview of Market and Investment Statements Quarter Ending March 31, 2024. 

3



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended March 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Jan 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 2,175,784                       

Measure M DMV 1,049,969                        
Express Lane JPA San Mateo County Transportation Authority 64,405                             
Energy Watch PG&E 74,825                             
Bay Area Air Quality Bay Area Air Quality Management District 547,476                           
All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 11,931                             

Total Jan Cash Inflow  1,748,605                        

Smart Corridor Kimley-Horn & Assoc, Aegis ITS, Iteris Inc, Redwood City (16,899)                            

Congestion Relief & Management
Kittelson & Associates, Gray Bowen Scott, Mariposa Planning, Redwood City, 
Alameda County Transportation, Shaw/Yoder/Antwih (96,610)                            

Bay Area Air Quality San Mateo County
Express Lane JPA Redwood City (13,818)                            
NPDES Ken Brown, Redwood City (11,158)                            
Energy Watch San Mateo County, Redwood City (2,159)                              

Measure M
San Mateo, Hillsborough, East Palo Alto, Pacifica, South San Francisco, 
Redwood City, Brisbane, EOA Inc, San Mateo County (907,534)                          

All other payments (7) various (38,138)                            

Transfer San Mateo County Pool (300,000)                          

Transfer LAIF (1,000,000)                      

Total Jan Cash Outflow  (2,386,317)                      
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) (637,712)                         

Ending book balance (Checking) 1,538,072                       

January Cash Flow

4



2/13/24, 11:48 AM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

February 13, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

January 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

1/10/2024 1/9/2024 RD 1744703 1705115 PAUL HARRIS 1,000,000.00
1/12/2024 1/11/2024 QRD 1745616 N/A SYSTEM 167,071.41

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 1,167,071.41  Beginning Balance: 15,478,855.25

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 16,645,926.66

January LAIF Statement

5

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer  Statement Ending Date:  1/31/2024

555 County Center Account: 03412

Redwood City, 94063

(650) 599‐1251 or (650) 599‐7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

12/31/2023 Balance brought forward       $10,341,683.59

1/1/2024 FY 23‐24 Interest Allocation Q2 $96,144.53 $10,437,828.12

1/29/2024 Wire In $300,000.00 $10,737,828.12

1/31/2024 Ending Balance  $10,737,828.12

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments ‐ 03412

January County Pool Statement

6



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended March 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Feb 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 1,538,072                       

Member Contributions Menlo Park 13,225                             

NPDES San Mateo County 155,417                           

Congestion Relief & Management Caltrans, Menlo Park, Metropolitan Transportation Commission 1,378,196                        
Energy Watch PG&E 33,875                             
Measure M DMV, Caltrans - District 4 570,134                           
Express Lane JPA San Mateo County Transportation Authority 29,584                             
All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 10,768                             

Total Feb Cash Inflow  2,191,200                        

Measure M
EOA Inc., Daly City, Woodside Town, Kaki Cheung, Burlingame City, Redwood 
City, San Mateo County

(197,924)                          

Congestion Relief & Mgmt

California Association, Gray Bowen Scott, Kittelson & Associates, Mariposa 
Planning, Redwood City, San Mateo County, San Mateo Daily Journal, TKJM 
Transportation

(731,541)                          

Express Lane JPA Redwood City, San Mateo County (55,692)                            
NPDES EOA Inc., San Mateo, Redwood City, BAWSCA (83,641)                            
Energy Watch Redwood City (2,748)                              

Smart Corridor Kimley-Horn & Assoc., Redwood City, Aegis ITS, South San Francisco (38,867)                            

Bay Area Air Quality Commute.org, San Mateo County, Half Moon Bay City (105,464)                          

All other payments (15) various (27,692)                            

Total Feb Cash Outflow  (1,243,568)                      
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) 947,631                           

Ending book balance (Checking) 2,485,704                       

February Cash Flow

7



3/6/24, 5:11 PM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

March 06, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

February 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00  Beginning Balance: 16,645,926.66

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 16,645,926.66

February LAIF Statement

8

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer Statement Ending Date: 2/29/2024
555 County Center Account: 03412
Redwood City, 94063
(650) 599-1251 or (650) 599-7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

1/31/2024 Balance brought forward    $10,737,828.12

2/29/2024 Ending Balance $10,737,828.12

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments - 03412

February County Pool Statement

9



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended March 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Mar 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 2,485,704                       

Measure M DMV 653,577                           
NPDES San Mateo County 83,744                             
Energy Watch PG&E 40,596                             

All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 8,096                               

Transfer San Mateo County Pool, LAIF

Total Mar Cash Inflow  786,013                           

Measure M
Samtrans, Belmont, Foster City, Millbrae, San Bruno, San Carlos, Menlo Park, 
San Mateo County, EOA Inc, Redwood City (206,940)                          

Congestion Relief & Management
California Association, Mariposa Planning, Redwood City, San Mateo County, 
Solano Transportation, Ken Brown, Fehr & Peers (206,008)                          

NPDES
Clear Creek Solution, Global Philantrophy, San Mateo County, EOA Inc, Ken 
Brown, Redwood City, Shaw/Yoder/Antwih (208,151)                          

Bay Area Air Quality San Mateo County (1,201)                              
Express Lane JPA Redwood City, San Mateo County (26,145)                            

Smart Corridor Aegis Its, Iteris Inc, Kimley-Horn & Associates Inc, Redwood City (41,316)                            

Energy Watch Redwood City, San Mateo County (107,485)                          
All other payments (12) various (26,925)                            

Transfer San Mateo County Pool (530,000)                          

Transfer LAIF (270,000)                          

Total Mar Cash Outflow  (1,624,170)                      

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) (838,157)                         
Ending book balance (Checking) 1,647,547                       

March Cash Flow

10



4/11/24, 9:51 AM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

April 11, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

March 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

3/20/2024 3/19/2024 RD 1749134 N/A PAUL HARRIS 270,000.00

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 270,000.00  Beginning Balance: 16,645,926.66

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 16,915,926.66

March LAIF Statement

11

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer Statement Ending Date: 3/31/2024
555 County Center Account: 03412
Redwood City, 94063
(650) 599-1251 or (650) 599-7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

2/29/2024 Balance brought forward    $10,737,828.12

3/19/2024 Wire In $530,000.00 $11,267,828.12

3/31/2024 Ending Balance $11,267,828.12

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments - 03412

March County Pool Statement

12



April 4.272
March 4.232

February 4.122
January 4.012

December 3.929
November 3.843

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 4.30

 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00011755619077389

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.27

PMIA Average Life(1): 226

 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.994191267

PMIA Daily(1): 4.22

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 4.12

Treasuries
58.24%

Agencies
22.16%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

9.23%

Time 
Deposits

3.25%

Commercial
Paper
6.47%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.43%

Loans
0.22%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that 
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 5/8/24

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 03/31/24

Chart does not include $2,005,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

3/31/24
$156.5 billion

13

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf
kwever
Highlight

kwever
Highlight



����������	
�������	
���������	����������������������������� !"#$!��%&'()*�+,,!-'. !�/.!)01� 234 567 839 :;9 83< 2=4 2=> :=? @6; ABC DEF G6BHIJJ KLMMN KLOON KLOON KLOKN KLMON KLPKN KLQRN OLNKN OLNQN OLNQN OLOSN OLMRNHIJT OLQUN MLNKN MLSVN MLUMN MLRPO MLKOQ MLOKU MLPUS MLPMS PLSSN PLUPO PLMOQHIJI PLMMM PLQNV PLPUN QLNPU QLNVO QLUUV QLUNU QLKUP QLUKQ QLPSV SNLUURSNLUSPHITWSNLQPNSSLUKSSSLVQNSSLVPNSULNSMSSLMQPSNLUNO QLPMN QLQVK SNLNKOSNLVUOSNLQOSHITHSNLQPMSSLOPOSSLSRNSSLVMKSULSMQSSLVVUSULRVOSULPVVSULNKQSULRQMSSLPPMSSLVPVHITXSSLOPRSULNVVSSLPRKSSLMMRSULUMNSSLQQVSULURKSSLQNQSSLSKSSSLSSSSNLMNVSNLVNSHITYSNLUKS QLPPM QLOPP QLPOP QLKUM QLONN QLPMQ SNLNMOSNLUNUSNLSPUSNLSOVSNLUUMHITZSNLRSUSNLUPNSNLRPUSNLKQVSNLPVRSSLSSQSSLRKKSSLKKMSSLKQMSSLOPSSSLVMVSSLNUVHIT[SNLKMQSNLUPQSNLSSPSNLNUKSNLSPNQLMVR QLOKO QLVSM QLKMU QLVPU QLVPP QLRMSHIT\ QLUKU QLNQN PLQKP PLOUS PLROQ PLUUK PLSVS MLPVV MLKSU MLKPO MLVRU MLVRQHITJ MLROK MLSKM MLUNK MLNVV MLUQV MLUPQ MLVOV MLKOU MLMSU MLPUK PLSUS PLNMSHITT PLNMP PLNKN MLQVK MLQVN MLPSK MLQUQ PLNPQ PLUVK PLRVS PLRQM PLVOM PLKORHITI PLOQP PLMMN PLPMN PLQQU QLUUM QLUNV QLNKO PLPRR PLPNS PLMMS PLOPK PLOVKHIIW PLKMS PLKRP PLKNO PLVQM PLKRS PLKRP PLKSM PLRPU PLRRR PLRUS PLUOQ PLUMQHIIH PLSOV PLNNU MLMMK MLOOO MLRMV MLSOQ MLNQP MLNMU OLPKQ OLMSQ OLKQS OLRSPHIIX OLSUU KLPOR KLOPN KLOQU KLRMQ KLRUR KLURK VLQKP VLMON VLMRN VLOKQ VLOVMHIIY VLOMP VLOVQ VLOUV VLONK VLVUM VLKKV VLVRP VLVMU VLVRN VLRPN VLROK VLRPVHIIZ VLRKQ VLSMO VLUVP VLRRR VLVRV VLOUR VLPUR VLQPQ KLSNO KLUVR KLRPN KLKUPHII[ KLOSU KLMMQ KLQRV KLQON OLNNP KLQQM KLQMU KLQSN KLPRU KLMPV KLPNK KLMVPHII\ KLOQP KLOVR KLKKM KLKRP KLKNU KLKVP KLKPM KLKOO KLONS KLONS KLKQQ KLKMVHIIJ KLKPR KLKMK KLKPN KLOSU KLORV KLOOM KLOMQ KLOQN KLMNM KLMNK KLMSK KLMVVHIIT KLMVU KLMUN KLOPN KLOMU KLOMR KLOMS KLOKU KLOKU KLORQ KLKKM KLVQU KLRMVHIII KLUOK KLUSN KLSRO KLSSQ KLNPO KLNQK KLSMP KLUUK KLUMV KLRQS KLVPV KLORQXWWW KLMON KLPUV KLPKS OLNSV OLSQN OLRVQ OLVVR OLKNK OLKNU OLKSM OLKRP OLKRKXWWH OLRMU OLSOQ KLQMO KLMON KLRUP VLQKP VLORK VLKNU VLUPP RLMPK RLKUO RLUOSXWWX RLNOP ULQOM ULPOS ULPVK ULMVN ULOPM ULMSV ULKQV ULONV ULVPM ULRNS ULUNSXWWY ULSNR SLQVK SLQNV SLPKP SLMOQ SLOQM SLOKR SLORU SLORK SLKQO SLKMU SLKVKXWWZ SLKUP SLVVN SLVMV SLVVK SLVUO SLVOQ SLONV SLOMU SLMMS SLPQN ULNNR ULSRVXWW[ ULUOV ULROP ULKVU ULMUV ULPKO ULQOM RLNPR RLSMQ RLRUV RLVKP RLORO RLPNPXWW\ RLQKK VLNVR VLSVU VLRNK VLKOR VLMNN VLPVQ VLQVO KLNUR KLNQP KLSUK KLSUQXWWJ KLSKO KLSPS KLUSV KLUUU KLUVP KLUKN KLUKK KLUKR KLURS KLSRM VLQOU VLPNSXWWT VLOUN VLSOS RLMMM RLVNN RLNMU ULPQV ULMPM ULMMQ ULMMV ULMNQ ULKOP ULRKRXWWI ULNVO SLPOQ SLPUU SLONM SLKRN SLRMM SLNRK NLQUK NLMKN NLOVO NLOSS NLKOQXWHW NLKKP NLKMM NLKVM NLKPP NLKON NLKUP NLKRS NLKSR NLKNN NLVPN NLVKV NLVOUXWHH NLKRP NLKSU NLKNN NLKPP NLVSR NLVVP NLRPS NLVNP NLRMP NLRPK NLVNS NLRPUXWHX NLRPK NLRPQ NLRPR NLROM NLROR NLRKP NLROR NLRMM NLRVP NLRVN NLRUV NLRUOXWHY NLRNN NLUPO NLUPK NLUOV NLUVK NLUVV NLUOM NLUMS NLUKM NLUOO NLUOR NLUOVXWHZ NLUVV NLURO NLURO NLURR NLUUP NLUUP NLUVV NLUON NLUVO NLUOS NLUOS NLUOMXWH[ NLUOU NLUOO NLUMP NLUPR NLUQN NLUQQ NLRUN NLRRN NLRRM NLRKM NLRMV NLVNNXWH\ NLVVO NLVOM NLKNO NLKUK NLKKU NLKMO NLKPP NLOSV NLORV NLOKV NLOMP NLMSQXWHJ NLMKS NLMMM NLPUS NLPPV NLQUK NLQMP SLNKS SLNPV SLSSS SLSVR SLSMU SLURQXWHT SLRKN SLVSU SLKUV SLOOS SLMKK SLPKV SLQVV SLQQP ULNOR ULSVV ULUNP ULUQSXWHI ULRKK ULRQU ULVRO ULVVK ULVVQ ULVUP ULRMQ ULRVS ULUPN ULSQN ULSNR ULNVRXWXW SLQOM SLQSU SLMPM SLOVP SLROR SLUSM NLQUN NLMPV NLOPK NLOUN NLKMO NLKVNXWXH NLVKP NLVNM NLRKM NLRRQ NLRSK NLUOU NLUUS NLUUS NLUNO NLUNR NLUNR NLUSUXWXX NLURV NLUMP NLROK NLKUR NLOPV NLPOS SLNQN SLUMO SLKSR SLMMU ULNNM ULSMRXWXY ULVUK ULOUV ULPRS ULPMN ULQQR RLSOM RLRNK]RLVRV RLKRV RLOMN RLPVR RLQUQXWXZ VLNSU VLSUU VLURU VLUMU]�̂������

�����_� à���b���������_�c�����_�c�������_�c������dEe6 f8g:�dEe6 hE4C3BCi jke6�G6;EikCi l:g5 m����KnQnUVo�SpVQ��	 �	
���������	�����������������������

���a�pnnqqqL����r�L��L���na��������n���������n���s��s����L��a SnU14

kwever
Rectangle



SAN MATEO COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE POOL PARTICIPANTS DISTRIBUTION
March 31, 2024

7

ATTACHMENT 3

15



5

ATTACHMENT 4

16



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,367,405,000$          1,999,786.56$           Corporate Notes 129,765.43$       
Corporate Notes 848,337,000               2,494,487.60            Federal Agencies 691,073.43         
Federal Agencies 1,951,049,000            5,936,305.16            U.S, Instrumentalities 148,474.27         
U.S, Instrumentalities 399,850,000               1,143,977.02            Commercial Paper 22,475.00           
Asset Backed Securities 32,039,787                 15,663.11                 Asset Backed Securities 15,916.65           
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000                 140,978.90               U S Treasury Notes 380,066.52         

4,635,680,787$          11,731,198.35$         Dreyfus 205,841.87         
US Bank Earnings Credit 25,529.66           
Total Realized Income 1,619,142.83$    

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year
U S Treasury Notes 535,570,000$             553,786.49$             
Corporate Notes 319,630,000               654,503.71               
Federal Agencies 1,444,799,000            4,954,858.52            
U.S, Instrumentalities 438,684,000               1,555,197.20            
Asset Backed Securities -                             -                            
Certificate of Deposit 279,800,000               960,424.50               
Commercial Paper 287,000,000               1,280,785.00            
Dreyfus 67,592,736                 -                            
CAMP 145,000,000               591,267.13               
CALTRUST 50,000,000                 197,438.36               

3,568,075,736$          10,748,260.90$         

Total Accrued Interest 8,203,756,523.37$     22,479,459.25$         

Total Dollar Earnings for February 24,098,602.08$         

8,189,534,132.55$     
24,098,602.08            

(618,141.55)               
23,480,460.53$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.609%

ESTIMATED SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS

February 2024

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.704%

5 17



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,441,605,000$          2,553,678.00$           U S Treasury Notes 320,679.06$       
Corporate Notes 802,582,000 2,616,256.17 Corporate Notes 149,598.44         
Federal Agencies 1,843,549,000            6,354,170.71 Federal Agencies 839,044.72         
U.S, Instrumentalities 359,850,000 1,155,038.82 U.S, Instrumentalities 163,268.79         
Asset Backed Securities 30,706,018 16,964.61 Asset Backed Securities 16,990.25           
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000 161,853.97 Certificate of Deposit 116,888.70         

4,515,292,018$          12,857,962.29$         Commercial Paper 114,991.64         
Dreyfus 187,442.05         
US Bank Earnings Credit 23,247.96           

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year Total Realized Income 1,932,151.61$    
U S Treasury Notes 531,270,000$             540,982.54$             
Corporate Notes 302,610,000 515,110.93 
Federal Agencies 1,502,879,000            5,143,696.25 
U.S, Instrumentalities 528,684,000 1,959,015.78 
U S Treasury Bills 50,000,000 68,520.82 
Certificate of Deposit 266,800,000 1,246,701.94 
Commercial Paper 307,000,000 1,356,628.89 
Dreyfus 34,330,558 - 
CAMP 150,000,000 196,020.55 
CALTRUST 75,000,000 251,904.11 

3,748,573,558$          11,278,581.81$         

Total Accrued Interest 8,263,865,576$          24,136,544.10$         

Total Dollar Earnings for March 26,068,695.71$         

8,121,367,636.18$     
26,068,695.71            

(655,271.99) 
25,413,423.71$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.684%

ESTIMATED SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
March 2024

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.779%

5 18



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,441,605,000.00$     5,914,717.18$           U S Treasury Notes  1,938,123.38$     
Corporate Notes 802,582,000.00          6,461,363.77            Corporate Notes 1,708,873.75       
Federal Agencies 1,843,549,000.00       15,864,395.72           Federal Agencies 8,280,997.26       
U.S, Instrumentalities 359,850,000.00          2,482,587.47            U.S, Instrumentalities 1,269,261.03       
Asset Backed Securities 30,706,018.21            17,089.52                 Asset Backed Securities 84,220.04            
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000.00            383,832.05               Certificate of Deposit 461,693.22          

4,515,292,018$          31,123,985.71$         Commercial Paper 821,425.00          
Dreyfus 1,294,340.74       
CAMP 897,447.11          

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year CALTRUST 106,546.03          
U S Treasury Notes 531,270,000.00$        1,333,085.28$           US Bank Earnings Credit 63,214.66            
Corporate Notes 302,610,000.00          1,239,161.27            Total Realized Income 16,926,142.22$   
Federal Agencies 1,502,879,000.00       12,855,100.21           
U.S, Instrumentalities 528,684,000.00          5,249,070.21            
U S Treasury Bills 50,000,000.00            68,520.82                 
Certificate of Deposit 266,800,000.00          2,954,942.16            
Commercial Paper 307,000,000.00          3,894,362.22            
Dreyfus 34,330,557.76            -                            
CAMP 150,000,000.00          1,449,034.25            
CALTRUST 75,000,000.00            660,397.26               

3,748,573,558$          29,703,673.68$         

Total Accrued Interest 8,263,865,576$          60,827,659.39$         

Total Dollar Earnings for Q3 FY 2023-24 77,753,801.61$         

 8,252,929,359.53$     
77,753,801.61            
(1,954,700.67)            
1,369,357.67              

77,168,458.61$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*

NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.750%

SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
Q3 FISCAL YEAR 2023-24

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.779%

TRUE-UP ADJUSTMENT FROM Q3 FY 2023-24

6 19



ATTACHMENT 5 
 

1 of 2 
 

Capital Markets Summary 1Q 2024 
 
In the first quarter of 2024, the U.S. economy demonstrated 
strong resilience characterized by robust consumer spending, 
declining inflation, and a healthy labor market. The Federal 
Reserve maintained the overnight rate at 5.25% to 5.50%, 
continuing its pause on rate hikes since July 2023. The Fed's 
projection now includes three 0.25% rate cuts for 2024, with 
fewer cuts planned for 2025. As a result, market expectations 
have aligned more closely with the Fed's outlook, leading to 
higher yields in the first quarter due to the Fed's "higher-for-
longer" stance. Equity markets benefited from this strong 
economic backdrop, with the S&P 500 Index rising by 10.6%. 
 
US Treasury Yield Curve & US Treasury Yields Over Time 
 
Inflation readings for January and February were above 
expectations, but overall, CPI continued its downward trend from 
mid-2022 peaks. The U.S. economy grew impressively, with real 
GDP rising 3.4% in Q4 2023, driven by strong consumer 
spending supported by a tight labor market that added over 
800,000 jobs in the first quarter. As the market adjusted to the 
delayed rate cut expectations, U.S. Treasury yields rose 
significantly, impacting longer-duration Treasury indices 
negatively, while shorter-duration indices saw positive returns. 
Investment-grade sectors, especially asset-backed securities, 
performed well due to tightening yield spreads and strong market 
demand. 
   
 

C/CAG Investment Portfolio Performance and Composition 4Q 2023 
Report Created for Finance Committee May 22, 2024 

 
   

Source: PFM (Public Financial Management)  

Source: PFM (Public Financial Management)

20



 

2 of 2 
 

Portfolio Performance 1Q 2024 

The C/CAG investment portfolio returns for the first quarter of 2024 were strong, with a 4.12% return for LAIF and a 3.75% return for the County Pool Fund. Both investment pools continue a 
trend of increasing quarterly effective yields, with LAIF’s effective yield increasing from 3.42% to 4.12% since the first quarter of the fiscal year, and the County Pool Fund’s increasing from 
3.32% to 3.75% during that same time period. The total C/CAG portfolio asset allocation at the end of the first quarter was 60% to LAIF and 40% to the County Pool Fund, which is within the 
stated investment policy allocation ranges.   

LAIF 

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields: 

January 2024 4.012 
February 2024 4.122 
March 2024 4.232 

 

PMIA Quarter to Date: 4.12%                    PMIA Average Life: 226 days or 0.62 years 

Portfolio Composition Pie Chart: 

COPOOL 

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields: 

January 2024 3.945
February 2024 3.609
March 2024 3.684

 

PMIA Quarter to Date: 3.75%                           PMIA Average Duration: 1.52 years 

Portfolio Composition Pie Chart:

Source: PMIA/LAIF Performance Report as of 5/8/2024 

Source: San Mateo County Investment Portfolio Compliance Report March 2024 

21



ITEM 5 

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To: C/CAG Finance Committee 
 
From: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director   
 
Subject: Review of the quarterly investment report and recommend modifications to the 

C/CAG investment portfolio as needed. 
 

(For further information contact Kim Wever at kwever@smcgov.org) 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee review the quarterly investment report and recommend 
modifications to the C/CAG investment portfolio as needed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Potential for higher or lower yields and risk associated with C/CAG investments. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
The Investment Policy applies to all C/CAG funds held by the C/CAG Financial Agent (City of San 
Carlos). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
According to the C/CAG Investment Policy adopted on September 10, 2020: 
 
“The portfolio should be analyzed not less than quarterly by the C/CAG Finance Committee, and 
modified as appropriate periodically as recommended by the Finance Committee and approved by 
the C/CAG Board, to respond to changing circumstances in order to achieve the Safety of Principal.” 
 
The Finance Committee will seek to provide a balance between the various investments and 
maturities in order to give C/CAG the optimum combination of Safety of Principal, necessary 
liquidity, and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.  
 
The LAIF Quarter Ending 3/31/24 net interest earning rate is 4.12% 
San Mateo County Pool Quarter Ending 3/31/24 net interest earning rate is 3.75% 
 
The LAIF’s average life is 226 days, or 0.62 of a year. San Mateo County Pool’s current average 
maturity of the portfolio is 1.67 years with an average duration of 1.52 years.  
 
 
 
 

22



On November 14, 2013 the C/CAG Board approved the following  C/CAG investment portfolio 
parameters:  
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)   50% to 70% 
San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL)  30% to 50% 
 
On December 2, 2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the 
increasing gap between the quarterly interest rate and the net of administrative fees of the LAIF and 
the COPOOL, with LAIF lagging behind the COPOOL. The Finance Committee recommended no 
change to the investment portfolio, but guided staff to target LAIF investments to 60% allocation and 
increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of the interest rate. 
On December 10, 2020, the C/CAG Board approved of no change to the range of limits to the C/CAG 
investment portfolio and approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation for staff to target LAIF 
investments to 60% allocation and increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon 
the changes of the interest rate. 
 
 Investment allocation between LAIF and COPOOL: 

 C/CAG BOARD 

APPROVED IN 2013
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

GUIDANCE ON 12/2/2020 
LAIF 50% to 70% 60% 
COPOOL 30% to 50% 40% 

 
On February , the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and recommend no change 
to portfolio, but guided staff to continue monitoring the interest rates. On December 14, 2023, the 
C/CAG Board approved of no change to the investment portfolio.   
 
The investment portfolio as of March 31, 2024 is as follows: 
 

 
12/31/2023 3/31/2024

Amount Percent Amount Percent 
LAIF $15,478,855 60% $16,915,927 60% 
COPOOL $10,341,684 40% $11,267,828 40% 
Total $25,820,539 100% $28,183,755 100% 

 
Staff do not recommend adjusting the investment allocation at this time.   
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
C/CAG Investment Policy supports investment in authorized issuers that display adherence to strong 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) principles, including but not limited to, environmental 
sustainability, social and economic justice, and good corporate governance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Quarterly Investment Report as of March 31, 2024 from San Carlos 

23



Q3-CCAG Quarterly Investment Report 03-31-2024 Page 1 

C/CAG 
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

Of San Mateo County 
 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
 
 
To: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
From: Paul Harris, Financial Services Manager 
Date: April 30, 2024  
 
SUBJECT:  Quarterly Investment Report as of March 31, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the C/CAG Board review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
The attached investment report (Attachment 1) indicates that on March 31, 2024, funds in the 
amount of $28,183,755 were invested producing a weighted average yield of 3.95%. Of the 
total investment portfolio, 60.0% of funds were invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) and 40.0% in the San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL). On December 2, 
2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the increasing gap 
between the quarterly interest rate, net of administrative fees, of LAIF and the COPOOL, with 
LAIF lagging behind the COPOOL. The Finance Committee recommended no change to the 
investment portfolio, but guided Staff to target LAIF investments to 60% allocation and 
increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of the interest 
rate. These percentages are within the range specified by the C/CAG Board. The portfolio mix 
reflects the Board approved percentage invested in the County Investment Pool and LAIF. 
Accrued interest earnings for this quarter totaled $277,427.  
 
Below is a summary of the changes from the prior quarter: 
 

Qtr Ended 
03/31/2024

Qtr Ended 
12/31/2023

Increase
(Decrease)

Total Portfolio 28,183,755$  25,820,539$  2,363,216$   
Weighted Average Yield 3.95% 3.66% 0.29%
Accrued Interest Earnings 277,427$       263,216$       14,211$         

 
There was an increase of $2.3 million in the portfolio balance at the end of this quarter 
compared to the previous quarter mainly due to the timing of cash receipts offset by expenses 
for Measure M, Bay Area Air Quality, Congestion Relief and Management, and Express Lane. 
The higher quarterly interest rate resulted in higher interest earnings.  
 
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing 
basis to ensure that C/CAG’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
reasonably anticipated operating requirements. As of March 31, 2024, the portfolio contains 
sufficient liquidity to meet the next six months of expected expenditures by C/CAG.  All 
investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy.  Attachment 2 shows a historical 
comparison of the portfolio for the past nine quarters. 

24



Q3-CCAG Quarterly Investment Report 03-31-2024 Page 2 

 
The primary objective of the investment policy of C/CAG remains to be SAFETY OF 
PRINCIPAL.  The permitted investments section of the investment policy also states: 

 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed 
investment pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the 
maximum permitted by California State Law.  A review of the pool/fund is required 
when they are part of the list of authorized investments. 

 
The Investment Advisory Committee has reviewed and approved the attached Investment 
Report. 
 
Attachments 
1 – Investment Portfolio Summary for the Quarter March 31, 2024 
2 – Historical Summary of Investment Portfolio 

25



Attachment 1

Category

Quarterly
Interest 
Rate**

Historical
Book Value

% of 
Portfolio

GASB 31 ADJ
Market Value

Liquid Investments:

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 4.12% 16,915,927        60% 16,817,667        

San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL) 3.68% 11,267,828        40% 11,135,544        

Agency Securities
none

Total -  Investments 3.95% 28,183,755     100% 27,953,211     

GRAND TOTAL OF PORTFOLIO 3.95% 28,183,755$   100% 27,953,211$   

Total Interest Earned This Quarter 277,427          
Total Interest Earned (Loss) Fiscal Year-to-Date 769,263          

Note: CCAG Board approved the following investment portfolio mix at its November 14, 2013 meeting: 
              LAIF        - 50% to 70%
              COPOOL - 30% to 50%

*Difference in value between Historical Value and Market Value may be due to timing of purchase. Investments in the investment pools may have 
been purchased when interest rates were lower or higher than the end date of this report.  As interest rates increase or decrease, the value of the 
investment pools will decrease or increase accordingly.  However, interest rate fluctuations does not have any impact to CCAG's balance in the 
investment pools.  The market values are presented as a reference only. 
**Presented net of administrative fees

CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

SUMMARY OF ALL INVESTMENTS
For Quarter Ending March 31, 2024

On December 2, 2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the increasing gap between 
the quarterly interest rate, net of administrative fees, of LAIF and the COPOOL, with LAIF lagging behind the COPOOL. 
The Finance Committee recommended no change to the investment portfolio, but guided Staff to target LAIF 
investments to 60% allocation and increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of the 
interest rate.

26



 

 C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To:  C/CAG Finance Committee  
 
From:  Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
   
Subject: Review and Recommend Board Approval of the Draft Final C/CAG Program Budget 

and Member Fees for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 

      (For further information or questions contact Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org) 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee review and recommend Board approval of the draft final 
C/CAG Program Budget and Member Fees for Fiscal Year 2024-25. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
In accordance with the proposed C/CAG 2024-25 Program Budget. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
Funding sources for C/CAG include member assessments, cost reimbursement from partners, 
grants, regional/state/federal transportation and other funds, property taxes/fees, Department of 
Motor Vehicle fees, State or Federal earmarks, and interest earnings. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Each year, the C/CAG Board reviews the draft annual budget and member fees in the month of May 
and approves the final version in June.   
 
On April 24, 2024, the Finance Committee reviewed the initial draft and assumptions for the Fiscal 
Year 2024-25 Program Budget and Member Fees. The C/CAG Board reviewed the budget and 
assumptions at the May 9, 2024 meeting. Final C/CAG Fiscal Year 2024-25 Program Budget and 
Fees will be submitted to C/CAG Board for approval on June 13, 2024. 
 
Staff has updated the final budget to account for the more up-to-date information available, which 
included refining projections for year-end estimates for fiscal year 2023-24 and updating fiscal year 
2024-25 budget amounts.  Based on the updates, revenues for fiscal year 2024-25 increased by 
nearly $1.8 million, while expenditures were up just over $800,000.  The majority of the increased 
revenues came from additional reimbursements for projects funded with federal funds; however, it 
is important to note that these federal funds are granted over a four-to-five-year period, meaning 
higher reimbursements in the short term mean the total grant commitment will be depleted earlier.  
For expenditures, the increase was a function of increased distributions out of the TFCA Fund and 
the Measure M Fund.  The table on the following page summarizes the changes between the 
updated budget and the original draft budget. 
 
 
   
 

ITEM 6 

27



 
Table 1: Updated Budget Summary 

  
Beginning 
Balance Revenues Expenditures Ending Balance

Original 2024-25  $39,150,484 $19,578,773  $39,503,131  $19,226,126  

Updated 2024-25 $38,841,603 $21,343,884 $40,338,165 $19,847,322
Difference ($308,881) $1,765,111 $835,034 $621,196

 
For fiscal year 2024-25, it is proposed that the total member fees and assessments are as follows: 
 

 Member Fees (including General Fund and Gas Tax Fees) – Pursuant to budget guidance 
approved in C/CAG Resolution 22-04, an annual increase that is consistent with the most 
recent regional Consumer Price Index (CPI) at a rate not to exceed 3% is authorized. The 
CPI adjustment provides stability for C/CAG’s ongoing operations and avoids the future 
need of a large increase to make up for inflation. The annual 2023 regional Consumer Price 
Index rate was 3.7%. Per the resolution, the fiscal year 2024-25 C/CAG membership fees 
will increase by the maximum of 3%.  

 Congestion Relief Program Assessment – For fiscal year 2024-25, the amount of this 
assessment has been increased by $92,500, to a total of $1,942,500 Countywide, pursuant to 
C/CAG Resolution 23-63. This assessment is authorized by the C/CAG Board every four 
years, and the 5% increase is being made to reflect the decline in purchasing power over the 
years, as the underlying fee has not been increased since 2007. Additionally, in each of the 
subsequent two years of the assessment period, the fee is to be escalated by CPI, with a 
maximum annual increase of 3%.  This is in an effort to maintain the current levels of 
service and investment. 

 
For budgeting purposes, the draft member fees for each individual member agency were sent to City 
Managers and the County Executive on March 19, 2024. 
 
Assumptions and Highlights on the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget: 
 
C/CAG manages its funds by grouping related revenues and expenditures into ten specific Program 
Funds.  This includes General Fund, Transportation Fund, Smart Corridor Fund, Stormwater 
(NPDES) Fund, Measure M ($10 Vehicle Registration Fee) Fund, Express Lanes Joint Powers 
Authority, Congestion Relief Program, Energy Watch, Transportation Fund for Clean Air, and AB 
1546 ($4 Vehicle Registration Fee).  
 
The General Fund is set up to cover C/CAG general overhead related revenues and expenditures.  
The allowable expenses, such as legal and accounting fees and printing costs, are shared by the 
other C/CAG program funds prorated based on the proportionate share.  Airport/Land Use (ALUC) 
related expenses are fully funded by the General Fund. 
 
Revenues - Primary sources of funds: 

1. Member fees – As described on the previous page, assessments for this year reflect a 3% 
increase.   
 

2. Vehicle registration fees and property taxes – C/CAG levies a $10 vehicle registration fee 
for transportation and stormwater runoff programs.  C/CAG receives certain property tax for 
the stormwater program.  C/CAG also receives a portion of the Air District levied vehicle 
registration fee.  For the FY 2024-25 budget, it is assumed the overall revenues will be 
substantially the same as last year.  

 28



 
3. Grants – C/CAG receives two types of grants: 

a. On-going planning grants: MTC provides a five-year grant for various transportation 
planning and programming related activities and projects, allocated on an annual 
basis.  Any unspent amount can be rolled over to the following fiscal year.  Revenue 
is on a reimbursement basis.   

b. Project specific grants: This type of grant is for specific projects, typically on a 
reimbursable basis.  Project specific grant amounts will likely vary year-over-year to 
account for the variability of grant opportunities. 
 

Expenditures – The majority of C/CAG expenditures are in the following four categories: 
 
Administrative Services: 
 
Costs in this category reflect the staffing costs for C/CAG’s Executive Director and Clerk, as well 
as for the ongoing retiree medical costs for three former C/CAG employees. 
 
Professional Services: 
 
These costs reflect County of San Mateo employees from the Department of Public Works that 
work on various initiatives in support of C/CAG.  Costs billed by the County to C/CAG reflect the 
fully-burdened cost of these employees, including a charge for County overhead expenditures.  
Total expenditures related to professional services is approximately nine percent of the fiscal year 
2024-25 C/CAG budget.    
 
Consultant Services:  
 
C/CAG spends a significant amount of its funding on consultants, approximately 29 percent of total 
budgeted expenditures for fiscal year 2024-25.  These consultants provide specialized technical 
services in support of various C/CAG initiatives and projects.   
 
Distributions: 
 
C/CAG serves as either a direct funding source or a pass-through funding source to a number of 
organizations such as Commute.org, SamTrans, all 20 cities and the County (traffic congestion 
management and stormwater pollution prevention programs), County Office of Education (Safe 
Routes to School), and BAWSCA (Rain Barrel Rebate Program).  For 2024-25, this category also 
includes $13.8 million in funding to the cities leading the construction phase for the Smart Corridor 
program in the northern portion of the County.  In total, distributions to other entities represent 
approximately 60 percent of the C/CAG budget for 2024-25.  
 
Other: 
 
The proposed budget includes the payment of the interest (approximately $60,000) on the $2.6 
million of San Mateo County Express Lane Joint Powers Authority (SMCEL-JPA) Operating loan.  
It is anticipated that the SMCEL-JPA will continue to make annual interest payments, and that 
principal payments will occur in the future after the SMCEL-JPA operating and equipment reserves 
are funded.  Staff will return to the Finance Committee with an update and discussion on the 
operating loan at a later date.   
 
C/CAG also applied for a $60 million NOAA application for the countywide implementation of 
multiple green infrastructure and OneWatershed projects.   Awards will be announced in early 

29



 
summer.  If successful, C/CAG will return with a budget amendment later in the fiscal year.   
 
Major Organizational Fiscal Year 24-25 Goals: 
 
The proposed FY 24-25 budget reflects the ongoing work tasks and priorities that were identified in 
the Draft 2-Year Work Plan.  See attachment 3 for the updated 2-year workplan.  Major new or 
updated initiatives for FY 24-25 include: 
 
1) Administration: 

a) Secure long-term finance and administrative support.  
b) Complete C/CAG’s first Strategic Plan. 
c) Continue to implement the Equity Action Plan.  

 
2) Prepare the following planning studies:   

a) Begin the County Transportation Plan update. 
b) Conduct planning of buffered bike lane along El Camino Real in Millbrae and San Bruno. 
c) Initiate the update of the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 
d) Start the Congestion Management Program biannual update.  
e) Complete the VMT/GHG Mitigation Plan.   
f) Complete OneWatershed Climate Resilience Framework and Community-Led Plan.   

 
3) Manage various funding activities:   

a) Allocate approximately $1M in TFCA funding. 
b) Initiate planning for the next cycle of One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program.   

 
4) Provide ongoing support for Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) 3.0 implementation, 

advance OneWatershed Integrated Climate Resilience infrastructure planning,  distribute rain 
barrels via rebate partnership with BAWSCA, and continue to advance San Bruno Regional 
Stormwater Capture Project.    
 

5) Capital Projects:  
a) Commence construction of the North Cities Smart Corridor project and 92/101 Area 

Improvements. 
b) Complete the PAED phase for the Managed Lanes North of I-380. 
c) Advance the PAED phase of the 92/101 Direct Connector. 

 
6) Implement Phase II of the San Mateo County Express Lanes’s Community Transportation 

Benefits Program, and complete an organizational assessment of the Express Lanes Joint Power 
Authority. 

 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Progress made to advance equity in Fiscal Year 2023-2024 is summarized in Attachment 4.  Staff 
plans to provide annual updates together with the budget review process.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed C/CAG Member Fee for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
2. Consolidated Fiscal Year 2024-25 Proposed Budget 

a. Exhibits: 2024-25 Proposed Budget, 2023-24 Estimated Revenues and Expenditures, 
2023-24 Adopted Budget, and 2024-25 Proposed Budget summaries by fund. 

30



 
3. C/CAG’s Two Year Workplan  
4. FY2024 Progress update on C/CAG Equity Action Plan implementation. 

 
 

31



Agency Population3 Percent of General Gas Tax Total  Agency Percent of Total % of Trips Congestion Agency NPDES NPDES TOTAL

Population Fund Fee2 Fee2 Member Fee Population2 Trips2 Relief Basic3 NPDES

307,060$            457,222$            764,282$                

Atherton 6,678 0.905% 2,780$                 4,139$                 6,919$                     Atherton 0.905% 32,815 0.617% 14,789$                    Atherton

Belmont 26,793 3.632% 11,153$              16,607$              27,761$                   Belmont 3.632% 166,620 3.134% 65,721$                    Belmont

Brisbane 4,648 0.630% 1,935$                 2,881$                 4,816$                     Brisbane  0.630% 66,207 1.245% 18,217$                    Brisbane ‐$             12,303$           12,303$                 

Burlingame 30,136 4.085% 12,545$              18,680$              31,224$                   Burlingame 4.085% 313,808 5.903% 97,016$                    Burlingame

Colma 1,359 0.184% 566$                    842$                    1,408$                     Colma 0.184% 50,528 0.951% 11,021$                    Colma ‐$             4,154$              4,154$                    

Daly City 101,471 13.756% 42,239$              62,896$              105,135$                 Daly City 13.756% 554,083 10.423% 234,843$                  Daly City

East Palo Alto  28,586 3.875% 11,900$              17,719$              29,618$                   East Palo Alto  3.875% 143,743 2.704% 63,902$                    East Palo Alto 

Foster City 32,703 4.433% 13,613$              20,271$              33,884$                   Foster City 4.433% 263,851 4.964% 91,268$                    Foster City

Half Moon Bay 11,226 1.522% 4,673$                 6,958$                 11,631$                   Half Moon Bay 1.522% 93,359 1.756% 31,839$                    Half Moon Bay

Hillsborough 10,962 1.486% 4,563$                 6,795$                 11,358$                   Hillsborough 1.486% 55,931 1.052% 24,653$                    Hillsborough

Menlo Park 32,478 4.403% 13,520$              20,131$              33,651$                   Menlo Park 4.403% 354,196 6.663% 107,479$                  Menlo Park

Millbrae 22,487 3.048% 9,361$                 13,938$              23,299$                   Millbrae 3.048% 145,056 2.729% 56,112$                    Millbrae

Pacifica 37,082 5.027% 15,436$              22,985$              38,421$                   Pacifica 5.027% 208,298 3.918% 86,884$                    Pacifica

Portola Valley 4,247 0.576% 1,768$                 2,632$                 4,400$                     Portola Valley 0.576% 36,833 0.693% 12,322$                    Portola Valley

Redwood City 81,495 11.048% 33,924$              50,514$              84,438$                   Redwood City 11.048% 735,787 13.842% 241,740$                  Redwood City

San Bruno 42,054 5.701% 17,506$              26,067$              43,573$                   San Bruno 5.701% 296,184 5.572% 109,488$                  San Bruno

San Carlos 29,496 3.999% 12,278$              18,283$              30,561$                   San Carlos 3.999% 251,045 4.723% 84,706$                    San Carlos

San Mateo 103,318 14.006% 43,008$              64,041$              107,049$                 San Mateo 14.006% 818,876 15.405% 285,656$                  San Mateo ‐$             128,158$         128,158$               

South San Francisco 64,323 8.720% 26,776$              39,870$              66,646$                   South San Francisco 8.720% 461,262 8.677% 168,971$                  South San Francisco

Woodside 5,128 0.695% 2,135$                 3,179$                 5,313$                     Woodside  0.695% 43,111 0.811% 14,629$                    Woodside  11,165$       8,564$              19,729$                 

San Mateo County 60,974 8.266% 25,382$              37,794$              63,176$                   San Mateo County 8.266% 224,172 4.217% 121,243$                  San Mateo County

TOTAL 737,644 100.000% 307,060$            457,222$            764,282$                 TOTAL 100.000% 5,315,765           100.000% 1,942,500$               TOTAL 11,165$       153,178$         164,343$               

NOTES: NOTES: NOTES:

1. C/CAG member fees are comprised of two components: General Fund and Gas Tax.

2‐ Agencies not listed are collected by the Flood Control Dist.

4. NPDES assessments are based on total parcels in each jurisdiction.
3. Individual jurisdiction's share is based on new population data from Dept of Finance, 1/1/2023, adopted by 

CCAG Resolution 24‐06.

Draft Congestion Relief Program (CRP) Assessment ‐ FY 2024‐20251Draft C/CAG Member Fees ‐ FY 2024‐20251

1. NPDES assessments shown above are for INFO ONLY.

Draft NPDES Member Fee1,2,4

2. Per CCAG Resolution 22‐04, C/CAG member fees for both the General Fund and the Gas Tax portions are to 

increase by the annual regional Consumer Price Index (CPI), with a max at 3%.  

1. Per C/CAG Resolution 23‐63,  Total CRP (countywide total) assessment fees are proposed a one‐

time increase by 5% ($92,500 countywide, from $1,850,000 to $1,942,500). 

2. Congestion Relief Fee is calculated based on population (Dept of Finance 2023) and trips 

generated (C/CAG/VTA travel demand model 2019), 50% each, respectively.

3‐ Basic fees for Brisbane, Colma, San Mateo are collected by  the 

Flood Control District.

ATTACHMENT 1

32



Administrative Transportation Express Lanes SMCRP Smart LGP Energy TFCA NPDES AB 1546 Measure M Total
Program Programs JPA Program Corridor Watch Programs Programs Fees Fees

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,890,408 3,709,324 2,697,133 3,254,198 13,420,294 665,728 1,535,939 1,171,285 406,301 10,090,993 38,841,603

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 87,373 123,591 69,244 158,567 144,147 21,032 46,651 78,662 19,471 347,862 1,096,600
Member Contribution 307,060 457,222 0 1,942,500 0 0 0 164,343 0 0 2,871,125
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 634,116 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 634,116
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 2,537,600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 706,268 3,243,868
Grants 0 1,398,575 0 0 0 850,000 0 1,525,000 0 0 3,773,575
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,044,800 0 0 6,700,000 7,744,800
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,471,800 0 0 1,471,800
TA Cost Share 0 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200,000
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PPM-STIP 0 308,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 308,000
Assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TLSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 394,433 5,024,988 703,360 2,101,067 144,147 871,032 1,091,451 3,239,805 19,471 7,754,130 21,343,884

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 2,284,841 8,734,312 3,400,493 5,355,265 13,564,441 1,536,760 2,627,390 4,411,090 425,772 17,845,123 60,185,487

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 111,984 103,944 195,387 93,725 16,834 19,763 2,000 26,010 0 50,838 620,484
Professional Services 95,743 1,871,572 349,604 291,462 125,000 27,646 39,637 529,636 0 259,339 3,589,639
Consulting Services 622,629 3,123,680 0 900,565 941,000 892,125 0 3,156,984 10,000 1,948,288 11,595,271
Supplies 8,000 0 0 10,000 0 2,000 0 2,000 0 0 22,000
Prof. Dues & Memberships 18,525 0 0 0 0 17,500 0 28,000 0 500 64,525
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 31,000 15,000 0 15,000 0 2,000 0 6,000 0 2,500 71,500
Printing/ Postage 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Publications 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000
Distributions 0 0 0 1,285,500 13,762,081 0 2,351,848 30,000 374,000 6,459,817 24,263,246
OPEB Trust 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,000
Miscellaneous 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
Bank Fee 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,500
Audit Services 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 999,381 5,114,196 544,991 2,596,252 14,844,915 961,034 2,393,485 3,778,630 384,000 8,721,282 40,338,165

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 60,000 3,091,000 157,500 0 40,000 0 0 3,348,500
Transfers Out 0 0 60,000 848,500 0 0 0 0 0 2,440,000 3,348,500
Administrative Allocation (667,482) 329,458 90,889 64,238 23,654 7,906 6,944 92,665 0 51,728 0
TOTAL (667,482) 329,458 150,889 852,738 (3,067,346) (149,594) 6,944 52,665 0 2,491,728 0

NET CHANGE 62,534 (418,666) 7,480 (1,347,923) (11,633,422) 59,592 (1,308,978) (591,490) (364,529) (3,458,880) (18,994,281)

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 331,899 5,443,654 695,880 3,448,990 11,777,569 811,440 2,400,429 3,831,295 384,000 11,213,010 40,338,165

ENDING BALANCE 1,952,942 3,290,658 2,704,613 1,906,275 1,786,872 725,320 226,961 579,795 41,772 6,632,113 19,847,322

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ending Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000

FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 C/CAG CONSOLIDATED PROGRAM BUDGET 

33



Administrative Transportation Express Lanes SMCRP Smart LGP Energy TFCA NPDES AB 1546 Measure M Total
Program Programs JPA Program Corridor Watch Programs Programs Fees Fees

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,425,977 3,671,575 3,044,665 2,976,433 4,378,302 564,995 1,379,289 1,603,452 525,868 9,362,417 28,932,973

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 69,201 97,885 155,957 125,587 114,166 16,658 36,947 62,301 15,421 275,512 969,635
Member Contribution 298,116 443,905 0 1,850,000 0 0 0 160,738 0 313,000 3,065,759
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 474,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 474,000
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 2,223,135 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 777,151 3,000,286
Grants 0 430,000 0 0 10,316,938 483,649 0 816,549 0 0 12,047,136
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,020,400 0 12 6,738,041 7,758,453
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,583,100 0 0 1,583,100
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PPM-STIP 0 236,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 236,000
Assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TLSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 367,317 3,430,925 629,957 1,975,587 10,431,104 500,307 1,057,347 2,622,688 15,433 8,153,704 29,184,369

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,793,294 7,102,500 3,674,622 4,952,020 14,809,406 1,065,302 2,436,636 4,226,140 541,301 17,516,121 58,117,342

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 103,689 96,244 180,914 86,782 15,587 18,299 1,000 24,083 0 47,072 573,670
Professional Services 82,637 1,394,409 293,086 103,000 0 0 25,000 262,343 0 167,877 2,328,352
Consulting Services 233,915 1,523,622 0 402,893 614,525 494,256 0 2,655,586 10,000 2,246,335 8,181,132
Supplies 3,536 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,536
Prof. Dues & Memberships 1,500 0 0 0 0 17,500 0 30,000 0 500 49,500
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 20,000 7,487 0 3,000 0 1,700 0 2,970 0 2,000 37,157
Printing/ Postage 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300
Publications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Distributions 0 0 0 697,947 1,450,000 0 862,825 30,000 125,000 4,875,570 8,041,342
OPEB Trust 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,000
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Fee 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,500
Audit Services 2,250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,250
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 506,327 3,021,762 474,000 1,293,622 2,080,112 531,755 888,825 3,004,982 135,000 7,339,354 19,275,739

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 503,489 691,000 150,000 0 40,000 0 0 1,384,489
Transfers Out 0 0 503,489 841,000 0 0 0 0 0 40,000 1,384,489
Administrative Allocation (603,441) 371,414 0 66,689 0 17,819 11,872 89,873 0 45,774 0
TOTAL (603,441) 371,414 503,489 404,200 (691,000) (132,181) 11,872 49,873 0 85,774 0

NET CHANGE 464,431 37,749 (347,532) 277,765 9,041,992 100,733 156,650 (432,167) (119,567) 728,576 9,908,630

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS (97,114) 3,393,176 977,489 1,697,822 1,389,112 399,574 900,697 3,054,855 135,000 7,425,128 19,275,739

ENDING BALANCE 1,890,408 3,709,324 2,697,133 3,254,198 13,420,294 665,728 1,535,939 1,171,285 406,301 10,090,993 38,841,603

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ending Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000

FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 C/CAG CONSOLIDATED YEAR-END ESTIMATE 

34



Administrative Transportation Express Lanes SMCRP Smart LGP Energy TFCA NPDES AB 1546 Measure M Total
Program Programs JPA Program Corridor Watch Programs Programs Fees Fees

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,454,158 3,373,441 3,036,046 2,394,335 3,158,833 325,896 1,370,712 1,267,304 517,066 9,233,484 26,131,275

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 30,800 63,900 123,546 99,100 35,200 9,900 26,400 35,200 11,500 25,800 461,346
Member Contribution 298,116 443,905 0 1,850,000 0 0 0 160,282 0 300,000 3,052,303
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 532,603 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 532,603
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 1,362,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 706,268 2,068,768
Grants 0 465,740 0 0 10,312,000 720,000 0 1,725,000 0 0 13,222,740
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,020,400 0 0 6,700,000 7,720,400
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,582,678 0 0 1,582,678
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PPM-STIP 0 235,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 235,000
Assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TLSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 328,916 2,571,045 656,149 1,949,100 10,347,200 729,900 1,046,800 3,503,160 11,500 7,782,068 28,925,838

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,783,074 5,944,486 3,692,195 4,343,435 13,506,033 1,055,796 2,417,512 4,770,464 528,566 17,015,552 55,057,113

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 120,000 214,000 205,889 66,000 86,000 16,000 2,000 36,000 0 47,000 792,889
Professional Services 146,853 1,830,886 326,714 301,170 0 82,103 63,364 458,812 0 205,019 3,414,921
Consulting Services 552,655 2,386,338 0 1,551,838 991,000 850,000 0 2,670,083 384,000 2,438,223 11,824,137
Supplies 11,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,000
Prof. Dues & Memberships 19,250 22,000 0 3,000 0 0 0 28,000 0 500 72,750
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 15,500 5,000 0 1,000 1,000 10,000 0 6,000 0 7,000 45,500
Printing/ Postage 10,000 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,000
Publications 4,000 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,000
Distributions 0 0 0 1,079,200 12,812,000 0 2,297,730 830,000 125,000 6,229,159 23,373,089
OPEB Trust 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,000
Miscellaneous 13,700 2,000 0 1,000 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 17,700
Bank Fee 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,500
Audit Services 22,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,500 25,000
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 973,958 4,471,224 532,603 3,003,208 13,890,000 958,103 2,363,094 4,029,895 509,000 8,929,401 39,660,486

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 691,000 150,000 0 40,000 0 0 881,000
Transfers Out 0 0 0 841,000 0 0 0 0 0 40,000 881,000
Administrative Allocation (603,441) 371,414 0 66,689 0 17,819 11,872 89,873 0 45,774 0
TOTAL (603,441) 371,414 0 907,689 (691,000) (132,181) 11,872 49,873 0 85,774 0

NET CHANGE (41,601) (2,271,593) 123,546 (1,961,797) (2,851,800) (96,022) (1,328,166) (576,608) (497,500) (1,233,107) (10,734,648)

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 370,517 4,842,638 532,603 3,910,897 13,199,000 825,922 2,374,966 4,079,768 509,000 9,015,175 39,660,486

ENDING BALANCE 1,412,557 1,101,848 3,159,592 432,538 307,033 229,874 42,546 690,696 19,566 8,000,377 15,396,627

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ending Balance 40,000 800,000 0 300,000 0 0 0 120,000 0 340,000 1,600,000

FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 C/CAG CONSOLIDATED ADOPTED BUDGET

35



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,127,187 1,454,158 1,425,977 1,890,408

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 47,498 30,800 69,201 87,373 183.68%
Member Contribution 289,433 298,116 298,116 307,060 3.00%
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 336,931 328,916 367,317 394,433 19.92%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,464,118 1,783,074 1,793,294 2,284,841 28.14%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 152,384 120,000 103,689 111,984 -6.68%
Professional Services 270,557 146,853 82,637 95,743 -34.80%
Consulting Services 71,218 552,655 233,915 622,629 12.66%
Supplies 7,466 11,000 3,536 8,000 -27.27%
Prof. Dues & Memberships 1,500 19,250 1,500 18,525 -3.77%
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 7,800 15,500 20,000 31,000 100.00%
Printing/ Postage 483 10,000 300 10,000 0.00%
Publications 2,259 4,000 0 3,000 -25.00%
Distributions 0 0 0 0 -
OPEB Trust 0 55,000 55,000 55,000 0.00%
Miscellaneous 527 13,700 0 15,000 9.49%
Bank Fee 307 3,500 3,500 3,500 0.00%
Audit Services 16,809 22,500 2,250 25,000 11.11%
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 531,310 973,958 506,327 999,381 2.61%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 493,169 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 (603,441) (603,441) (667,482) 10.61%
TOTAL (493,169) (603,441) (603,441) (667,482) 10.61%

NET CHANGE 298,790 (41,601) 464,431 62,534 -250.32%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 38,141 370,517 (97,114) 331,899 -10.42%

ENDING BALANCE 1,425,977 1,412,557 1,890,408 1,952,942 38.26%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0.00%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0.00%

GENERAL FUND ADMINISTRATION 

36



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 3,271,875 3,373,441 3,671,575 3,709,324

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 70,475 63,900 97,885 123,591 93.41%
Member Contribution 430,975 443,905 443,905 457,222 3.00%
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 1,362,500 2,223,135 2,537,600 86.25%
Grants 1,995,686 465,740 430,000 1,398,575 200.29%
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 200,000 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 235,000 235,000 236,000 308,000 31.06%
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 2,732,136 2,571,045 3,430,925 5,024,988 95.45%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 6,004,011 5,944,486 7,102,500 8,734,312 46.93%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 128,671 214,000 96,244 103,944 -51.43%
Professional Services 1,459,590 1,830,886 1,394,409 1,871,572 2.22%
Consulting Services 426,821 2,386,338 1,523,622 3,123,680 30.90%
Supplies 0 2,000 0 0 -100.00%
Prof. Dues & Memberships 4,600 22,000 0 0 -100.00%
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 9,562 5,000 7,487 15,000 200.00%
Printing/ Postage 0 6,000 0 0 -100.00%
Publications 0 3,000 0 0 -100.00%
Distributions 0 0 0 0 -
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 2,000 0 0 -100.00%
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 2,258 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 2,031,502 4,471,224 3,021,762 5,114,196 14.38%

-
TRANSFERS -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 300,934 371,414 371,414 329,458 -11.30%
TOTAL 300,934 371,414 371,414 329,458 -11.30%

NET CHANGE 399,700 (2,271,593) 37,749 (418,666) -81.57%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 2,332,436 4,842,638 3,393,176 5,443,654 12.41%

ENDING BALANCE 3,671,575 1,101,848 3,709,324 3,290,658 198.65%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 0.00%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 0.00%

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMS

37



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 2,884,876 3,036,046 3,044,665 2,697,133

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 61,736 123,546 155,957 69,244 -43.95%
Member Contribution 0 0 0 0 -
Cost Reimbursements 331,799 532,603 474,000 634,116 19.06%
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 393,535 656,149 629,957 703,360 7.20%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 3,278,411 3,692,195 3,674,622 3,400,493 -7.90%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 128,709 205,889 180,914 195,387 -5.10%
Professional Services 204,987 326,714 293,086 349,604 7.01%
Consulting Services 0 0 0 0 -
Supplies 0 0 0 0 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 0 0 0 -
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 35 0 0 0 -
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 0 0 0 0 -
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 15 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 333,746 532,603 474,000 544,991 2.33%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 100,000 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 503,489 60,000 -
Administrative Allocation 0 0 0 90,889 -
TOTAL (100,000) 0 503,489 150,889 -

NET CHANGE 159,789 123,546 (347,532) 7,480 -93.95%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 233,746 532,603 977,489 695,880 30.66%

ENDING BALANCE 3,044,665 3,159,592 2,697,133 2,704,613 -14.40%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 0 0 0 0 -

EXPRESS LANES JPA

38



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 3,434,286 2,394,335 2,976,433 3,254,198

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 79,426 99,100 125,587 158,567 60.01%
Member Contribution 1,850,000 1,850,000 1,850,000 1,942,500 5.00%
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,929,426 1,949,100 1,975,587 2,101,067 7.80%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 5,363,712 4,343,435 4,952,020 5,355,265 23.30%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 74,675 66,000 86,782 93,725 42.01%
Professional Services 129,514 301,170 103,000 291,462 -3.22%
Consulting Services 307,424 1,551,838 402,893 900,565 -41.97%
Supplies 0 0 0 10,000 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 3,000 0 0 -100.00%
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 39 1,000 3,000 15,000 1400.00%
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 833,249 1,079,200 697,947 1,285,500 19.12%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 1,000 0 0 -100.00%
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,344,901 3,003,208 1,293,622 2,596,252 -13.55%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 503,489 60,000 -
Transfers Out 1,042,378 841,000 841,000 848,500 0.89%
Administrative Allocation 0 66,689 66,689 64,238 -3.68%
TOTAL 1,042,378 907,689 404,200 852,738 -6.05%

NET CHANGE (457,853) (1,961,797) 277,765 (1,347,923) -31.29%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 2,387,279 3,910,897 1,697,822 3,448,990 -11.81%

ENDING BALANCE 2,976,433 432,538 3,254,198 1,906,275 340.72%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 0.00%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 0.00%

SAN MATEO CONGESTION RELIEF FUND

39



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 2,171,031 3,158,833 4,378,302 13,420,294

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 103,696 35,200 114,166 144,147 309.51%
Member Contribution 0 0 0 0 -
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 10,312,000 10,316,938 0 -100.00%
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 103,696 10,347,200 10,431,104 144,147 -98.61%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 2,274,727 13,506,033 14,809,406 13,564,441 0.43%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 45,625 86,000 15,587 16,834 -80.43%
Professional Services 0 0 0 125,000 -
Consulting Services 541,223 991,000 614,525 941,000 -5.05%
Supplies 0 0 0 0 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 0 0 0 -
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 0 1,000 0 0 -100.00%
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 156,077 12,812,000 1,450,000 13,762,081 7.42%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 742,925 13,890,000 2,080,112 14,844,915 6.87%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 2,846,500 691,000 691,000 3,091,000 347.32%
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 0 0 23,654 -
TOTAL (2,846,500) (691,000) (691,000) (3,067,346) 343.90%

NET CHANGE 2,207,271 (2,851,800) 9,041,992 (11,633,422) 307.93%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS (2,103,575) 13,199,000 1,389,112 11,777,569 -10.77%

ENDING BALANCE 4,378,302 307,033 13,420,294 1,786,872 481.98%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 0 0 0 0 -

SAN MATEO COUNTY SMART COORIDOR

40



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 454,380 325,896 564,995 665,728

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 14,666 9,900 16,658 21,032 112.44%
Member Contribution 0 0 0 0 -
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 329,970 720,000 483,649 850,000 18.06%
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 344,636 729,900 500,307 871,032 19.34%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 799,016 1,055,796 1,065,302 1,536,760 45.55%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 3,293 16,000 18,299 19,763 23.52%
Professional Services 197,997 82,103 0 27,646 -66.33%
Consulting Services 132,658 850,000 494,256 892,125 4.96%
Supplies 0 0 0 2,000 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 0 17,500 17,500 -
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 1,875 10,000 1,700 2,000 -80.00%
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 1,193 0 0 0 -
Distributions 0 0 0 0 -
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 337,016 958,103 531,755 961,034 0.31%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 150,000 150,000 150,000 157,500 5.00%
Transfers Out 47,005 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 17,819 17,819 7,906 -55.63%
TOTAL (102,995) (132,181) (132,181) (149,594) 13.17%

NET CHANGE 110,615 (96,022) 100,733 59,592 -162.06%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 234,021 825,922 399,574 811,440 -1.75%

ENDING BALANCE 564,995 229,874 665,728 725,320 215.53%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 0 0 0 0 -

SAN MATEO LGP ENERGY WATCH

41



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,415,352 1,370,712 1,379,289 1,535,939

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 27,898 26,400 36,947 46,651 76.71%
Member Contribution 0 0 0 0 -
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 1,028,232 1,020,400 1,020,400 1,044,800 2.39%
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,056,130 1,046,800 1,057,347 1,091,451 4.27%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 2,471,482 2,417,512 2,436,636 2,627,390 8.68%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 0 2,000 1,000 2,000 0.00%
Professional Services 21,206 63,364 25,000 39,637 -37.45%
Consulting Services 136,496 0 0 0 -
Supplies 0 0 0 0 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 0 0 0 -
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 0 0 0 0 -
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 929,589 2,297,730 862,825 2,351,848 2.36%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,087,291 2,363,094 888,825 2,393,485 1.29%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 4,902 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 11,872 11,872 6,944 -41.51%
TOTAL 4,902 11,872 11,872 6,944 -41.51%

-
NET CHANGE (36,063) (1,328,166) 156,650 (1,308,978) -1.44%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 1,092,193 2,374,966 900,697 2,400,429 1.07%

ENDING BALANCE 1,379,289 42,546 1,535,939 226,961 433.45%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 0 0 0 0 -

TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR

42



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,708,002 1,267,304 1,603,452 1,171,285

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 42,590 35,200 62,301 78,662 123.47%
Member Contribution 152,645 160,282 160,738 164,343 2.53%
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 1,725,000 816,549 1,525,000 -11.59%
DMV Fee 0 0 0 0 -
NPDES Fee 1,548,798 1,582,678 1,583,100 1,471,800 -7.01%
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,744,033 3,503,160 2,622,688 3,239,805 -7.52%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 3,452,035 4,770,464 4,226,140 4,411,090 -7.53%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 4,790 36,000 24,083 26,010 -27.75%
Professional Services 253,142 458,812 262,343 529,636 15.44%
Consulting Services 1,510,994 2,670,083 2,655,586 3,156,984 18.24%
Supplies 0 0 0 2,000 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 30,604 28,000 30,000 28,000 0.00%
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 2,349 6,000 2,970 6,000 0.00%
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 29,193 830,000 30,000 30,000 -96.39%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 8 1,000 0 0 -100.00%
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 1,831,080 4,029,895 3,004,982 3,778,630 -6.24%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0.00%
Transfers Out 57,503 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 89,873 89,873 92,665 3.11%
TOTAL 17,503 49,873 49,873 52,665 5.60%

NET CHANGE (104,550) (576,608) (432,167) (591,490) 2.58%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 1,848,583 4,079,768 3,054,855 3,831,295 -6.09%

ENDING BALANCE 1,603,452 690,696 1,171,285 579,795 -16.06%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 0.00%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 0.00%

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

43



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 538,376 517,066 525,868 406,301

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 11,984 11,500 15,421 19,471 69.31%
Member Contribution 0 0 0 0 -
Cost Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 0 0 0 -
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 714 0 12 0 -
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 12,698 11,500 15,433 19,471 69.31%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 551,074 528,566 541,301 425,772 -19.45%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 0 0 0 0 -
Professional Services 0 0 0 0 -
Consulting Services 25,206 384,000 10,000 10,000 -97.40%
Supplies 0 0 0 0 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 0 0 0 0 -
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 0 0 0 0 -
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 0 125,000 125,000 374,000 199.20%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 0 0 0 0 -
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 25,206 509,000 135,000 384,000 -24.56%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Administrative Allocation 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 -

NET CHANGE (12,508) (497,500) (119,567) (364,529) -26.73%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 25,206 509,000 135,000 384,000 -24.56%

ENDING BALANCE 525,868 19,566 406,301 41,772 113.49%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 0 0 0 0 -

Note:  Beginning/ Ending Reserve Fund Balance is not included in Beginning/ Ending Fund Balance

AB1546 ($4 DMV FEE) PROGRAM

44



2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Y-O-Y Budget
ACTUALS ADOPTED ESTIMATED BUDGET % Change

BEGINNING BALANCE 11,090,583 9,233,484 9,362,417 10,090,993

REVENUES

Interest Earnings 261,605 25,800 275,512 347,862 1248.30%
Member Contribution 166,889 300,000 313,000 0 -100.00%
Cost Reimbursements 552,804 0 0 0 -
MTC/ Federal Funding 0 706,268 777,151 706,268 0.00%
Grants 0 0 0 0 -
DMV Fee 6,863,941 6,700,000 6,738,041 6,700,000 0.00%
NPDES Fee 0 0 0 0 -
TA Cost Share 0 50,000 50,000 0 -100.00%
Miscellaneous/ SFIA 0 0 0 0 -
Street Repair Funding 0 0 0 0 -
PPM-STIP 0 0 0 0 -
Assessment 0 0 0 0 -
TLSP 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 7,845,239 7,782,068 8,153,704 7,754,130 -0.36%

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 18,935,822 17,015,552 17,516,121 17,845,123 4.88%

EXPENDITURES
Administration Services 23,924 47,000 47,072 50,838 8.17%
Professional Services 163,623 205,019 167,877 259,339 26.50%
Consulting Services 2,222,150 2,438,223 2,246,335 1,948,288 -20.09%
Supplies 0 0 0 0 -
Prof. Dues & Memberships 500 500 500 500 0.00%
Conferences & Meetings/Trainings 1,841 7,000 2,000 2,500 -64.29%
Printing/ Postage 0 0 0 0 -
Publications 0 0 0 0 -
Distributions 4,982,162 6,229,159 4,875,570 6,459,817 3.70%
OPEB Trust 0 0 0 0 -
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 -
Bank Fee 0 0 0 0 -
Audit Services 2,258 2,500 0 0 -100.00%
Loan to SMCEL JPA 0 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 7,396,458 8,929,401 7,339,354 8,721,282 -2.33%

TRANSFERS
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 2,176,947 40,000 40,000 2,440,000 6000.00%
Administrative Allocation 0 45,774 45,774 51,728 13.01%
TOTAL 2,176,947 85,774 85,774 2,491,728 2804.99%

NET CHANGE (1,728,166) (1,233,107) 728,576 (3,458,880) 180.50%

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0 0 0 0 -

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 9,573,405 9,015,175 7,425,128 11,213,010 24.38%

ENDING BALANCE 9,362,417 8,000,377 10,090,993 6,632,113 -17.10%

RESERVE FUND
Beginning Balance 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 0.00%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 -
Ending Balance 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 0.00%

MEASURE M ($10 DMV FEE)

45



C/CAG Draft 2 YR workplanColor CODING KEY 

Key Categories

Required Activities By Statute or Role or Ownership

Discretionary Actions Necessary to accomplish C/CAG's Mission/Goals
Discretionary Actions Not Yet Started 2025

1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr

Agency wide efforts Partner Orgs

1 Measure M Management (General)
Manage Measure M ($10 Vehicle License Fee) including planning, admin, 

and annual formula distributions. 

All 21‐

Jurisdictions, 

SamTrans, 

County Office 

of Education

X X X X X X X X

2

General Financial/Organizational Tasks (contracts, HR, CALPERs, 

financial management, Audits, Finance Committee Investment 

policies)

X X X X X X X X

3
Oversight, management and participation in Committees (CMEQ, 

TAC, BPAC, AAC, Stormwater, Finance)

C/CAG has 9 standing committees, including ALUC, with approximately 75 

regular scheduled Brown Act meetings each year.  
X X X X X X X X

4 Airport Land Use Commission Activities and Committee (ALUC) ALUC Meetings, project review, and ALUCP Management. X X X X X X X X

5 21‐ Elements support  C/CAG is a major partner in supporting 21 Elements efforts. 

 SMC Dept 

Housing, all 21‐

jurisdictions

X X X X X X X X

6 C/CAG Equity Action Plan Implementation Implementation of action items identified in the Equity Plan X X X X X X X X

7 State and Federal Advocacy Program

State advocacy (Shaw Yoder Antwih Schmelzer & Lange) for tracking and 

commenting on legislation and pursuing funding;  & Federal Funding 

advocacy (Ken Brown & Associates) Schedule DC and Sacramento 

legislative visits. 

X X X X X X X X

8 C/CAG Strategic Plan Development Develop a vision statement, strategic priorities, and a project list  X X X X

9 C/CAG Update Website TBD  N/A

10 Create Handbook of C/CAG Committees TBD 

Stormwater Program Partner Orgs

11 Regional Water Board MRP Compliance

Managing Regional Stormwater Permit for all permitees (22) in San 

Mateo County, including 5 Year contract with EOA and coordinating 

annual compliance. 

Water Quality 

Control Board, 

all 21 

Jurisdictions

X X X X X X X X

12 Multi Benefit Regional Projects 

Continue to support Orange Memorial Park project in SSF;  Implement 

recent $2.4m Federal Earmark for project in San Bruno and initiate 

planning for NOAA grant to fund full project 

design/permitting/construction; support project development and 

funding options for Red Morton Park in Redwood City and Twin Pines 

project in Belmont. Evaluate future regional projects. 

San Bruno, 

Belmont, 

Redwood City, 

Caltrans and 22 

Stormwater 

Permittees

X X X X X X X X

13 Advancing OneWatershed San Mateo County Efforts

Advance OneWatershed Framework Project with Geosyntec and 

countywide partners; develop concept plan for new OneWatershed Pilot 

Project in San Bruno Creek Watershed; 

OneShoreline, 

BAWSCA, 

Climate 

Resilient 

Communities, 

San Bruno, 

County of San 

Mateo, South 

San Francisco

X X X X X X X X

14 Phase II Green Infrastructure Tracking & Mapping Tool

Advance GI Tracking and Mapping Tool to support new MRP 

requirements for asset management, trash control mapping and GSI 

implementation

C/CAG member 

agencies 
X X X X X

15 Pilot Bulk Rain Barrel Rebates
Annual project to distribute approximately 800+ rain barrels.  See press 

release and coverage in Agenda #9 Communications. 

BAWSCA and 

RainWater 

Solutions, plus 

C/CAG member 

agencies

X X X X X X X X

2024

Prepared by  2/9/2024 Page 1

ATTACHMENT 3

46



C/CAG Draft 2 YR workplanColor CODING KEY 

Key Categories

Required Activities By Statute or Role or Ownership

Discretionary Actions Necessary to accomplish C/CAG's Mission/Goals
Discretionary Actions Not Yet Started 2025

1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr

2024

16 Exploration of Stormwater Funding/Financing
Continue to explore funding and financing options for long‐term 

stormwater revenue; 

17 $50m+ NOAA Grant for One Watershed and Sustainable Streets

Apply for $50m+ NOAA Grant for OneWatershed Projects in San Bruno 

and throughout San Mateo County;( San Bruno Regional Project and pilot 

OneWatershed Project in San Bruno Creek Watershed, Sustainable 

Streets Projects (Daly City, Colma, East Palo Alto), Pescadero Creek Flood 

Plain Restoration, Work Force Development, and Programmatic 

Enhancements for Regional Collaborative Program) implement if 

successful.

OneWatershed 

Partners, plus 

SFEI, 

Association of 

Ramaytush 

Ohlone, San 

Mateo 

Resource 

Conservation 

District, 

ReScape CA, 

EnviroCert, San 

Jose 

Conservation 

Corps, Green 

Schoolyards 

America

X X X X X X X X

18
Scaling Schoolyard Greening Efforts (State and Federal earmark 

attempt)

Support advanced design work for three sites in San Carlos School District 

following Resilient San Carlos Schoolyards project and additional 

schoolyard greening planning work at 10 additional school sites 

throughout the county if successful with funding request.

San Mateo 

County Office 

of Education

X X X X

Energy and Climate Program Partner Orgs

19 San Mateo County Energy Watch (SMCEW) OOS X X X X X X X X

20 Climate Action Planning (RICAPS) X X X X X X X X

21 Laundry to Landscape Program Potential Earmark X X X X X X X X

22 Carbon Neutrality Plan Potential Earmark X X X X X

Transportation Plans/Studies C/CAG LEAD Partner Orgs

23
Community Based Transportation Plans ‐ San Bruno/SSF

MTC required transportation plans for Equity Priority Communities.  

Initiate update of San Bruno/SSFplan w/completion est. end of 2025 
MTC, San 

Bruno, SSF
X X X X X X X X

24
Congestion Management Plan Biannual Update

Required update of Congestion Management Plan every two years to 

monitor traffic on CMP Network and Companion Network. 
All 21 

Jursidictions
X X X X

25 MTC RTP PBA 2050 Update 

Every 4 years MTC must update its RTP Plan Bay Area.  This update is 

intended to be a "focused" update.   RTP is a 30 year plan that identifies 

over $5.1 billion in San Mateo County projects. 

All 21 

Jursidictions, 

SMCTA, 

SamTrans

X X X X X X X X

26 County Transportation Plan Update (CTP)
Countywide update to the Countywide Transportation Plan.  Required by 

MTC to connect Countywide efforts to the RTP PBA. 

SMCTA, 21 

Jurisdictions
X X X X X X X X

27 Dumbarton Corridor Feasibility Study and Plan (Pre PID)

Study to identify alternatives to connect the Dumbarton Bridge to the 

Highway 101 Express Lanes.  Roadway and ATP only. Alternatives will 

then be studied in greater detail in a PID.   $500k 

East Palo Alto, 

Menlo Park, 

SamTrans, 

SMCTA

X X X X X X

28

Local Roadway Safety Plan

Countywide Local Roadway Safety Plan will identify safety improvement 

in Cities to reduce severe injury and fatal collisions on local roadways and 

ensure jurisdictions are eligible for certain types of MTC funding as well 

as making the County more competitive for certain types of Federal 

All 21 

Jurisdictions
X X

29
Planning Buffered Bike Lane El Camino Real San Bruno/Millbrae

Planning and design for 3.7 mile of buffered bike lane along ECR in San 

Bruno and Millbrae. Funded with $760k budget request from then Asm. 

Mullin. 

San Bruno, 

Millbrae, 

SMCTA

X X X X X X

Prepared by  2/9/2024 Page 2
47



C/CAG Draft 2 YR workplan

Color CODING KEY 

Key Categories

Required Activities By Statute or Role or Ownership

Discretionary Actions Necessary to accomplish C/CAG's Mission/Goals
Discretionary Actions Not Yet Started 2025

1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr

2024

30
VMT/GHG Mitigation Plan and Program 

Planning for a GHG/VMT Mitigation Program.  Funded by Caltrans 

Planning Grant.   $670k.  Recruiting consultant now.  
Caltrans X X X X X  

31

Countywide Comprehensive Bike and Pedestrian Plan

Update to the 2021 Comprehensive Bike and Ped Plan. Will identify and 

prioritize bicycle and pedestrian projects, update the equity focus areas, 

and include e‐bike strategies, sidewalk inventories, and an update to the 

equity focus areas.   Will submit applications for Caltrans planning grant, 

RAISE Planning Grant, and Earmarks.

All 21 

jurisdctions, 

SMCTA

X X X X X

32
Countywide Adaptive Traffic Signal Synchronization Plan and 

Implementation

Identify key corridors and routes to implement adaptive signal timing; 

prioritize signal timing for transit vehicles and emergency vehicles; install 

bicycle detection software; and leverage technology to better control and 

manage traffic flow. May seek federal earmark funding.

All 21 

jurisdictions, 

SamTrans

X X

Transportation Plans/Studies C/CAG Supporting Role Partner Orgs

33 Countywide Autonomous Vehicle Strategic Plan (SMCTA) 

Identify the current state of AV in San Mateo County, establish a shared‐

vision for AV deployment, identify opportunities and challenges for AV 

deployment in the county,and to develop an AV action plan with 

prioritized next steps that align with potential funding availability. 

SMCTA X X X

34
Implementation of pilot projects identified in the Autonomous 

Vehicle Plan

Implement pilot projects identified in the Autonomous Vehicle Strategic 

Plan
SMCTA X X X X X

35 US 101 Multimodal Strategy (SMCTA)

Develop a strategy and conduct outreach to create a multimodal package 

of projects to be added to or bundled with and complement the existing 

highway projects.

SMCTA X X X

Transportation Programs  Partner Orgs

36
Ongoing STIP, RTIP, MEASURE M, OBAG, Federal Project Delivery, 

and other required admin activities

Assist cities with regional, state, and Federal Funding.  Currently assisting 

member agencies with the delivery of approx. $195m in funding 

throughout the County

All 21 

jurisdictions, 

SMCTA

X X X X X X X X

37 Safe Routes To School Program

The (SRTS) Program is a collaborative effort between (C/CAG and the San 

Mateo County Office of Education (SMCOE). The program encourages 

and enables school children to walk and bicycle to school by 

implementing projects and activities that improve the health, well‐being, 

and safety of children, resulting in less traffic congestion and vehicle 

emissions caused by school‐related travel.

County Office 

of Eduction, 

school districts

X X X X X X X X

38
TDM Policy Management C/CAG's Countywide TDM policy is used by a majority of the Cities.   

All 21 

jurisdictions
X X X X X X X X

39
Shuttle Program C/CAG supports shuttle investment.  

SMCTA, 

Commute.org, 

Menlo Park

X X X X X X X X

40 Regional Support and Advocacy at MTC/ABAG and Caltrans for 

regional priorities. 

Coordinate with multiple staff level committees, brief MTC 

Commissioners on relevant issues, support member agency roadway, 

multimodal, and grade separation applications.

All 21 

jurisdictions
X X X X X X X X

41
Transportation Fund for Clean Air County Program Manager Fund 

Management

C/CAG distributes Air District funds to qualifying projects that reduce air 

pollution, greenhouse gas emissions, and traffic congestion by improving 

transportation options. 

BAAQMD, 

Commute.org
X X X X X X X X

42 Big Data (StreetLight Data) Services

C/CAG manages a joint countywide subscription to StreetLight Data, 

allowing users to access big data to perform robust transportation 

analytics. 

All 21 

jurisdictions
x x x

Prepared by  2/9/2024 Page 3
48



C/CAG Draft 2 YR workplan
Color CODING KEY 

Key Categories

Required Activities By Statute or Role or Ownership

Discretionary Actions Necessary to accomplish C/CAG's Mission/Goals
Discretionary Actions Not Yet Started 2025

1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr

2024

43 Micromobility (Bikeshare/Scooter share) Program Implementation 

C/CAG Board adopted the Shared Micromobility Feasibility Study and 

Implementation Plan in December 2022. C/CAG has formed a 

Governance Working Group of participating pilot jurisdictions to finalize 

the program guidelines and procure vendor to launch the pilot. C/CAG is 

also developing a Community Outreach Plan to gain input from the 

community on station locations and an equity program. Pilot is 

anticipated to be operational in late 2024.

MTC, Daly City, 

Colma, SMC, 

Redwood City

X X X X X X X X

44 USDOT Safe Streets for All Grant and Program (Placeholder) 

Explore applying for Safe Streets for All Grant and Program for top 10 

priority bike and pedestrian safety projects in each jurisdiction   

throughout County  (Based on Local Streets and Roads Safety Plan) in 

2024 and implementing if successful 

All 21 

jurisdictions
X X X X X X X X

Calls For Projects/Funding  Partner Orgs

45

Lifeline STA County Block Call For Projects

Issue CFP In Q2 FY 23/24;  The Lifeline Transportation Program is 

designed to help low‐income residents by funding transportation projects 

that will improve their mobility options.

All 21 

Jursdictions; 

CBOs; 

SamTrans

X X

46
TDA Article 3

Provide planning and capital funding for active transportation projects. 

Will facilitate FY24‐25 Call for Projects in beginning 2023 Q4.

All 21 

Jurisdictions; 

CBOs; MTC

X X X X

47 Measure M Countywide Transportation Innovative Grant Program

A new Countywide Competitive Pilot Program dedicated to fund nimble 

Senior Mobility, ITS/Smart Corridor, Safe Routes to School, and 

Stormwater Management projects. 

Measure M 

Funded 

Program 

Managers

X X X X

48
2026 STIP Update Required update for County Formula Share STIP Funds. 

SMCTA, 

Caltrans
X X X

Smart Corridor Projects (C/CAG Lead) Partner Orgs

49 Smart Corridor Ongoing Maintenance 
Maintenance  for fixtures and of Fiberoptic line that currently spans from 

East Palo Alto to San Bruno.

11 existing 

Smart Corridor 

jurisdictions; 

Caltrans

X X X X X X X X

50 Smart Corridor SSF Construction

Support construction of Smart Corridor in SSF, including providing 

funding. Construction cost estimated at $8.5M and anticipate completion 

by end of 2023.

SSF X X X X

51 Smart Corridor Constuction Daly City/Colma

Support construction of Smart Corridor in Brisbane, Daly City, and Colma, 

including providing funding. Construction cost estimated at $12.6M and 

anticipate construction advertisement in summer 2023.

Daly City & 

Colma, Caltrans
X X X X X X X X

52 Smart Corridor Constuction Brisbane

Support construction of Smart Corridor in Brisbane, Daly City, and Colma, 

including providing funding. Construction cost estimated at $12.6M and 

anticipate construction advertisement in summer 2023.

Brisbane, 

Caltrans
X X X X X X X X

Managed Lane North of  I 380  (Co‐Sponsor with SMCTA) Partner Orgs

52
PAED (Planning) 

Project would extend the managed lanes north of I 380 to theSM/SF 

county line and close the remaining gap in SMC along 101.  Total Project 

Cost Estimated at $315.5M (Construction estimated at $272.2M)

SMCTA, 

Caltrans
X X X X X

53 PSE (Design)   X X X X

54 Construction 

92/101 Multi Modal Area Improvements  (Co‐Sponsor with SMCTA) Partner Orgs

Prepared by  2/9/2024 Page 4
49



C/CAG Draft 2 YR workplan

Color CODING KEY 

Key Categories

Required Activities By Statute or Role or Ownership

Discretionary Actions Necessary to accomplish C/CAG's Mission/Goals
Discretionary Actions Not Yet Started 2025

1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr

2024

55

PSE (Design)

Project would improve 92/101 Interchange at 4 locations, construction 

buffered bike lane along Fashion Island Blvd, and a mobility hub 

interchange.  Construction Cost Est $51M ($44M for Highway 

Construction and $7M for Multi‐modal Component).

SMCTA, 

Caltrans,     

Foster City,    

City of San 

Mateo

X

56 Construction  X X X X X X X

92/101 Direct Connector (Co‐Sponsor with SMCTA) Partner Orgs

57

PAED (Planning) 

Project is analyzing options to provide a direct connector between Hwy 

92 and the Hwy 101 express lanes to encourage transit and HOVs. Total 

Proj Cost Est $195.3M ‐ Construction cost est is $165M

SMCTA, 

Caltrans,   

Foster City,   

City of San 

Mateo

X X X X X X X X

58 PSE (Design)

59 Construction 

San Mateo County Express Lane JPA (101 Express Lanes) Partner Orgs

60 FY Budget Preparation Prepare program budget. SMCEL‐JPA X X X X

61

Equity Program Oversight 

Oversee equity program with Samaritan House that distributes $100 

Clipper Cards or $100 FasTrak Transponders.   Explore evaluation of 

program including increasing the amount to $200, adding online 

enrollment, and transitioning to a mobility wallet.  

SMCEL‐JPA X X X X X X X X

62 Expenditure Plan  State Required expenditure plan before any net revenue is expended.  SMCEL‐JPA X X X X X

63
Organizational Assessment 

Founding JPA requires an organizational assessment regarding the 

administrative structure of the organization.  
SMCEL‐JPA X X X X X X

64 Express Lane Program Operation
Manage the express lane program operation from I‐380 to San Mateo 

County/Santa Clara County line.
SMCEL‐JPA X X X X X X X X

65 Ongoing management of Express Lanes Asset Database

Develop a database that enables strategic and systematic process of 

maintain, upgrading and expanding assets to support Express Lane 

operation. Designed to focus on resource allocation and planning. 

SMCEL‐JPA X X X X X X X X

Prepared by  2/9/2024 Page 5
50



  

 
C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 

 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To: C/CAG Finance Committee 
 
From: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
 
Subject: FY2024 Progress update on C/CAG Equity Action Plan implementation. 
 
(For further information or response to questions, contact Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org) 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee receive a progress update on the implementation of initiatives 
outlined in the C/CAG Equity Action Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Costs associated for the first six months of the Equity Action Plan implementation are difficult to 
assess because actions completed were undertaken by staff under multiple program areas and 
administrative activities. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
General fund, NPDES fund, Congestion Relief fund, and Congestion Management fund. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On April 24, 2022, the C/CAG Board of Directors adopted Resolution 22-16 authorizing the C/CAG 
Executive Director to execute an agreement with Mariposa Planning Solutions (Consultant) for the 
C/CAG Equity Assessment and Framework Development Project (Project). The C/CAG Board was 
updated with presentations by staff and the Consultant. The sixth meeting culminated in the Board’s 
adoption of Resolution 23-99, approving the C/CAG Equity Assessment and Framework 
Development Project Final Report and Action Plan on December 14, 2023. 
 
In the first six months since the adoption of the Action Plan, staff have implemented many of the 35 
actions, especially those that could be implemented immediately. Some examples are the addition of 
Equity Impact Statements into all Board and Committee staff reports (Equity Action Plan #20). 
Another example is inclusion of language in new job postings (Equity Action Plan #12), expressing 
C/CAG’s commitment to equity and desire to hire applicants with equity knowledge and/or 
experience. 
 
Action 27 entails the creation of a database comprising contacts for Equity Focus Areas. The Action 
was integrated into the San Mateo County Shared Micromobility Community Outreach Plan, resulting 
in the development of a contact list for Community Based Organizations (CBOs).  The list is 
currently utilized for various community engagement efforts.  

ITEM 6 – Attachment 4 

51

mailto:scharpentier@smcgov.org


 
In all, 21 actions have been completed or substantially completed, although many of these items are 
ongoing.   For a complete list of actions and their status, staff has included Attachment 2 – Equity 
Action Plan Implementation Update to this staff report. 
 
Below are additional instances illustrating the integration of the Equity Assessment into the various 
operational aspects of C/CAG, categorized by program areas.  
 
General Organizational 
 

1. Equity Action Plan #5: The adopted Equity Assessment was emailed to all local elected 
officials in San Mateo County in March 2024.   

2. Equity Action Plan #12: The following language has been incorporated into the C/CAG’s job 
descriptions.  

 
“At C/CAG, we are committed to equity, which we define as actively identifying, 
acknowledging, and addressing historical and current disparities that might otherwise 
influence economic, health, and quality of life outcomes in the communities we serve.  We 
strive to foster a workplace where equity and inclusion are core values. We also aim to create 
an environment where all employees are treated with fairness and respect, regardless of their 
background, and one where their unique perspectives are celebrated. We are dedicated to 
building a diverse and inclusive workforce, and we welcome candidates who share our 
commitment to these values.” 
 
The ideal candidate possesses “knowledge of:  Principles and practices of equity centered 
processes and engagement with diverse communities and/or community organizations.” 
 

3. Equity Action Plan #13: The adopted Equity Assessment has been integrated into onboarding 
materials for new C/CAG Board of Director and/or committee members.  The same will be 
included in the onboarding of any new staff.   

4. Equity Action Plan #20:  Equity Sections have been added to all C/CAG Board Staff reports 
and  committee staff reports.   

 
5. Equity Action Plan #21:  Table 1 in attachment 1 has the reporting metrics for the recommended 

TDA Article 3 Call for Projects. The recommended Lifeline Transportation Call for Projects 
will be added to the June 13th Staff report.   Eight percent (80%) of the funding recommended 
as part of the TDA Article 3 call for projects is in or will benefit an Equity Focus Area or Equity 
Priority Community.  

 

Stormwater 
 

1. C/CAG’s application for the NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge grant for the 
“Implementing OneWatershed Climate Resilience Infrastructure in San Mateo County” project 
involved seven community-based organizations and/or non-profit organizations as core 
partners.  These organizations were strategically selected to advance climate justice and equity 

52



in climate adaptation planning. 
 
Safe Routes to School 

1. The SRTS program’s commitment to equity extends to educational opportunities, outreach 
events, and partnerships to improve safety in priority schools. 

 
2. The program prioritizes grant funding in schools that are in Equity Priority Communities. 

 
Lifeline Transportation Program 

1. The Lifeline Transportation Program funds projects, identified through the community-based 
transportation planning (CBTP) process, which improves the mobility of low-income residents.  

 
2. C/CAG issued a call for project in February 2024 and will bring recommended projects/program 

to the C/CAG Board at its June meeting.  Due to the nature of Lifeline Transportation funding, 
all the projects/programs funded are anticipated to benefit equity priority and Equity Focus 
Areas.   

 
3. Staff distributed the call for projects schedule, along with information on the two virtual C/CAG 

outreach meetings, to the CBO list.   
 
 
Local Roadway Safety Plan 

1. C/CAG Countywide Local Roadway Safety Plan identified prioritized project locations using 
social equity as one of three criteria. Specifically, identifying locations where safety projects 
would benefit disadvantaged populations. 

 
Micromobility 

1. Within the Shared Micromobility Community Outreach Plan, efforts were undertaken to solicit 
feedback and input from the community regarding station placement and equity program 
pricing. 

 
2. The Plan also created a Community Based Organization contact list and the team engaged with 

them through surveys and outreach events. 
 

3. The project’s subconsultant, Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition, partnered with Redwood City 
PAL, Friends for Youth, and Coastside on Bikes to host the free bike repair clinics in Daly City 
and North Fair Oaks. 

 
Shuttles and Community Based Transportation Plans (CBTP) 

1. San Mateo County Shuttle Program CFP for FY23/24 & 24/25 included revised scoring criteria 
to include a strong equity component (25 pts out of maximum 110).  Four shuttle routes are 
located within EPCs that received funding. 

 
2. Consultant contract to update to San Bruno/SSF CBTP was awarded.  The Plan is designed 

specifically to address access and mobility needs in the Equity Priority Communities (EPCs) 
within these communities, and projects identified will be prioritized in the LifeLine 
Transportation funding program.  The scope includes funding for CBOs to engage in the plan 
development process and provide input.   

53



 
TDA Article 3 
 

1. For the FY 2023/2024 cycle, staff proposed updated scoring criteria to prioritize equity and 
incentivize the development of more projects in underserved areas. Some of the changes from 
previous cycles are noted below: 
 
• In the previous TDA 3 cycle, project proposals received maximum points if they were 

mostly located within a C/CAG Equity Focus Area (EFA) or MTC Equity Priority 
Community (EPC). For this year’s cycle, 1 of 5 points were granted to projects that, while 
not falling within EFAs or EPCs, demonstrated a clear service to underserved areas or 
were adjacent to EFAs/EPCs.  

• In the previous TDA 3 cycle, project proposals received more points if applicants could 
provide higher local matches. For this year’s cycle, if a project was located mostly in a 
C/CAG EFA or MTC EPC, and provided at least the required 10% match, the project 
received the maximum 10 points. If a project was not located in an EFA or EPC, the 
applicant would need to provide a 50% local match to receive the maximum 10 points.  

• Project proposals also received 1 point if the applicant had previously applied for TDA 3 
funding for the same project in the past 10 years but was not awarded funding. This was to 
encourage jurisdictions to apply that may not have been awarded in recent years. 

 

2. In addition to C/CAG’s typical Call for Projects outreach to eligible jurisdictions, C/CAG 
distributed the Call for Projects to C/CAG’s Community Based Organization (CBO) list. 
C/CAG also hosted three Community Workshop meetings on Zoom open to members of the 
public C/CAG invited CBOs and interested members of the public to attend to learn more 
about the TDA Article 3 program, project eligibility, and to encourage public members to 
advocate for local projects that they would like to see built or improved within their 
communities.  
 

3. For this cycle, C/CAG received 10 applications. Eight of these applications were in an equity 
area, defined as located mostly within an EFA/EPC, or an area that is adjacent to an EFA/EPC 
or in a clearly underserved area. If approved by the C/CAG Board on May 9th, 80% of the 
total programming funding available will be awarded to projects in an equity area.  
 

4. See Attachment 1, Table 1 for a summary of projects within equity areas. C/CAG will 
continue to document the number of applicants and funded projects that fall within equity 
areas for future TDA cycles.   

The FY 2024-25 budget requests a total of $53,500 for completion of specific actions in the coming 
year. 

 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
This staff report provides an update on the advancement of C/CAG’s adopted Equity Framework and 

54



Action Plan, serving as an integral component of the ongoing Actions stipulated in the Plan.  It fulfills 
the requirement of reporting annually to the Board on implementation progress.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Table 1: Funding Summary 
2. Equity Action Plan Implementation Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



  

Table 1:  Funding Summary 
 

  

C/CAG 
Board of 
Directors 
Award 

Received 
applications 

Applications 
Funded  

Applications 
located 
mostly 

within an 
EFA/EPC 

Applications 
adjacent to 

EFA/EPC or in 
clearly 

underserved 
area 

Total 
Programming 

Funding 
Available 

Total Funding 
Recommended 

for 
Applications in 
Equity Areas 

% of Funding 
Recommended 
to Equity Areas 

TDA Article 3 
(DRAFT 
RECOMMENDED)  5/9/2024 

10 10 5 3 $2,590,706  $2,062,217  80% 

Lifeline 
Transportation 
(Draft 
Recommended)  6/13/2024 13 12 11 2 $4,500,000 $5,795,575 92% 

 
 
 
 

Attachment #1   

56



Draft Equity Action Plan Update  

 

C/CAG Equity Framework Action Plan

Report to C/CAG Board ‐ 2024
Category 1: Internal Equity (Organization and Administration)

Goal 1: Create and maintain internal equity reporting, feedback, coordination, and collaboration structures.

 

Actions Current Status
TBD FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

Ongoing

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

FY 2023‐24

$0

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

Goal 2: Continually strengthen and maintain internal organizational understanding, resources, and capacity.
Outcomes: 

         An increase in the number of staff, board, and committee members that are representative of EFA demographics and/or geographies.
         Staff, board, and committee members have a greater depth of credentials and/or lived experience relevant to equity advancement work.

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

   

TBD TBD $0

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

   

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing $0

 

TBD TBD

FY 2023‐24

Ongoing $0

Incorporated into recruitment language. FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

Incorporated into Onboarding materials FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

Ongoing   $2,000

 

FY 2024‐25 Ongoing $4,000

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

FYs 2023‐25

   

Outcome: The Equity Framework and Action Plan’s intent, commitments, and progress is communicated and in a constant state of implementation, with 
learning and adaptation along the way.

1.    Establish an Equity Lead among C/CAG staff to 
help implement the Framework and Action Plan and 
support the use of new equity approaches and tools.

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

2.    Convene and support the C/CAG Board of 
Directors (BOD) Equity Framework Ad Hoc 
Committee as needed to assist with Framework and 
Action Plan implementation. TBD

Completed

3.    Conduct an annual evaluation of gaps, progress, 
lessons learned, and next steps towards meeting 
Equity Framework goals, outcomes, and actions, 
including project and program-level goals and 
actions.

4.    Provide an Equity Framework overview and 
equity evaluation update to the C/CAG BOD and 
Committees and at least one additional relevant 
public meeting each year.

Completed & Ongoing as part of Equity Framework 
Overview. 

Partially completed - report developed and ready for 
presentation.

5.    Send C/CAG’s Equity Framework and Action 
Plan to all elected officials in San Mateo County, 
with C/CAG’s annual equity evaluation and progress 
updates.

6.    Obtain additional sources of funding to help 
implement the Equity Framework and Action Plan 
and provide staff and leadership with needed 
support. 

Completed and Ongoing.

Ongoing.  Applied for RAISE and CALTRANS 
planning grants for implementing updated mapping. 

9. Conduct outreach to equity-focused CBOs to fill 
vacant public member seats for applicable 
committees (CMEQ RMCP).

10.    Explore developing a stipend policy for public 
members on C/CAG committees to increase the 
quantity and diversity of applicants for open 
committee seats.

Completed and ongoing using CBO EFA database 
created as part of Goal #27. 

TBD

7.    Consider adding equity focused seats to the 
Congestion Management & Environmental Quality 
(CMEQ) and Resource Management and Climate 
Protection (RMCP) committees.
8.    Incorporate equity criteria in recruitment and 
selection of new candidates for open public 
committee member seats and encourage greater 
EFA geographic and demographic representation 
for appointed seats. 

TBD

Initiated for current and future recruitments.

11.    Work with the County on all C/CAG HR actions 
to identify opportunities to leverage their equity-
oriented Human Resources Action Plan, staffing, 
and other HR resources.

12.    To the extent possible, incorporate equity 
expertise as a desired qualification in job 
descriptions for all relevant staff positions. 

Working with County Equity Office to both leverage 
County resources and participate in Community of 
Practice.

13.    Ensure that the Equity Framework is included in 
all onboarding materials for C/CAG Staff, Board 
members, new staff, and Committee members.

14.    All staff participate in an agency-wide diversity, 
equity, inclusion, and belonging (DEIB) training on an 
annual basis and at least one equity-focused 
professional development activity of their choice 
every two years, including County of San Mateo 
equity trainings available to C/CAG staff. 

In process. Staff are particpating in County 
foundational equity trainings. Equity Lead  will 
identify next level tranings.

15.    Provide the Board of Directors (BOD) with an 
annual presentation from an expert in the field on 
emerging equity themes relevant to C/CAG’s 
activities. Including in Budget

57



Draft Equity Action Plan Update  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal 3: Promote economic justice and shared prosperity through procurement opportunities.

Outcome: C/CAG creates more procurement opportunities for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE).
 

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

  TBD TBD

FY 2024‐25

Category 2: C/CAG-Led Plans, Projects, Policies, Programs, and Grant Funding Opportunities

Outcomes: 

         Equity is integrated in the design of projects, programs, funding calls, and other actions and initiatives.

         All applicable planning efforts, projects, and programs assess equity needs, impacts, and benefits, and convey results to the public, C/CAG committees & board.

         C/CAG staff, board, and committees have a clear understanding of how and which programs, projects, plans, and grant funded programs and projects are advancing equity.

         C/CAG-led or sponsored programs, projects, plans, and funding improves outcomes in EFA communities.

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

$0

  Ongoing  
$0

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

$0

 

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing $0

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

$0

  FY 2024‐25

TBD $0
 

FY 2023‐24 $0

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

 

   

16.    Explore C/CAG’s needs and goals around 
inclusive procurement and identify next steps and 
tools to achieve those goals. TBD

19.    Include an appropriately-scaled equity analysis, 
assessing benefits and burdens of proposed 
actions, in all projects, programs, and planning 
efforts.

20.    Provide the board and committees with a new 
Equity Section within staff reports to communicate 
benefits, burdens, and recommendations at the 
project, plan, program, and funding approval stage.

17.    Join a procurement platform so SBE and DBE 
businesses can sign up to receive notification of 
C/CAG procurement opportunities.

18.    Use C/CAG’s Equity Evaluation Review (EER) 
Tool to assist staff and decision makers in 
considering a range of equity considerations in the 
early stages of project, plan, program, and funding 
call design.

Working on identifying a procurement platform that 
is both public and "accessible". May be able to 
leverage County's use of platform.

Goal 4: Infuse a pro-equity approach in C/CAG-led or sponsored projects, programs, plans, and grant funding opportunities to maximize benefits for Equity 
Focus Area (EFA) geographies and demographics.

Tool available to staff and being used.

Ongoing and in progress

Completed for all Committees and Board

21.    Establish reporting metrics relevant to C/CAG 
grant programs to evaluate and report on progress 
towards achieving equitable outcomes, including the 
percentage of funds benefiting EFA geographies 
and/or demographics.

22.    Evaluate C/CAG grantmaking spending and 
consider changes to project selection criteria, 
including the number of points that are allocated for 
equity outcomes and equitable engagement, & the 
degree to which a local match for projects located in 
EFAs is required.

Completed and ongoing.  See Table 1 in Equity 
Assessment.  

Ongoing using data collected through #21.  

23.    Leverage outside funding whenever possible to 
assist EFAs with technical assistance for applicable 
state and regional funding applications.

24.    Center equity and climate resiliency in C/CAG’s 
upcoming strategic planning.

Need to determine best approach.

Included in Strategic Planning effort.

58



Draft Equity Action Plan Update  

 

Category 3: EFA Community Engagement, Empowerment, & Accountability

Goal 5: Build and maintain trust, transparency, and lasting relationships with EFA-serving CBOs.

Outcomes: 
         Create an organized and centralized repository of CBO and community leader contacts for partnership, information sharing, and other engagement opportunities.
         Decision makers, EFA stakeholders, and the broader community are informed of progress towards meeting Equity Framework goals. 
         EFA-serving CBOs are resourced to support C/CAG in reaching impacted and underserved populations and to provide valuable input and perspective.
         C/CAG projects, programs, planning efforts, and funding calls are increasingly effective at meaningfully engaging EFA-serving CBOs and other equity stakeholders.

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

25.    Design equitable public participation plans for 
relevant C/CAG plans and projects, including: 
   a.    An emphasis on sufficient funding for outreach 
to areas of greatest need. FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

   b.    Use of equitable communication and public 
participation strategies tailored towards EFA 
audiences. $0

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

$0

FY 2024‐24 Ongoing and to updated

$0

FY 2023‐24 Ongoing

TBD TBD

Goal 6: Use data and mapping to increase understanding and awareness of existing disparities and opportunities to advance equity.

Outcome: C/CAG staff leverage data, mapping, and analytical tools that are improved over time.

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

FY 2024‐25& TBD

$20,000

2025-26 or later

2025-26 or later

Category 4: Countywide Leadership, Coalition Building, and Advocacy

Goal 7: Provide countywide leadership.

Outcome: Through actions within the agency and as part of its role as a regional convener, C/CAG is increasingly seen as a leader in equity advancement efforts in San Mateo County.

Actions
TBD

FY2024‐25 Budget 

Requests

Completed Ongoing

$0

FY 2024‐25

$0

FY 2023‐24  Ongoing

$0

FY 2024‐25

  $7,500

  Total $53,500

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

27.    Establish and maintain a database of Equity 
Focus Area (EFA) contacts that C/CAG staff can 
use for communications and community 
engagement purposes.

28.    Use C/CAG’s EFA database to inform equity-
focused CBOs of nonprofit funding opportunities 
within calls for projects, opportunities to serve on 
C/CAG Committees, and other opportunities to 
improve equitable public participation.

Ongoing. Applied for Federal RAISE grant and 
Caltrans planning grant for this scope as part of the 
update to the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Plan. 

32.    Work with other county-level agencies to 
coordinate mapping and data use, including 
opportunities to create unified Equity Focus Area 
maps.

Planned for FY 2024-25

Completed and ongoing.  Email data base is utilized 
for calls for projects and committee recruitments. 

Excel spreadsheet of CBOs and community 
contacts has been developed.

Staff has begun research on Agencies and CBOs to 
possible partner with for an annual scholarship for a 
recipent in San Mateo County (APA, ITS, WTS, 
Minetta, COMTO).

Staff aware of need to participate and promote 
C/CAG's Equity priorities.

35.    Encourage regional and state standards that 
support C/CAG Equity Framework Goals, including 
within grants funding guidelines.

31.    Update Equity Focus Area maps and 
associated demographic indicators such as race, 
income, and seniors 75 years and over) for each 
applicable C/CAG program area within five years 
and every five years thereafter based on available 
data, changing demographics and community 
conditions, EFA input, and other considerations.

Ongoing.  Applied for Federal RAISE grant and 
Caltrans planning grant for this scope as part of the 
update to the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Plan. 

Completed - incorporated

36.    Support the next generation of equity focused 
planners and engineers, including exploring options 
for funding relevant scholarships for students in the 
region.

33.    Include equity in annual legislative priorities and 
actively support legislation that helps advance Equity 
Framework goals. 

34.    Help SMC cities and the County meet equity 
standards in new state/federal requirements, 
including obtaining HCD’s Prohousing Designation, 
by sharing equity best practices and other 
strategies.

FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25

29.    Complete a study on improving language 
accessibility in C/CAG’s materials and website with 
plan for necessary updates. 

30.    Establish and update an online equity 
dashboard, storyboard, and/or other data reporting 
and visualization strategies to share progress on 
data and performance measures relevant to 
C/CAG’s Equity Framework, program areas, and 
activities.

TBD

Could be coordinated with webaite update.

26.    Incorporate adequate budget to support 
participation and input from EFA-serving CBOs and 
community leaders in C/CAG projects, grant 
proposals, and planning efforts (Obtain feedback on 
the methodology and funding amount from CBOs)

Ongoing.  Elements included in recently awarded 
Community Based Transportation Plan for San 
Bruno and SSF. 

Ongoing.  Elements included in recently awarded 
Community Based Transportation Plan for San 
Bruno and SSF. 

59



 ITEM 7 

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date:  May 22, 2024 
 
TO:  C/CAG Finance Committee 
 
From:  Sean Charpentier, Executive Director  
 
Subject: Receive a copy of the Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) 

Programs as of June 30, 2023 and GASB 75 Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2024 

  
(For further information or response to questions Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Finance Committee receive a copy of the Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-Employment 
Benefit (OPEB) Programs as of June 30, 2023 and GASB 75 Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2024.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Cost to prepare the updated actuarial valuation report for OPEB liabilities is $5,850. 
 
REVENUE SOURCES: 
 
Funding for the report preparation is from C/CAG General Fund. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted accounting and financial reporting 
standards provide requirements for the accounting and financial reporting by employers for post-
employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).  C/CAG provides post-employment benefits in the 
form of health insurance for retirees.  C/CAG has elected to prefund OPEB through CalPERS Trust.  
See additional background information in the section below.  
 
The California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund is an Internal Revenue Code Section 
115, multiple-employer OPEB trust fund and has a fiduciary responsibility for financial reporting in 
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 74. C/CAG is required to 
submit a renewal OPEB Valuation at least every two years, including the Certificate of Funding Policy.  
 
C/CAG engaged MacLeod Watts, Inc., an actuarial services firm, to prepare the updated actuarial 
valuation of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities to comply with GASB 75. The Principal 
Actuary of MacLeod Watts, prior to founding the firm, was the Director of Post-Employment Benefits at 
Bickmore & Associates, which provided services to C/CAG since 2012. 
 
Although GASB 75 requires that updated calculations be prepared after the close of every fiscal year 

60



end, each valuation may typically be used for two years (fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 and fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2024) in the development of the plan accounting under GASB 75.   
 
This report presents the results derived from the actuarial valuation conducted on June 30, 2023 
(Measurement date of June 30, 2023) of the Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) program of 
C/CAG.  The purposes of this valuation are to: 
 

1. Develop Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) levels for prefunding plan benefits. 
2. Provide information required by the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT). 
3. Assess the OPEB liabilities and provide disclosure information as required by Statement No. 75 

of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB 75) for the fiscal year ending                  
June 30, 2023. 

 
Below is a brief summary of Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) and other related data excerpt 
from the report: 

 
 
 
 
 

61



 
 

 
 
Additional background information: 
 
In compliance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 45, C/CAG 
retained Bickmore & Associates, an actuarial firm, in 2012 to prepare the Actuarial Valuation of the 
Other Post-Employment Benefit Programs.  This valuation was conducted as of July 1, 2012, and 
covered fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2015.  That actuarial valuation was updated in 
June 2016 for fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017.  
 
On June 11, 2015, the C/CAG Board approved Resolution 15-33 authorizing an agreement and election 
of C/CAG to prefund OPEB through CalPERS – California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Program 
(CERBT).  On June 11, 2015, the C/CAG Board also approved a funding policy in the amount of 
$30,000 to cover the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) as initial investment into the CERBT trust 
and selected Asset Allocation Strategy 2 for FY 2014-15. Subsequently, C/CAG adopted the below 
Resolutions authorizing the prefunding of OPEB through CalPERS Trust as follows: 
 
Resolution 15-xx prefunding of $30,000 for FY 2014-15. 
Resolution 16-21 prefunding of $27,000 for FY 2015-16.   
Resolution 17-26 prefunding of $25,000 for FY 2016-17. 
Resolution 18-37 prefunding of $44,631 for FY 2017-18. 
Resolution 19-34 prefunding of $42,802 for FY 2018-19. 
Resolution 20-39 prefunding of $48,452 for FY 2019-20. 
Resolution 21-26 prefunding of $40,244 for FY 2020-21. 
Resolution 22-58 prefunding of $20,823 for FY 2021-22. 
Resolution 23-62 prefunding of $55,000 for FY 2022-23. 
Resolution 24-xx prefunding of $55,000 for FY2023-24. 
 
In total, C/CAG invested $381,288 in the CERBT Trust, with the account ending balance of $101,122 
on June 30, 2023.   
 
Funds deposited into an irrevocable trust may only be used to pay retiree medical benefits. However, 
should C/CAG stop prefunding retiree medical benefits, it may withdraw funds from the trust, as 
needed, to pay retiree medical benefits. Also, if C/CAG were ever able to completely extinguish its 
retiree medical liability, any funds remaining in the trust would be returned to C/CAG. 
 

62



In October 2021, the Finance Committee directed C/CAG staff to make higher annual payments to 
CALPERS to address C/CAG’s CALPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability. C/CAG staff also 
recommended working with the Finance Committee annually during the budget process to identify the 
recommended annual payment amount to be included in the Draft Agency budget submitted to the 
Board for adoption.   The draft FY2024-2025 budget includes an amount of $55,000 for OPEB payment.  
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.    
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

1. Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Programs as of June 30, 2023 
and GASB 75 Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 

63



Portland, OR • 503.419.0466 • www.macleodwatts.com 

April 19, 2024 

Sean Charpentier 
Executive Director 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
555 County Center, 5th Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063 

DRAFT 

Re:   City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County Other Post-Employment 
Benefits Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

Dear Mr. Charpentier: 

We are pleased to enclose our actuarial report providing financial information about the other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo 
County.  The primary purposes of this report are to:  

1) Remeasure plan liabilities as of June 30, 2023, in accordance with GASB 75’s biennial valuation 
requirement,

2) Develop Actuarially Determined Contributions levels for prefunding plan benefits,

3) Provide information to be submitted to the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT)
to satisfy filing requirements for the trust, and

4) Provide information required by GASB 75 (“Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension”) to be reported in C/CAG’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

The exhibits presented in this report reflect C/CAG’s established practice of contributing 100% of the 
Actuarially Determined Contributions each year. We assumed that OPEB trust assets remain in CERBT 
Asset Allocation Strategy 2. We based the valuation on the employee data, details on plan benefits 
and retiree benefit payments reported to us by C/CAG. Please review our summary of this information 
to be comfortable that it is consistent with your records. Note: Contributions and payroll for fiscal 
year 2023/24 shown in this report are estimates which should be updated after the close of the year. 

We appreciate the opportunity to work on this analysis and acknowledge staff who provided valuable 
information to enable us to prepare this report. Please let us know if we can be of further assistance. 

Sincerely, 

Catherine L. MacLeod, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA 
Principal & Consulting Actuary

Enclosure 

ATTACHMENT 1

64

http://www.macleodwatts.com/


Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  

Table of Contents 

A. Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................ 1 
OPEB Obligations of C/CAG ....................................................................................................... 1 
OPEB Funding Policy .................................................................................................................. 2 
Actuarial Assumptions ............................................................................................................... 2 
Important Dates for GASB 75 in this Report ............................................................................. 2 
Updates Since the Prior Report ................................................................................................. 3 
Impact on Statement of Net Position and OPEB Expense for Fiscal Year Ending 2024 ............ 3 
Important Notices ..................................................................................................................... 3 

B. Valuation Process ........................................................................................................................... 4 

C. Valuation Results as of June 30, 2023 ............................................................................................ 6 

D. Accounting Information (GASB 75) ................................................................................................ 9 
Components of Net Position and Expense ................................................................................ 9 
Change in Net Position During the Fiscal Year ........................................................................ 10 
Change in Fiduciary Net Position During the Measurement Period ....................................... 11 
Expected Long-term Return on Trust Assets ........................................................................... 11 
Recognition Period for Deferred Resources ............................................................................ 12 
Deferred Resources as of Fiscal Year End and Expected Future Recognition ......................... 12 
Sensitivity of Liabilities to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate ... 13 
Schedule of Changes in C/CAG’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ................................ 14 
Schedule of Contributions ....................................................................................................... 16 
Detail of Changes to Net Position............................................................................................ 17 
Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources ...................................................... 18 
Detail of C/CAG Contributions to the Plan .............................................................................. 19 
Projected Benefit Payments (15-year projection) ................................................................... 20 
Sample Journal Entries ............................................................................................................ 21 

E. Funding Information ..................................................................................................................... 22 

F. Certification .................................................................................................................................. 26 

G. Supporting Information ................................................................................................................ 27 
Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions ................................................................. 28 
Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions ................................................................. 29 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions .................................................................... 30 

Appendix 1: Important Background Information ................................................................................ 37 

Appendix 2: MacLeod Watts Age Rating Methodology ....................................................................... 42 

Appendix 3: MacLeod Watts Mortality Projection Methodology ....................................................... 43 

Glossary ................................................................................................................................................ 44 

65



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  1 

A. Executive Summary 
 
This report presents the results of the June 30, 2023, actuarial valuation and accounting information 
about the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) of the City/County Association of Governments of 
San Mateo County (C/CAG). The purposes of this report are to: 1) summarize the valuation results; 2) 
develop Actuarially Determined Contribution levels for prefunding the benefits; 3) provide information 
required by the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust; (CERBT) and 4) provide disclosure 
information required by Statement No. 75 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 75) 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 
 
Important background information regarding the valuation process can be found in Appendix 1. We 
recommend users of the report read this information to familiarize themselves with the process and 
context of actuarial valuations, including the requirements of GASB 75. The pages following this 
executive summary present exhibits and other information relevant for disclosures under GASB 75.  
 
Results of the June 30, 2023, valuation will likely be applied to prepare C/CAG’s GASB 75 report for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. If there are any significant changes in plan members, plan benefits or 
eligibility and/or OPEB funding policy, however, an earlier valuation may be required or appropriate. 

OPEB Obligations of C/CAG  

Continuation of medical coverage to C/CAG retirees creates the following types of OPEB liabilities:  

• Explicit subsidy liabilities: An “explicit subsidy” exists when the employer contributes directly 
toward the cost of retiree healthcare. In this program, C/CAG pays a portion of medical premiums 
for qualifying retirees. These benefits are described in Supporting Information, Section 2.  

• Implicit subsidy liabilities: An “implicit subsidy” exists when premiums are developed using 
blended active and retiree claims experience. In this situation, premiums charged for retirees may 
not be sufficient to cover expected medical claims1 and the premiums charged for active employees 
are said to “implicitly subsidize” retirees.  This OPEB program includes implicit subsidy liabilities for 
retiree coverage prior to coverage under Medicare. 

• Other subsidy liabilities: In the CalPERS medical program, the premium rates for Medicare-covered 
retirees are based only on retiree claims experience of the pool. Pooled plans that do not blend 
active and retiree premiums likely generate subsidies between employers and retirees within the 
pool.  An actuarial practice note indicates these subsidies should be included in plan liabilities to 
the extent they are paid by the employer.2  We generally expect these subsidies to be small and 
included any such liability with the implicit subsidy liability in this report. 

 
We determine explicit subsidy liabilities using the expected direct payments promised by the plan 
toward retiree coverage.  We determine the implicit and other subsidy liabilities as the projected 
difference between (a) estimated retiree medical claim costs by age and (b) premiums charged for 
retiree coverage. For more information on MacLeod Watts’ age rating methodology, see Appendix 2. 

 
1 In rare situations, premiums for retiree coverage may be high enough that they subsidize active employees’ claims. 
2 Exceptions exist for: 1) Medicare Advantage Plans: these plans are treated as if their premiums are age-based due to 
the nature of the Federal subsidies paid to these plans.  2) Plans with low explicit subsidies to Medicare-covered 
retirees: in these plans no part of any potential pool subsidy is expected to be paid by the employer. 

66



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  2 

Executive Summary 
(Continued) 

OPEB Funding Policy 

C/CAG’s OPEB funding policy affects the calculation of liabilities by impacting the discount rate that is 
used to develop the plan liability and expense. “Prefunding” is the term used when an agency 
consistently contributes an amount based on an actuarially determined contribution (ADC) each year. 
GASB 75 allows prefunded plans to use a discount rate that reflects the expected earnings on trust 
assets. Pay-as-you-go, or “PAYGO”, is the term used when an agency only contributes the required 
retiree benefits when due. When an agency finances retiree benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, GASB 
75 requires the use of a discount rate equal to a 20-year high grade municipal bond rate.  
 
C/CAG continues to prefund its OPEB liability, consistently contributing 100% or more of the Actuarially 
Determined Contributions each year. With C/CAG’s approval, the discount rate used for accounting 
purposes and to develop Actuarially Determined Contributions for plan funding is 5.50%. Information 
on how this rate was determined is provided on page 12, Expected Return on Trust Assets.  

Actuarial Assumptions  

The actuarial “demographic” assumptions (i.e., rates of retirement, death, disability or other 
termination of employment) used in this report were chosen, for the most part, to be the same as the 
actuarial demographic assumptions used for the most recent valuation of the retirement plan(s) 
covering C/CAG employees. Other assumptions, such as age-related healthcare claims, healthcare 
trend, retiree participation rates and spouse coverage, were selected based on demonstrated plan 
experience and/or our best estimate of expected future experience. All these assumptions, and more, 
impact expected future benefits.  
 
Please note that this valuation has been prepared on a closed group basis. This means that only 
employees and retirees present as of the valuation date are considered. We do not consider 
replacement employees for those we project to leave the current population of plan participants until 
the valuation date following their employment. 
 
We emphasize that this actuarial valuation provides a projection of future results based on many 
assumptions. Actual results are likely to vary to some extent and we will continue to monitor these 
assumptions in future valuations. See Section 3 for a description of assumptions used in this valuation. 

Important Dates for GASB 75 in this Report  

GASB 75 allows reporting liabilities as of any fiscal year end based on: (1) a valuation date no more than 
30 months plus 1 day prior to the close of the fiscal year end; and (2) a measurement date up to one 
year prior to the close of the fiscal year. The following dates were used for this report: 
 

Fiscal Year End    June 30, 2024 

Measurement Date   June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period   June 30, 2022, to June 30, 2023 
Valuation Date    June 30, 2023 

67



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  3 

Executive Summary 
(Concluded) 

Updates Since the Prior Report 

Executive management benefits have changed since the June 2021 valuation was prepared. Updated 
employee census and premium data was provided and with this new information, we determined plan 
experience, the difference between actual and expected liability results since the prior valuation. We 
also reviewed and updated certain assumptions used to project the OPEB liability. Investment 
experience, the difference between actual and expected return on trust assets) was also determined. 
 
The Net OPEB Liability on the current measurement date is higher than that reported one year ago.  
Section C presents the new valuation results and provides additional information on the impact of the 
new assumptions and plan experience. See Recognition Period for Deferred Resources on page 13 for 
details on how these changes are recognized.  

Impact on Statement of Net Position and OPEB Expense for Fiscal Year Ending 2024 

The plan’s impact to Net Position will be the sum of difference between assets and liabilities as of the 
measurement date plus the unrecognized net outflows and inflows of resources.  
 

 

Important Notices  

This report is intended to be used only to present the actuarial information relating to other 
postemployment benefits for C/CAG’s financial statements. The results of this report may not be 
appropriate for other purposes, where other assumptions, methodology and/or actuarial standards of 
practice may be required or more suitable. We note that various issues in this report may involve legal 
analysis of applicable law or regulations. C/CAG should consult counsel on these matters; MacLeod 
Watts does not practice law and does not intend anything in this report to constitute legal advice. In 
addition, we recommend C/CAG consult with their internal accounting staff or external auditor or 
accounting firm about the accounting treatment of OPEB liabilities.  

Items

 For Reporting At
Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2024 

Total OPEB Liability 482,410$                      

Fiduciary Net Position (381,288)                       

Net OPEB Liability 101,122$                     

Adjustment for Deferred Resources:

     Deferred (Outflows) (104,112)                      

     Deferred Inflows 20,720                           

Impact on Statement of Net Position 17,730$                         

OPEB Expense, FYE 6/30/2024 34,964$                        

68



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  4 

B. Valuation Process 
 
This valuation is based on employee census data and benefits initially submitted by C/CAG and clarified 
in various related communications. A summary of the employee data is provided in Section 1 and a 
summary of the plan benefits is provided in Section 2. While individual employee records have been 
reviewed to verify that they are reasonable in various respects, the data has not been audited and we 
have otherwise relied on C/CAG as to its accuracy. The valuation has been performed in accordance 
with the process described below using the actuarial methods and assumptions described in Section 3 
and is consistent with our understanding of Actuarial Standards of Practice.  
 
In projecting benefit values and liabilities, we first determine an expected premium or benefit stream 
over each current retiree’s or active employee’s future retirement. Benefits may include both direct 
employer payments (explicit subsidies) and any implicit subsidies arising when retiree premiums are 
expected to be partially subsidized by premiums paid for active employees. The projected benefit 
streams reflect assumed trends in the cost of those benefits and assumptions as to the expected dates 
when benefits will end. Assumptions regarding the probability that each employee will remain in 
service to receive benefits and the likelihood that employees will elect coverage for themselves and 
their dependents are also applied.  
 
We then calculate the present value of these future benefit streams by discounting the value of each 
future expected employer payment back to the valuation date using the valuation discount rate. This 
present value is called the Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVPB) and represents the current value 
of all expected future plan payments to current retirees and current active employees. Note that this 
long-term projection does not anticipate entry of future employees.  

 

The next step in the valuation process splits the Present Value of Projected Benefits into 1) the value 
of benefits already earned by prior service of current employees and retirees and 2) the value of 
benefits expected to be earned by future service of current employees. Actuaries employ an 
“attribution method” to divide the PVPB into prior service liabilities and future service liabilities. For 
this valuation we used the Entry Age Normal attribution method. This method is the most commonly 
used for government funding purposes and the only attribution method allowed for financial reporting 
under GASB 75.  
 
We call the value of benefits deemed earned by prior service the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL). 
Benefits deemed earned by service of active employees in a single year is called the Normal Cost of  
 

*

*
Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
Value of assets set aside to pay 

future benefits

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 
(UAAL):   Prior service benefits 

requiring future funding

* Normal Cost -- value of benefits earned by active 
employees in the year following the valuation date.  
This amount is part of each year's contribution.

* Amortization Payment -- amount added to the annual 
contribution to pay down the UAAL that exists on the valuation date.

                                 Valuation Date       
Benefits earned by prior service Benefits earned by future service

Present Value of Projected Benefit (PVPB)
Present value as of the valuation date of all future benefits expected to be paid to current and former employees

Actuarial Accrued Liability  (AAL)
Present value as of the valuation date of all benefits deemed earned

by prior service of current employees and retirees.

Future Earned Benefits
Present value of benefits expected to be earned 

by future service of current employees

69



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  5 

Valuation Process 
(Concluded) 
 
benefits. The present value of all future normal costs (PVFNC) plus the Actuarial Accrued Liability will 
equal the Present Value of Projected Benefits (i.e., PVPB = AAL + PVFNC).  
 
The difference between the value of trust assets (i.e., the Market Value of Assets), or a smoothed asset 
value (i.e., the Actuarial Value of Assets), and the Actuarial Accrued Liability yields the Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL).  The UAAL represents, as of the valuation date, the present value 
of benefits already earned by past service that remain unfunded.  A plan is generally considered “fully 
funded” when the UAAL is zero.  The plan sponsor of a fully funded plan will still need to make future 
contributions for benefits earned by future service of actives employees.  But in a fully funded plan, the 
plan sponsor has set aside sufficient assets to pay for benefits that have been earned by past service of 
current retirees and active employees if all valuation assumptions are realized.   
 
Future contributions by C/CAG will fund 1) the remaining part of OPEB benefits earned by past service 
(the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability) and 2) the value of benefits earned each year by service of 
active employees.  Various strategies might be employed to pay down the UAAL such as longer or 
shorter amortization payments, and flat or escalating payments depending on the plan sponsors goals 
and funding philosophy.   

Variation in Future Results 

Please note that projections of future benefits over such long periods (frequently 70 or more years) 
which are dependent on numerous assumptions regarding future economic and demographic variables 
are subject to substantial revision as future events unfold.  While we believe that the assumptions and 
methods used in this valuation are reasonable for the purposes of this report, the costs to C/CAG 
reflected in this report are subject to future revision, perhaps materially.  Demonstrating the range of 
potential future plan costs was beyond the scope of our assignment except to the limited extent of 
providing liability information at various discount rates. 
 
Certain actuarial terms and GASB 75 terms may be used interchangeably, as shown below. Specific 
results from this valuation are provided in the following Section C. 
 

 
 
 

Actuarial Terminology GASB 75 Terminology

Present Value of Projected Benefits  (PVPB) No equivalent term

Actuarial Accrued Liability  (AAL) Total OPEB Liability (TOL)

Market Value of Assets (MVA) Fiduciary Net Position

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) No equivalent term

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) Net OPEB Liability

Normal Cost Service Cost

70



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  6 

C. Valuation Results as of June 30, 2023 
 
This Section presents the basic results of our recalculation of the OPEB liability using the updated 
employee data, plan provisions and asset information provided to us for the June 30, 2023, valuation. 
We described the general process for projecting all future benefits to be paid to retirees and current 
employees in the preceding Section.  Expected annual benefits have been projected on the basis of the 
actuarial assumptions outlined in Supporting Information, Section 3. 
 
Lifetime medical coverage and premium benefits are offered for qualifying retirees who enroll in the 
coverage offered by C/CAG. Please see Supporting Information, Section 2 for details.  
   
The following graph illustrates the annual other post-employment benefits projected to be paid on 
behalf of current retirees and current employees expected to retire from C/CAG.  
 

 
 

• The amounts shown in green reflect the expected payment by C/CAG toward retiree premiums.  

• Those shown in yellow reflect the implicit subsidy and/or Medicare pool subsidy benefits 
provided (i.e., the excess of estimated retiree medical and prescription drug claims over the 
premiums expected to be charged during the year for retirees’ coverage).  

• The projections in gray reflect increases in benefit levels if healthcare trend were 1% higher.  
 
The first 15 years of benefit payments from the graph above are shown in tabular form on page 20.  
 
Liabilities relating to these projected benefits are shown beginning on the following page.

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

 $120,000

2024 2034 2044 2054 2064 2074

OPEB Payments
Projected to be Paid During Retirement to Current Employees and Retirees

Explicit Payments Implicit Payments Trend +1%

71



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  

7 

Valuation Results as of June 30, 2023 
(Continued) 
 
This chart compares the results measured as of June 30, 2022, based on the prior valuation, with the results measured as of June 30, 2023, based on 
the current valuation.   
 

 

The Net OPEB Liability has decreased by $81,726 from that reported one year ago. Some of this change was expected and some was unexpected. 
Reasons for the change in the TOL are discussed on the following page. 

Fiscal Year Ending
Measurement Date

Discount rate

Actives
Retirees
Total Participants

OPEB Subsidy Type

Actives $ 348,029      $ 83,110        $ 431,139      $ 207,501      $ 87,281        $ 294,782      
Retirees 151,658      (6,473)         145,185      339,127      38,531        377,658      
Total APVPB 499,687      76,637        576,324      546,628      125,812      672,440      

Actives 280,210      72,515        352,725      80,525        24,227        104,752      
Retirees 151,658      (6,473)         145,185      339,127      38,531        377,658      
TOL 431,868      66,042        497,910      419,652      62,758        482,410      

Fiduciary Net Position 315,062      381,288      

Net OPEB Liability 182,848      101,122      

5,848           1,016           6,864           12,520        7,091           19,611        

Actuarial Present Value of  Projected Benefits 

Total OPEB Liability (TOL)

Service Cost
For the period following the measurement date

Valuation Date 6/30/2021

Number of Covered Employees

6/30/2023

6/30/2022 6/30/2023
6/30/2023 6/30/2024

Total

5.50% 5.50%

2
2
4

2
3
5

Explicit Implicit Total Explicit Implicit

72



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
8 

Valuation Results as of June 30, 2023 
(Concluded) 
 
Expected NOL changes: The NOL was expected to decrease by $74,333, from additional service and 
interest costs accruing for the period reduced by employer contributions and earnings on trust assets.  
 

Unexpected NOL changes further decreased the NOL by $7,393 and fall into one of these categories:  

• Investment experience: Trust asset return fell short of the expected earnings by $7,521. 
• Benefit changes: The maximum benefit provided for Executive Management employees was 

decreased, which decreased the NOL by $7,809. 
• Plan experience increased the TOL by $1,369 reflecting results different than expected based on 

the prior valuation data and assumptions. The primary reasons are shown in the chart below.  
• Assumption changes collectively decreased the TOL by $8,474. These changes are listed below, 

with additional information provided on the last page in Supporting Information, Section 3. 
 
This chart reconciles results measured as of June 30, 2022, to results measured on June 30, 2023.   
 

  

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2023
Measurement Date 6/30/2022

497,910$       315,062$       182,848$       

  Expected Changes During the Period:
     Service Cost 6,864             6,864             
     Interest Cost 26,820           26,820           
     Expected Investment Income 18,838           (18,838)          
     Employer Contributions 89,270           (89,270)          
     Trust Administrative Expenses (91)                 91                   
     Benefit Payments (34,270)          (34,270)          -                    

  Total Expected Changes During the Period (586)               73,747           (74,333)          

Expected at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2024
Measurement Date 6/30/2023

497,324$       388,809$       108,515$       

  Unexpected Changes During the Period:

    Change Due to Investment Experience (7,521)            7,521             

    Change Due to Benefit Changes (7,809)            (7,809)            

    Plan Experience: Liability Changes Other Than Expected 1,369             

    Assumption Changes:
       Update To Healthcare Trend (14,138)          
       Updated Demographic Assumptions 5,664             
            Change Due to Assumption Changes (8,474)               

  Total Unexpected Changes During the Period (14,914)          (7,521)            (7,393)            

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2024
Measurement Date 6/30/2023

482,410$       381,288$       101,122$       

Reconciliation of Changes
During Measurement Period

 Total OPEB
Liability

(a) 

 Fiduciary
Net Position

(b) 

 Net OPEB
Liability

(c) = (a) - (b) 

73



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
9 

D. Accounting Information (GASB 75)  
 
The following exhibits are designed to satisfy the reporting and disclosure requirements of GASB 75 for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.  C/CAG is classified for GASB 75 purposes as a single employer. 
Deferred Contributions and covered payroll for fiscal year 2023/24 shown in this Section are estimates 
subject to change based on the final reported amounts.  

Components of Net Position and Expense  

The exhibit below shows the development of Net Position and Expense as of the Measurement Date. 
 

   Plan Summary Information for FYE June 30, 2024
Measurement Date is June 30, 2023

C/CAG

Items Impacting Net Position:

     Total OPEB Liability 482,410$    
     Fiduciary Net Position (381,288)      

     Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 101,122      

     Deferred (Outflows) Due to: 
           Assumption Changes (15,771)       
           Plan Experience (5,232)         
           Investment Experience (44,385)       
           Deferred Contributions (38,724)       

     Deferred Inflows Due to: 
           Assumption Changes 6,574          
           Plan Experience -               
           Investment Experience 14,146         

     Impact on Statement of Net Position, FYE 6/30/2024 17,730$       

Items Impacting OPEB Expense:

     Service Cost 6,864$        
     Cost of Plan Changes (7,809)         
     Interest Cost 26,820        
     Expected Earnings on Assets (18,838)       
     Trust Administrative Expenses 91                

     Recognition of Deferred Outflows:
          Assumption Changes 14,581        
          Plan Experience 8,992          
          Investment Experience 14,760        

     Recognition of Deferred (Inflows):
          Assumption Changes (1,900)         
          Plan Experience (1,525)         
          Investment Experience (7,072)          

     OPEB Expense, FYE 6/30/2024 34,964$               
74



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
10 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Change in Net Position During the Fiscal Year  

The exhibit below shows the year-to-year changes in the components of Net Position.  
 

 
 
 
  

For Reporting at Fiscal Year End 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

Measurement Date 6/30/2022 6/30/2023

Total OPEB Liability 497,910$      482,410$      (15,500)$     

Fiduciary Net Position (315,062)       (381,288)       (66,226)          

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 182,848        101,122        (81,726)       

Deferred  (Outflows) Due to: 

      Assumption Changes (30,352)         (15,771)         14,581        

      Plan Experience (12,855)         (5,232)           7,623          

      Investment Experience (51,624)         (44,385)         7,239          

      Deferred Contributions (89,270)         (38,724)         50,546        

Deferred Inflows Due to: 

       Assumption Changes -                 6,574             6,574          

       Plan Experience 1,525             -                 (1,525)         

       Investment Experience 21,218          14,146          (7,072)            

Impact on Statement of Net Position 21,490$        17,730$        (3,760)$          

21,490$        

34,964          

(38,724)         

17,730$        

OPEB Expense

38,724$        

(3,760)           

34,964$        

Impact on Statement of Net Position, FYE 6/30/2024

Employer Contributions During Fiscal Year

Deterioration (Improvement) in Net Position

OPEB Expense (Income), FYE 6/30/2024

Change
During
Period

Change in Net Position During the Fiscal Year

Impact on Statement of Net Position, FYE 6/30/2023

OPEB Expense (Income)

Employer Contributions During Fiscal Year

75



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
11 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Change in Fiduciary Net Position During the Measurement Period 

 

Expected Long-term Return on Trust Assets 

CalPERS last updated the projected future investment returns for CERBT Strategy 2 in March 2022. The 
returns were determined using a building-block method and best-estimate ranges of expected future 
real rates of return for each major asset class (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense 
and inflation). The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return published by 
CalPERS for each major class are split for years 1-5 and years 6 -20. We assumed that the returns for 
years 6 through 20 would continue in later years. 
 

 
 
To derive the expected future trust return specifically for C/CAG, we first adjusted CalPERS’ future 
return expectations to align with the 2.5% general inflation assumption used in this report.  Then 
applying the plan specific benefit payments (as determined from the June 30, 2023, valuation) to 
CalPERS’ bifurcated return expectations, we determined the single equivalent long-term rate of return 
to be 5.50%.  
 

 C/CAG 

Fiduciary Net Position at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2023
Measurement Date 6/30/2022

315,062$    

    Changes During the Period:

        Investment Income 11,317        
        Employer Contributions 89,270        
        Trust Administrative Expenses (91)               
        Benefit Payments (34,270)       

    Net Changes During the Period 66,226        

Fiduciary Net Position at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2024
Measurement Date 6/30/2023

381,288$    

Major Asset Classification
Target 

Allocation

General 
Inflation 

Rate 
Assumption

1-5 Year 
Expected 

Real Rate of 
Return

Compound 
Return
 Yrs 1-5

General 
Inflation 

Rate 
Assumption

6-20 Year 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of Return

Compound 
Return 

Years 6-20

Global Equity 34% 2.40% 4.40% 6.80% 2.30% 4.50% 6.80%
Fixed Income 41% 2.40% -1.00% 1.40% 2.30% 2.20% 4.50%
Global Real Estate(REITs) 17% 2.40% 3.00% 5.40% 2.30% 3.90% 6.20%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities     5% 2.40% -1.80% 0.60% 2.30% 1.30% 3.60%
Commodities 3% 2.40% 0.80% 3.20% 2.30% 1.20% 3.50%

Volatility 9.9% weighted 4.2% weighted 5.9%

CERBT Strategy 2 Years 1-5 Years 6-20

76



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
12 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Recognition Period for Deferred Resources 

Liability changes due to plan experience which differs from what was assumed in the prior 
measurement period and/or from assumption changes during the period are recognized over the plan’s 
Expected Average Remaining Service Life (“EARSL”). The EARSL of 4.46 years is the period used to 
recognize such changes in the OPEB Liability arising during the current measurement period.  
 
When applicable, changes in the Fiduciary Net Position due to investment performance different from 
the assumed earnings rate are always recognized over 5 years.  
 
Liability changes attributable to benefit changes occurring during the period, if any, are recognized 
immediately. 

Deferred Resources as of Fiscal Year End and Expected Future Recognition  

The exhibit below shows deferred resources as of the fiscal year end June 30, 2024.  
 

 
 
In addition, future recognition of these deferred resources is shown below.  

 

 
  

C/CAG
 Deferred Outflows

of Resources 
 Deferred Inflows

of Resources 

Changes of Assumptions 15,771$                      6,574$                        

Differences Between Expected 
and Actual Experience 5,232                          -                              

Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Investments 30,239                        -                              

Deferred Contributions 38,724                        -                              

Total 89,966$                      6,574$                        

For the
Fiscal Year

Ending
June 30

 Recognized
Net Deferred

Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources 

2025 21,161$                      
2026 10,245                        
2027 12,490                        
2028 772                              
2029 -                               

Thereafter -                               

77



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
13 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of Liabilities to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate  

The discount rate used for accounting purposes for the fiscal year end 2023 is 5.50%. Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate was assumed to start at 6.5% (increase effective January 1, 2025; known January 2024 
increases were applied) and grade down to 3.9% for years 2075 and later. The impact of a 1% increase 
or decrease in these assumptions is shown in the chart below.  
 

 

Change in
Discount Rate

Current - 1%
4.50%

Current
5.50%

Current + 1%
6.50%

Total OPEB Liability 539,257              482,410              435,056              
    Increase (Decrease) 56,847                       (47,354)                      

    % Increase (Decrease) 11.8% -9.8%

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 157,969              101,122              53,768                
    Increase (Decrease) 56,847                       (47,354)                      

    % Increase (Decrease) 56.2% -46.8%

Change in
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Current Trend
- 1%

Current
Trend

Current Trend
+ 1%

Total OPEB Liability 431,961              482,410              543,191              
    Increase (Decrease) (50,449)                      60,781                       

    % Increase (Decrease) -10.5% 12.6%

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 50,673                101,122              161,903              
    Increase (Decrease) (50,449)                      60,781                       

    % Increase (Decrease) -49.9% 60.1%

Sensitivity to:

78



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  14 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Schedule of Changes in C/CAG’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios  

  
 

 
 

  

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Measurement Date 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017
Discount Rate on Measurement Date 5.50% 5.50% 6.20% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.50%

Total OPEB liability
Service Cost 6,864$                5,762$            28,715$          27,879$          24,240$          22,676$          20,211$          
Interest 26,820                28,003            25,324            22,675            19,323            17,515            16,127            
Changes of benefit terms (7,809)                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Differences between expected and 
   actual experience 1,369                  -                   30,225            -                   (21,201)           -                   (9,558)             
Changes of assumptions (8,474)                 35,021            6,362               -                   37,405            7,876               8,580               
Benefit payments (34,270)               (33,561)           (8,804)             (9,217)             (10,330)           (9,531)             (23,408)           

Net change in total OPEB liability (15,500)               35,225            81,822            41,337            49,437            38,536            11,952            

Total OPEB liability - beginning 497,910              462,685          380,863          339,526          290,089          251,553          239,601          

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 482,410$            497,910$        462,685$        380,863$        339,526$        290,089$        251,553$        

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 89,270$              50,016$          49,048$          57,669$          53,132$          54,162$          48,408$          
Net investment income 11,317                (41,308)           52,102            10,179            9,662               5,389               4,093               
Benefit payments (34,270)               (33,561)           (8,804)             (9,217)             (10,330)           (9,531)             (23,408)           
Administrative expenses (91)                       (85)                   (120)                 (94)                   (30)                   (161)                 (31)                   

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 66,226                (24,938)           92,226            58,537            52,434            49,859            29,062            

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 315,062              340,000          247,774          189,237          136,803          86,944            57,882            

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 381,288$            315,062$        340,000$        247,774$        189,237$        136,803$        86,944$          

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 101,122$            182,848$        122,685$        133,089$        150,289$        153,286$        164,609$        

Covered payroll in the measurement period 347,103$            313,888$        325,887$        308,984$        298,420$        283,864$        311,785$        
Net OPEB liability as a % of covered payroll 29.13% 58.25% 37.65% 43.07% 50.36% 54.00% 52.80%

79



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  15 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Schedule of Changes in C/CAG’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
(concluded) 

 

  

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Measurement Date 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017
Discount Rate on Measurement Date 5.50% 5.50% 6.20% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.50%

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date 6/30/2023

Actuarial cost method
Entry Age 
Normal

Level % of Pay
Asset valuation method Market Value
Inflation 2.50%

Healthcare cost trend rates
6.50% in 2025 
decreasing to 
3.9% by 2075

Salary increases 3.00%
Investment rate of return 5.50%
Retirement age 50 to 75

Mortality
2021 CalPERS 

Experience 
Study

Mortality Improvement MW Scale 2022 MacLeod Watts Scale 2020 MacLeod Watts Scale 2020 MacLeod Watts Scale 2017

50 to 75 50 to 75 50 to 75

2017 CalPERS Experience 
Study

2017 CalPERS Experience 
Study

2014 CalPERS Experience 
Study

3.00% 3.00% 3.25%
6.10% 6.15% 6.50%

2.50% 2.50% 2.75%

5.7% in 2022, fluctuating 
down to 4.0% by 2076

5.4% in 2021, fluctuating 
down to 4.0% by 2076

7.5% in 2019, 
step down .5% per year to 

5.0% by 2024

Entry Age Normal 
Level % of Pay

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Pay

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Pay

Market Value Market Value Market Value

6/30/2021 6/30/2019 6/30/2017

80



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  16 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Schedule of Contributions 

The chart below shows the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), C/CAG’s contribution, and the excess or shortfall.  
 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) 22,536$          24,980$          50,016$          49,312$          55,709$          54,899$          54,162$          

Contributions in relation to the ADC 38,724           89,270            50,016            49,048            57,669            53,132            54,162            
Contribution deficiency (excess) (10,087)$        (64,290)$        -$                264$               (1,960)$           1,767$            -$                

Covered payroll during the fiscal year 358,000$       347,103$       313,888$       325,887$       308,984$       298,418$       283,864$       
Contributions as a % of covered payroll 10.82% 25.72% 25.72% 15.05% 18.66% 17.80% 19.08%
% of ADC contributed 171.83% 357.37% 100.00% 99.46% 103.52% 96.78% 100.00%

Notes to Schedule - assumptions used to develop Actuarially Determined Contributions
Valuation Date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period 7 yrs remain 8 yrs remain 9 yrs remain
10 yrs 

(fresh start)
5 yrs remain 6 yrs remain 7 yrs remain

Asset valuation method
Inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age
Mortality
Mortality Improvement

5.4% in 2021, fluctuating down 
to 4.0% by 2076

7.5% in 2019, 
step down .5% per year to 5.0% by 2024

3.00% 3.25%

MW Scale 2020 MW Scale 2017

6.15% 6.50%
50 to 75 50 to 75

2017 CalPERS Experience Study 2014 CalPERS Experience Study

10 year closed
Level Dollar

10 year closed
Level Dollar

Market Value Market Value
2.50% 2.75%

6/30/2019 6/30/2017

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Pay

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Pay

6/30/2021

MW Scale 2020
2017 CalPERS Experience 

50 to 75
6.10%

3.00%

5.7% in 2022, fluctuating 
down to 4.0% by 2076

2.50%
Market Value

10 year closed
Level Dollar

Entry Age Normal 
Level % of Pay

81



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
17 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Detail of Changes to Net Position  

The chart below details changes to all components of Net Position.  
 

 

Assumption
Changes

Plan
Experience

  Investment
Experience

Deferred
Contributions

Assumption
Changes

Plan
Experience

  Investment
Experience

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2023
Measurement Date 6/30/2022

497,910$    315,062$    182,848$     30,352$       12,855$     51,624$       89,270$             -$             1,525$        21,218$       21,490$                

  Changes During the Period:
         Service Cost 6,864           6,864            6,864                     
         Interest Cost 26,820        26,820          26,820                  
         Expected Investment Income 18,838        (18,838)        (18,838)                 
         Employer Contributions 89,270        (89,270)        (89,270)                 
         Changes of Benefit Terms (7,809)         (7,809)           (7,809)                   
         Trust Administrative Expenses (91)               91                  91                          
         Benefit Payments (34,270)       (34,270)       -                -                         
         Assumption Changes (8,474)         (8,474)           8,474           -                         
         Plan Experience 1,369           1,369            1,369          -                         
         Investment Experience (7,521)         7,521            7,521            -                         
         Recognized Deferred Resources (14,581)        (8,992)        (14,760)        (89,270)              (1,900)          (1,525)         (7,072)          117,106                
         Contributions After Measurement Date 38,724               (38,724)                 

Net Changes in Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (15,500)       66,226        (81,726)        (14,581)        (7,623)        (7,239)           (50,546)              6,574           (1,525)         (7,072)          (3,760)                   

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2024
Measurement Date 6/30/2023

482,410$    381,288$    101,122$     15,771$       5,232$       44,385$       38,724$             6,574$         -$            14,146$       17,730$                

 Impact on
Statement of
Net Position

(f) = (c) - (d) + (e) 

C/CAG

 Total
OPEB

Liability
(a) 

 Fiduciary
Net

Position
(b) 

 Net
OPEB

Liability
(c) = (a) - (b) 

(d)   Deferred Outflows: (e)   Deferred Inflows:

82



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
18 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  

A listing of all deferred resource bases used to develop the Net Position and OPEB Expense is shown below. Deferred Contributions are not shown.  
 

 
 

Measurement Date:  June 30, 2023

Date
Created Source

Impact on
Net OPEB

Liability (NOL)
Initial

Amount
Period
(Yrs)

Annual
Recognition

Balance
as of

Jun 30, 2023
2022-23

(FYE 2024)
2023-24

(FYE 2025)
2024-25

(FYE 2026)
2025-26

(FYE 2027)
2026-27

(FYE 2028)
2027-28

(FYE 2029) Thereafter

6/30/2019 PlanExperience DecreasedNOL (21,201)$     4.31 (4,919)$         -$                 (1,525)$        -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

6/30/2019 AssumptionChanges IncreasedNOL 37,405        4.31 8,679             -                   2,689            -                -                -                -                -                -                

6/30/2019 InvestmentEarnings IncreasedNOL 225              5.00 45                   -                   45                 -                -                -                -                -                -                

6/30/2020 InvestmentEarnings IncreasedNOL 3,159           5.00 632                631                  632               631               -                -                -                -                -                

6/30/2021 PlanExperience IncreasedNOL 30,225        3.48 8,685             4,170               8,685            4,170            -                -                -                -                -                

6/30/2021 AssumptionChanges IncreasedNOL 6,362           3.48 1,828             878                  1,828            878               -                -                -                -                -                

6/30/2021 InvestmentEarnings DecreasedNOL (35,362)       5.00 (7,072)            (14,146)           (7,072)          (7,072)          (7,074)          -                -                -                -                

6/30/2022 AssumptionChanges IncreasedNOL 35,021        3.48 10,064           14,893             10,064         10,064         4,829            -                -                -                -                

6/30/2022 InvestmentEarnings IncreasedNOL 62,895        5.00 12,579           37,737             12,579         12,579         12,579         12,579         -                -                -                

6/30/2023 PlanExperience IncreasedNOL 1,369           4.46 307                1,062               307               307               307               307               141               -                -                

6/30/2023 AssumptionChanges DecreasedNOL (8,474)         4.46 (1,900)            (6,574)             (1,900)          (1,900)          (1,900)          (1,900)          (874)              -                -                

6/30/2023 InvestmentEarnings IncreasedNOL 7,521           5.00 1,504             6,017               1,504            1,504            1,504            1,504            1,505            -                -                

Deferred Outflow or (Inflow) Recognition of Deferred Outflow or Deferred (Inflow) in Measurement Period:

83



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  19 

Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Detail of C/CAG Contributions to the Plan  

C/CAG contributions to the Plan occur as benefits are paid to or on behalf of retirees and/or as 
contributions are made to the OPEB trust. Benefit payments may occur in the form of direct payments 
for premiums (“explicit subsidies”) and/or indirect payments to retirees in the form of higher premiums 
for active employees (“implicit subsidies”). Note that the implicit subsidy contribution does not 
represent cash payments to retirees, but rather the reclassification of a portion of active healthcare 
expense to be recognized as a retiree healthcare cost. For details, see Appendices for a description of 
implicit subsidy plan contributions. 
 
C/CAG reported the following OPEB contributions paid during the measurement period.  
 

 

 
Estimated C/CAG OPEB contributions made after the measurement date but prior to the current fiscal 
year end in the chart below. These estimates should be updated with the actual amounts once known 
after the close of the year. 
 

 

For the Measurement Period,
Jul 1, 2022 thru Jun 30, 2023

 C/CAG 

Employer

      (a)  Contribution To Trust 55,000$    

      (b)  Benefits Paid Directly To or On Behalf of Retirees 22,611      

      (c)  Implicit Subsidy Payment 11,659      

Trust

      (d)  Benefits Paid Directly To or On Behalf of Retirees -            

      (e)  Reimbursements to Employer -            

      Total Benefits Paid During the MP,  (b)+(c)+(d) 34,270      

      Employer Contribution During the MP, (a)+(b)+(c)-(e) 89,270      

For the Fiscal Year,
Jul 1, 2023 thru Jun 30, 2024

 C/CAG 

Employer

      (f)  Contribution To Trust -$          

      (g)  Benefits Paid Directly To or On Behalf of Retirees 25,155      

      (h)  Implicit Subsidy Payment 13,569      

Trust

      (i)  Benefits Paid Directly To or On Behalf of Retirees -            

      (j)  Reimbursements to Employer -            

      Total Benefits Paid During the Current FY,  (g)+(h)+(i) 38,724      

      Employer Contribution During the Current FY, (f)+(g)+(h)-(j) 38,724      

84



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  20 

 Accounting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Projected Benefit Payments (15-year projection)  

The following is an estimate of other post-employment benefits to be paid on behalf of current retirees 
and current employees expected to retire from C/CAG. Expected annual benefits have been projected 
on the basis of the actuarial assumptions outlined in Section 3. 
 

 
 
The amounts shown in the Explicit Subsidy section of the table reflect the expected payment by C/CAG 
toward retiree medical premiums in each of the years shown. The amounts are shown separately, and 
in total, for those retired on the valuation date (“current retirees”) and those expected to retire after 
the valuation date (“future retirees”). The explicit subsidy benefit amount shown for FYE 2024 is 
currently an estimate and will be replaced with the actual amount, once known. 
 
The amounts shown in the Implicit Subsidy section reflect the estimated excess of retiree medical and 
prescription drug claims over the premiums expected to be charged during the year for retirees’ 
coverage. These amounts are also shown separately and in total for those currently retired on the 
valuation date and for those expected to retire in the future. 
 
These projections do not include any benefits expected to be paid on behalf of current active 
employees prior to retirement, nor do they include any benefits for potential future employees (i.e., 
those who might be hired in future years). 
  

Current 
Retirees

Future 
Retirees Total

Current 
Retirees

Future 
Retirees Total

2024 25,155$  -$        25,155$  13,569$   -$         13,569$   38,724$    
2025 25,761     32             25,793     8,435       (2)              8,433       34,226      
2026 27,123     214           27,337     9,776       82             9,858       37,195      
2027 28,398     493           28,891     11,237     274           11,511     40,402      
2028 18,776     830           19,606     -           617           617           20,223      

2029 19,481     1,569       21,050     -           1,638       1,638       22,688      
2030 20,156     2,570       22,726     -           3,111       3,111       25,837      
2031 20,788     3,659       24,447     -           4,932       4,932       29,379      
2032 21,367     5,069       26,436     -           7,509       7,509       33,945      
2033 21,893     7,738       29,631     -           10,576     10,576     40,207      

2034 22,358     11,124     33,482     -           14,772     14,772     48,254      
2035 22,744     14,903     37,647     -           20,029     20,029     57,676      
2036 23,037     19,498     42,535     -           22,159     22,159     64,694      
2037 23,246     24,406     47,652     -           28,688     28,688     76,340      
2038 23,358     28,887     52,245     -           35,760     35,760     88,005      

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30

Explicit Subsidy

Projected Annual Benefit Payments

Implicit Subsidy

Total

85



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  21 

Accounting Information 
(Concluded) 
 
Sample Journal Entries  

 
 

Debit Credit Debit Credit    

Net OPEB Liability 182,848      182,848      

Deferred Outflow:
        Assumption Changes 30,352      
        Plan Experience 12,855      
        Investment Experience 51,624      
        Contribution Subsequent to MD 89,270      
        Deferred Outflows 184,101      

Deferred Inflow:
        Assumption Changes -               
        Plan Experience 1,525          
        Investment Experience 21,218        
        Deferred Inflows 22,743        

Record Benefits Paid to Retirees

Net OPEB Liability
            Cash

Record Implicit Subsidy Payment

Net OPEB Liability
            Premium Expense

Debit Credit Debit Credit    

Net OPEB Liability 43,002      43,002        

Deferred Outflow:
        Assumption Changes 14,581        
        Plan Experience 7,623          
        Investment Experience 7,239          
        Contribution Subsequent to MD 50,546        
        Deferred Outflows 79,989        

Deferred Inflow:
        Assumption Changes 6,574          
        Plan Experience 1,525        
        Investment Experience 7,072        
        Deferred Inflows 2,023          

OPEB Expense 34,964      34,964        

  

 13,569
 13,569

Record End of Year
Updates to OPEB Accounts

By Source Sources Combined

Debit Credit

  

 25,155
 25,155

OPEB Accounts at
Beginning of Fiscal Year

By Source Sources Combined

Debit Credit

86



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  22 

E. Funding Information 
 
The employer’s OPEB funding policy and level of contributions to an irrevocable OPEB trust directly 
affects the discount rate which is used to calculate the OPEB liability to be reported in the employer’s 
financial statements. Prefunding (setting aside funds to accumulate in an irrevocable OPEB trust) has 
certain advantages, one of which is the ability to (potentially) use a higher discount rate in the 
determination of liabilities for GASB 75 reporting purposes. Prefunding also improves the security of 
benefits for current and potential future recipients and contributes to intergenerational taxpayer 
equity by better matching the cost of the benefits to the service years in which they are “earned” and 
which correspond to years in which taxpayers benefit from those services.  
 
Paying Down the UAAL 

Once an employer decides to prefund, a decision must be made about how to pay for benefits related 
to accumulated prior service that have not yet been funded (the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability, 
or UAAL3). This is most often, though not always, handled through structured amortization payments. 
The period and method chosen for amortizing this unfunded liability can significantly affect the 
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) or other basis selected for funding the OPEB program. 
 
Much like paying off a mortgage, when the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) exceeds plan assets, 
choosing a longer amortization period to pay off the UAAL means smaller payments, but the payments 
will be required for more years; plan investments will have less time to work toward helping reduce 
required contribution levels. When the plan is in a surplus position, the reverse is true, and a longer 
amortization period is usually preferable.  
 
There are several ways the amortization payment can be determined. The most common methods are 
calculating the amortization payment as a level dollar amount or as a level percentage of payroll. The 
employer might also choose to apply a shorter period when the UAAL is positive, i.e., when trust assets 
are lower than the AAL, but opt for a longer period or to exclude amortization of a negative UAAL, when 
assets exceed the AAL. The entire UAAL may be amortized as one single component or may be broken 
into multiple components reflecting the timing and source of each change, such as those arising from 
assumption changes, benefit changes and/or liability or investment experience. 
 
The amortization period(s) should not exceed the number of years which would allow current trust 
assets plus future contributions and earnings to be sufficient to pay all future benefits and trust 
expenses each year. Prefunding of OPEB is optional and contributions at any level are permitted. 
However, if trust sufficiency is not expected, a discount rate other than the assumed trust return will 
likely be required for accounting purposes.  
 
Funding and Prefunding of the Implicit Subsidy 

An implicit subsidy liability is created when retiree medical claims are expected to exceed the premiums 
charged for retiree coverage. Recognition of the estimated implicit subsidy each year is handled by an 
accounting entry, reducing the amount paid for active employees and shifting that amount to be 
treated as a retiree healthcare expense/contribution (see Sample Journal Entries). The implicit subsidy 
is a true benefit to the retiree but can be difficult to see when medical premiums are set as a flat rate 
for both actives and pre-Medicare retirees.   

 
3 We use actuarial, rather than accounting, terminology to describe the components used to develop the ADCs. 

87



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  23 

Funding Information 
(Continued) 
 
This might lead some employers to believe the benefit is not real or is merely an accounting construct, 
and thus to forgo prefunding of retiree implicit benefits.  
 
Consider what would happen if the retiree premiums were based only on expected retiree claims 
experience. Almost certainly, retiree premiums would increase while premiums for active employees 
would go down if the active premiums no longer had to help support the higher retiree claims. Who 
would pay the increases in retiree premiums? Current plan documents and bargaining agreements 
would have to be consulted. Depending on circumstances, the increase in retiree premiums might 
remain the responsibility of the employer, pass entirely to the retirees, or some blending of the two. 
The answer would determine whether separate retiree-only premium rates would result in a higher or 
lower employer OPEB liability. In the current premium structure, with blended active and pre-Medicare 
retiree premiums, the employer is clearly, though indirectly, paying the implicit retiree cost.  
 
The prefunding decision is complex.  OPEB materiality, budgetary concerns, desire to use the full trust 
rate in developing the liability for GASB 75, and other factors must be weighed by each employer.  Since 
prefunding OPEB benefits is not required, each employer’s OPEB prefunding strategy will depend on 
how they balance these competing perspectives.   
 

Development of the Actuarially Determined Contributions 

C/CAG has approved development of ADCs based on the following two components, which are then 
adjusted with interest to each fiscal year end: 

• The amounts attributed to service performed in the current fiscal year (the normal cost) and 
• Amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a closed 10 year period; 7 years 

remain for determining the ADC for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Amortization payments 
are determined on a level dollar basis.  

 
Actuarially Determined Contributions, developed as described above for C/CAG’s fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2025, and 2026 are shown the exhibit on the next page. These ADCs incorporate both explicit 
(cash benefit) and implicit subsidy benefit liabilities. Contributions credited toward meeting the ADC 
will be comprised of:  

1) direct payments to insurers toward retiree premiums, to the extent not reimbursed to C/CAG 
by the trust; plus 

2) each year’s implicit subsidy payment; and  

3) contributions to the OPEB trust. 
 
ADCs determined on this basis should provide for trust sufficiency, based on the current plan provisions 
and census data, provided all assumptions are exactly realized and if C/CAG contributes 100% or more 
of the ADC each year. When an agency commits to funding the trust at or above the ADC, the expected 
long-term trust return may be used as the discount rate in determining the plan liability for accounting 
purposes. Trust sufficiency cannot be guaranteed to a certainty, however, because of the non-trivial 
risk that the assumptions used to project future benefit liabilities may not be realized.  
 

 

88



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  24 

Funding Information 
(Continued) 
 
We develop the Actuarially Determined Contributions (ADCs) for fiscal years ending June 30, 2025, and 
June 30, 2026, from the results of this valuation. The ADC for fiscal year end June 30, 2024, was 
developed from the prior (2021) valuation and we have included this for reference as well.    
 
The biggest component of the increase in the ADCs for FYEs 2025 and 2026 over 2024 is the addition 
of the new employee hired since the 2021 valuation was prepared, as reflected in the normal cost.  
 

 
 
As described on the prior page, OPEB funding consists of 3 different sources. The chart below estimates 
how these 3 contribution sources would apply toward satisfying the ADC for each of these years.  

 
 

We have estimated how much C/CAG will pay in retiree medical premiums. If the actual amounts paid 
are lower than our projection, the contribution to the trust should be increased to balance so that total 
contributions equal or exceed the ADC each year.  

Discount rate

Actives
Retirees
Total Participants

For fiscal year ending

$ 526,106        $ 675,904        $ 677,912        

Actives 300,761        131,203        159,728        
Retirees 161,222        364,909        349,812        
Total AAL 461,983        496,112        509,540        

Actuarial Value of Assets 373,450        401,194        428,402        

Unfunded AAL (UAAL)    88,533          94,918          81,138          

UAAL Amortization method Level Dollar Level Dollar Level Dollar
Remaining amortization period (years) 7                    6                    5                    
Amortization Factor 5.9019          5.2703          4.5052          

Normal Cost $ 6,239            $ 20,198          $ 20,804          
Amortization of UAAL 15,001          18,010          18,010          
Interest to fiscal year end 1,296            2,101            2,135            

           22,536 40,309          40,949          

5.50%5.50%
Valuation date 6/30/20236/30/2021

6/30/2026

3
5

Number of Covered Employees
22

2
4

Total ADC

Actuarial Present Value of  Projected Benefits 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

6/30/20256/30/2024

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

1 Implicit subsidy contribution $ 13,569          $ 8,433            $ 9,858            
2 Estimated agency paid premiums for retirees $ 25,155         $ 25,793         $ 27,337         
3 Estimated agency contribution to OPEB trust -                6,083            3,754            

Total Expected Employer Contributions (1+2+3) $ 38,724          $ 40,309          $ 40,949          

89



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  25 

Funding Information  
(Concluded)  
   
In this section, we provide a review of key components of valuation results from 2012 through 2024.  

 

 

 
Significant changes during this period include: 
• July 1, 2015: First time recognition of the implicit subsidy liability relating to medical coverage; 

discount rate increased from 4% to 6.5%; plan members increased from 2 to 4. 

• June 30, 2019: Discount rate decreased to 6.15% reflecting lower future expected trust return; 
reflected new demographic assumptions from the 2017 CalPERS experience study and reflected 
the timing of retirement for one employee. 

• June 30, 2021: Updated the expected retirement date for one employee; the new director was 
hired after the valuation date and, as such, was not included in the analysis; return on trust assets 
was considerably higher than assumed.  

• June 30, 2023: Decreased benefits for Executives hired on/after 9/1/2018; updated healthcare 
trend and demographic assumptions; trust earnings were lower than assumed over the past two 
years. 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a)

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability

(b)

Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability

 (b-a)

Funded 
Ratio
(a/b)

Covered 
Payroll 

(c)

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-a)/c)

Discount 
Rate

7/1/2012 -$               197,811$      197,811$         0.0% 247,208$      80.0% 4.00%
7/1/2015 30,000$        229,309$      199,309$         13.1% 239,064$      83.4% 6.50%
7/1/2017 86,944$        251,553$      164,609$         34.6% 275,124$      59.8% 6.50%

6/30/2019 189,237$      343,321$      154,084$         55.1% 298,420$      51.6% 6.15%
6/30/2021 336,636$      467,444$      130,808$         72.0% 325,887$      40.1% 6.10%
6/30/2023 381,288$      482,410$      101,122$         79.0% 347,103$      29.1% 5.50%

Schedule of Funding Progress

90



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  26 

F. Certification 
 
The primary purposes of this report are: (1) to provide actuarial information of the other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) provided by the City/County Association of Governments of San 
Mateo County (C/CAG) in compliance with Statement 75 of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB 75); and (2) to provide Actuarially Determined Contributions for prefunding of this 
program in conformity with the District’s OPEB funding policy. C/CAG is not required to contribute the 
ADC shown in this report and we make no representation that it will, in fact, fund the OPEB trust at any 
particular level.  
 
In preparing this report we relied without audit on information provided by C/CAG. This information 
includes, but is not limited to, plan provisions, census data, and financial information. We performed a 
limited review of this data and found the information to be reasonably consistent. The accuracy of this 
report is dependent on this information and if any of the information we relied on is incomplete or 
inaccurate, then the results reported herein will be different from any report relying on more accurate 
information. 
 
We consider the actuarial assumptions and methods used in this report to be individually reasonable 
under the requirements imposed by GASB 75 and taking into consideration reasonable expectations of 
plan experience. The results provide an estimate of the plan’s financial condition at one point in time. 
Future actuarial results may be significantly different due to a variety of reasons including, but not 
limited to, demographic and economic assumptions differing from future plan experience, changes in 
plan provisions, changes in applicable law, or changes in the value of plan benefits relative to other 
alternatives available to plan members. 
 
Alternative assumptions may also be reasonable; however, demonstrating the range of potential plan 
results based on alternative assumptions was beyond the scope of our assignment except to the limited 
extent required by GASB 75 and in accordance with C/CAG’s stated OPEB funding policy. Results for 
accounting purposes may be materially different than results obtained for other purposes such as plan 
termination, liability settlement, or underlying economic value of the promises made by the plan. 
 
This report is prepared solely for the use and benefit of C/CAG and may not be provided to third parties 
without prior written consent of MacLeod Watts. Exceptions: C/CAG may provide copies of this report 
to their professional accounting and legal advisors who are subject to a duty of confidentiality, and 
C/CAG may provide this work to any party if required by law or court order. No part of this report should 
be used as the basis for any representations or warranties in any contract or agreement without the 
written consent of MacLeod Watts.  
 
The undersigned are unaware of any relationship that might impair the objectivity of this work. Nothing 
within this report is intended to be a substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel. The signing 
actuaries are members of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the qualification standards for 
rendering this opinion. 
 
Signed: April 19, 2024 
     
 
 ___________________________________                   ____________________________________ 
 Catherine L. MacLeod, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA   Raegann E. Conner, Actuarial Analyst  

91



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  27 

G. Supporting Information 
 
Section 1 - Summary of Employee Data  
  
Plan Members: C/CAG reported 2 active employees in the data provided to us for the June 2023 
valuation. There are also 3 retirees currently receiving benefits under this program. The chart below 
summarizes census data used for valuation:  
 

 
 

Summary of Plan Member Counts: The number of members currently or potentially eligible to receive 
benefits under the OPEB plan are required to be reported in the notes to the financial statements.  
 

 
 

 
Changes in covered members: Since the June 30, 2021, valuation date, the previous Executive Director 
retired and a new Director was hired and is now included in the June 30, 2023, valuation. There were 
no other changes in active or retired members covered by this plan. 
 

 
 

 
  

2023 Valuation Census Active Retired Total
Number 2 3 5
Average Age 49.9 68.7 62.1
Average Service 5.1 13.2 11.4
Average Age at Retirement n/a 61.8 61.8

Number of active plan members 2

3

0

Summary of Plan Member Counts

Number of inactive plan members 
currently receiving benefits
Number of inactive plan members 
entitled to but not receiving benefits

Status
Covered 
Actives

Covered 
Retirees Total

Number reported as of June 30, 2021 2 2 4
New employees 1 1
Separated employees 0
New retiree, elected coverage (1) 1 0
New retiree, waiving coverage 0
Deceased 0
Number reported as of June 30, 2023 2 3 5

Reconciliation of C/CAG Plan Members Between Valuation Dates

92



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  28 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions  

OPEB provided: C/CAG reported that the only OPEB provided is retiree medical plan coverage.  
 
Access to coverage: Medical coverage is currently provided through CalPERS as permitted under the 
Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA).  This coverage requires the employee to 
satisfy the requirements for retirement under CalPERS: either (a) attainment of age 50 if Classic or age 
52, if PEPRA with 5 years of State or public agency service or (b) an approved disability retirement.  
 
The employee must begin his or her retirement benefit within 120 days of terminating employment 
with C/CAG to be eligible to continue medical coverage through C/CAG and be entitled to the benefits 
described below. it is the timing of initiating retirement benefits and not timing of enrollment in the 
medical program which determines whether or not the retiree qualifies for lifetime medical coverage 
and any benefits defined in the PEMHCA resolution. 
 
If an eligible employee is not already enrolled in the medical plan, he or she may enroll within 60 days 
of retirement, during any future open enrollment period or with a qualifying life event. Once eligible, 
coverage may be continued at the retiree’s option for his or her lifetime. A surviving spouse and other 
eligible dependents may also continue coverage. 
 
Retiree medical benefits provided: As a PEMHCA employer, C/CAG is obligated to contribute toward 
the cost of retiree medical coverage for the retiree’s lifetime or until coverage is discontinued.  It is our 
understanding that C/CAG has or will execute a resolution with CalPERS defining the level of its 
contribution toward the cost of medical plan premiums for active and retired employees to be the 
PEMHCA minimum employer contribution (MEC)4. The MEC was $151 per month in 2023 and increased 
to $157 per month in 2024.  
 
Employees who retire from C/CAG with 10 or more years of C/CAG service5 receive a higher benefit:  

• For Executive Management retirees hired prior to September 1, 2018, and all others regardless 
of date hired: 100% of the actual retiree-only premium, but not more than the Kaiser Region 1 
Basic Family monthly premium rate ($2,655.67 in 2024).  

• For Executive Management retirees hired on or after September 1, 2018:  90% of their actual 
retiree-only premium, but not more than 90% of the Kaiser Region 1 single party rate (Basic or 
Medicare retiree rate, as applicable ($919.27 or $347.85 in 2024). 

C/CAG will pay the PEMHCA minimum portion of the benefit directly to CalPERS and reimburse the 
retiree for any remaining benefit as described above.  
 
Upon the retiree’s death, surviving annuitants may continue coverage, but the only subsidy they will 
receive is the PEMHCA MEC.  
  

 
4 It is our understanding that C/CAG has established a pre-tax flexible benefit plan to provide premiums in excess of 
the MEC for active employees and that PEMHCA does not require these additional payments to be paid to retirees. 
5 Only 5 years of service was required for Executive Management hired prior to January 2013.  

93



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  29 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions  

Monthly premiums for selected plans in 2024 are shown below. 
 

 
 
 
  

Plan Ee Only Ee & 1 Ee & 2+ Ee Only Ee & 1 Ee & 2+
Anthem Select HMO 1,138.86   2,277.72   2,961.04   405.83      811.66      1,217.49   
Anthem Traditional HMO 1,339.70   2,679.40   3,483.22   405.83      811.66      1,217.49   
Kaiser HMO* 1,021.41   2,042.82   2,655.67   386.55      773.10      1,159.65   
PERS Platinum PPO 1,314.27   2,628.54   3,417.10   448.15      896.30      1,344.45   
*Medicare rates shown are for Kaiser Medcare Advantage Summit

Region 1 2024 Health Plan Rates
      Actives and Pre-Med Retirees     Medicare Eligible Retirees

94



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  30 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The ultimate real cost of an employee benefit plan is the value of all benefits and other expenses of the 
plan over its lifetime. These payments depend only on the terms of the plan and the administrative 
arrangements adopted. Actuarial assumptions are used to estimate the cost of these benefits; the 
funding method spreads the expected costs on a level basis over the life of the plan.  

Important Dates 

Valuation Date   June 30, 2023 

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024 

GASB 75 Measurement Date  June 30, 2023 (last day of the prior fiscal year) 

Valuation Methods 

Funding Method   Entry Age Normal Cost, level percent of pay 

Asset Valuation Method  Market value of assets 

Participants Valued Only current active employees and retired participants and 
covered dependents are valued. No future entrants are 
considered in this valuation. 

Development of Age-related 
   Medical Premiums Actual premium rates for retirees and their spouses were 

adjusted to an age-related basis by applying medical claim cost 
factors developed from the data presented in the report, 
“Health Care Costs – From Birth to Death”, sponsored by the 
Society of Actuaries. A description of the use of claims cost 
curves can be found in MacLeod Watts’s Age Rating 
Methodology (see Appendices).  

Pre-Medicare retiree premiums are blended with premiums for 
active members. Medicare-eligible retirees are covered by plans 
which are rated solely on the experience of Medicare retirees 
with no subsidy by active employee premiums. 

Monthly baseline premium costs were set equal to the active 
single premiums shown in the chart in Section 2. Representative 
claims costs derived from the dataset provided by CalPERS are 
shown in the chart on the following page. Estimated age-based 
claims were applied (a) for all retirees not yet eligible for 
Medicare and (b) for Medicare retirees receiving benefits in 
excess of the PEMHCA minimum and covered by Medicare 
Supplement plans. 

95



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  

31 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Development of Age-related 
   Medical Premiums (continued)    
 

 
 

Region Medical Plan 50 53 56 59 62 65 70 75 80 85 90 95
Anthem Select HMO 1,045      1,232      1,431      1,640      1,865      
Anthem Traditional HMO 1,295      1,527      1,774      2,033      2,311      
Kaiser HMO 934         1,102      1,280      1,467      1,667      
PERS Platinum PPO 1,299      1,531      1,779      2,039      2,318      381         427         464         486         480         458         454         

50 53 56 59 62 65 70 75 80 85 90 95
Anthem Select HMO 1,295      1,422      1,530      1,654      1,823      
Anthem Traditional HMO 1,605      1,763      1,897      2,049      2,259      
Kaiser HMO 1,158      1,272      1,368      1,479      1,630      
PERS Platinum PPO 1,609      1,768      1,902      2,055      2,266      365         413         447         467         471         462         454         

Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans
Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans

Region Medical Plan

Region 1

Region 1

Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans

Expected Monthly Claims by Medical Plan for Selected Ages - Female
Non-Medicare Retirees Medicare Retirees

Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans

Expected Monthly Claims by Medical Plan for Selected Ages - Male
Non-Medicare Retirees Medicare Retirees

Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans
Claims not developed for Medicare Advantage plans

96



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
32 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Economic Assumptions 

Long Term Return on Assets  5.50% as of June 30, 2023, and 5.50% as of June 30, 2022, net 
of plan investment expenses  

Discount Rate 5.50% as of June 30, 2023, and 5.50% as of June 30, 2022 

General Inflation Rate   2.5% per year 

Salary Increase 3.0% per year; since benefits do not depend on salary, this is 
used to allocate the cost of benefits between service years.  

Healthcare Trend Medical plan premiums and estimated claims costs by age are 
assumed to increase once each year. Increases over the prior 
year’s levels are assumed to be effective on the dates shown in 
the chart below.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The healthcare trend shown above was developed using the 
Getzen Model 2023 published by the Society of Actuaries using 
the following settings:  CPI 2.5%; Real GDP Growth 1.4%; Excess 
Medical Growth 1.0%; Expected Health Share of GDP in 2032 
20%; Resistance Point 21%; Year after which medical growth is 
limited to growth in GDP 2075. 

PEMHCA Minimum Required Benefit The PEMHCA minimum employer contribution is assumed to 
increase by 4.0% per year. 

 
  

Effective 
January 1

Premium 
Increase

Effective 
January 1

Premium 
Increase

2024 Actual 2040-2043 4.8%
2025 6.5% 2044-2049 4.7%
2026 6.0% 2050-2059 4.6%
2027 5.5% 2060-2065 4.5%
2028 5.4% 2066-2067 4.4%
2029 5.3% 2068-2069 4.3%
2030 5.2% 2070 4.2%
2031 5.1% 2071-2072 4.1%

2032-2037 5.0% 2073-2074 4.0%
2038-2039 4.9% 2075 & later 3.9%

97



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
33 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Participant Election Assumptions 
 

Participation Rate Active employees: 70% of those expected to qualify for only the 
PEMHCA MEC and 100% of those assumed to qualify for the 
higher C/CAG subsidy are assumed to continue their current 
plan election in retirement. 

Retired participants: Existing medical plan elections are 
assumed to be maintained until the retiree’s death. 

 

Spouse Coverage  Active employees: 40% are assumed to be married and elect 
coverage for their spouse in retirement. Surviving spouses are 
assumed to continue coverage until their death. Husbands are 
assumed to be 3 years older than their wives. 

Retired participants: Existing elections for spouse coverage are 
assumed to continue until the spouse’s death. Actual spouse 
ages are used, where known; if not, husbands are assumed to 
be 3 years older than their wives. 

Medicare Eligibility  Absent contrary data, all individuals are assumed to be eligible 
for Medicare Parts A and B at age 65. Coverage ends at age 65. 

Demographic Assumptions 

Demographic actuarial assumptions used in this valuation are based on the 2021 experience study of 
the California Public Employees Retirement System using data from 1997 to 2019, except for a different 
basis used to project future mortality improvements. Rates for selected age and service are shown 
below and on the following pages. The representative mortality rates were the published CalPERS rates, 
then projected as described below. 

Mortality After Retirement               Healthy Lives                     Disabled Miscellaneous 
                  (before improvement applied)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Age Male Female
40 0.00075 0.00039
50 0.00271 0.00199
60 0.00575 0.00455
70 0.01340 0.00996
80 0.04380 0.03403
90 0.14539 0.11086

100 0.36198 0.31582
110 1.00000 1.00000

CalPERS Public Agency 
Miscellaneous, Police & 

Fire Post Retirement 
Mortality

Age Male Female
20 0.00411 0.00233
30 0.00452 0.00301
40 0.00779 0.00730
50 0.01727 0.01439
60 0.02681 0.01962
70 0.04056 0.02910
80 0.08044 0.06112
90 0.16770 0.14396

CalPERS Public Agency 
Disabled Miscellaneous 

Post-Retirement Mortality 

98



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
34 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Mortality Before Retirement  None assumed, due to the small size of the employee group 
and low likelihood of occurrence 

 
Mortality Improvement MacLeod Watts Scale 2022 applied generationally from 2017  

(see Appendices) 
 
Termination Rates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Service Retirement Rates      The following miscellaneous retirement formulas apply: 
  If hired prior to 1/1/2013 or with prior PERS service: 2.7% @ 55 
 If hired on or after 1/1/2013, PEPRA: 2% @ 62 

 

Sample rates of assumed future retirements applicable to each of these 
retirement benefit formulas are shown in tables on the following page. 
Each rate reflects the probability that an employee with that age and 
service will take a service retirement in the next 12 months. 

 
 

Each rate in this table 
reflects the probability 
that an employee with 
that age and service will 
end its employment with 
the agency in the next 12 
months for reasons other 
than retirement or death. 

Attained
Age 0 3 5 10 15 20
15 0.1851 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
20 0.1851 0.0927 0.0843 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
25 0.1769 0.0927 0.0843 0.0377 0.0000 0.0000
30 0.1631 0.0802 0.0804 0.0377 0.0180 0.0000
35 0.1493 0.0677 0.0715 0.0366 0.0180 0.0141
40 0.1490 0.0583 0.0627 0.0337 0.0180 0.0141
45 0.1487 0.0538 0.0562 0.0309 0.0166 0.0141

Years of Service

Male Miscellaneous Employees: Sum of Vested Terminated & Refund 
Rates From CalPERS Experience Study Report Issued November 2021

Attained
Age 0 3 5 10 15 20
15 0.1944 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
20 0.1944 0.1085 0.1074 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
25 0.1899 0.1085 0.1074 0.0502 0.0000 0.0000
30 0.1824 0.0977 0.1041 0.0502 0.0252 0.0000
35 0.1749 0.0869 0.0925 0.0491 0.0252 0.0175
40 0.1731 0.0777 0.0809 0.0446 0.0252 0.0175
45 0.1713 0.0710 0.0730 0.0401 0.0213 0.0175

Years of Service

Female Miscellaneous Employees: Sum of Vested Terminated & Refund 
Rates From CalPERS Experience Study Report Issued November 2021

99



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
35 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Service Retirement Rates    

   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Disability Retirement Rates None assumed, due to the small size of the employee group and 

low likelihood of occurrence.   
 

Software and Models Used in the Valuation 

ProVal - MacLeod Watts utilizes ProVal, a licensed actuarial valuation software product from 
Winklevoss Technologies (WinTech) to project future retiree benefit payments and develop the OPEB 
liabilities presented in this report. ProVal is widely used by the actuarial community.  We review results 
at the plan level and for individual sample lives and find them to be reasonable and consistent with the 
results we expect. We are not aware of any material inconsistencies or limitations in the software that 
would affect this actuarial valuation. 

Age-based premiums model – developed internally and reviewed by an external consultant at the time 
it was developed. See discussion on Development of Age-Related Medical Premiums in Appendices.  

Getzen model – published by the Society of Actuaries; used to derive medical trend assumptions 
described earlier in this section. 
 

Current Years of Service
Age 5 10 15 20 25 30
50 0.0110 0.0160 0.0220 0.0330 0.0340 0.0380
55 0.0450 0.0580 0.0820 0.1380 0.2080 0.2780
60 0.0870 0.0840 0.0960 0.1420 0.1650 0.1980
65 0.1820 0.2010 0.2420 0.2640 0.2930 0.2930
70 0.2270 0.2270 0.2270 0.2270 0.2270 0.2270

75 & over 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000

Miscellaneous Employees: 2.7% at 55 formula 
From CalPERS Experience Study Report Issued November 2021

Current Years of Service
Age 5 10 15 20 25 30
50 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
55 0.0100 0.0190 0.0280 0.0360 0.0610 0.0960
60 0.0310 0.0510 0.0710 0.0910 0.1110 0.1380
65 0.1080 0.1410 0.1730 0.2060 0.2390 0.3000
70 0.1200 0.1560 0.1930 0.2290 0.2650 0.3330

75 & over 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000

Miscellaneous "PEPRA" Employees: 2% at 62 formula 
From CalPERS Experience Study Report Issued November 2021

100



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
36 

Supporting Information 
(Continued) 
 
Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Changes in assumptions or methods since the prior Measurement Date 
 

Demographic Assumptions Updated demographic assumptions from those in the 2019 
CalPERS experience study to those recommended in the CalPERS 
2021 Experience Study report issued November 2021 

 The mortality improvement scale was updated from MacLeod 
Watts Scale 2020 to MacLeod Watts Scale 2022, reflecting 
continued updates in available information (see Appendices). 

Healthcare Trend Updated the base healthcare trend scale from Getzen Model 
2021_b to Getzen Model 2023, as published by the Society of 
Actuaries 

Changes in benefit provisions since the prior Measurement Date 

Maximum Benefit for Executives 
    Hired on/after 9/1/2018 Decreased maximum benefit from 100% of the Kaiser Region 1 

family rate to 90% of the actual single party premium, up to 90% 
of the Kaiser Region 1 single party rate (Basic or Medicare retiree 
rate, as applicable). 
  

101



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
37 

Appendix 1: Important Background Information 
 
General Types of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

Post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) comprise a part of compensation that 
employers offer for services received. The most common OPEB are medical, prescription drug, dental, 
vision, and/or life insurance coverage. Other OPEB may include outside group legal, long-term care, or 
disability benefits outside of a pension plan. OPEB does not generally include COBRA, vacation, sick 
leave (unless converted to defined benefit OPEB), or other direct retiree payments. 
 
A direct employer payment toward the cost of OPEB benefits is referred to as an “explicit subsidy”. In 
addition, if claims experience of employees and retirees are pooled when determining premiums, 
retiree premiums are based on a pool of members which, on average, are younger and healthier. For 
certain types of coverage such as medical insurance, this results in an “implicit subsidy” of retiree 
premiums by active employee premiums since the retiree premiums are lower than they would have 
been if retirees were insured separately. GASB 75 and Actuarial Standards of Practice generally require 
that an implicit subsidy of retiree premium rates be valued as an OPEB liability.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This chart shows the sources of funds needed to cover expected medical claims for pre-Medicare retirees. The 
portion of the premium paid by the Agency does not impact the amount of the implicit subsidy. 
 

Valuation Process 

The valuation was based on employee census data and benefits provided by C/CAG. A summary of the 
employee data is provided in Section 1 and a summary of the benefits provided under the Plan is 
provided in Section 2. While individual employee records have been reviewed to verify that they are 
reasonable in various respects, the data has not been audited and we have otherwise relied on C/CAG 
as to its accuracy. The valuation was also based on the actuarial methods and assumptions described 
in Section 3.  
 
In developing the projected benefit values and liabilities, we first determine an expected premium or 
benefit stream over the employee’s future retirement. Benefits may include both direct employer 
payments (explicit subsidies) and/or an implicit subsidy, arising when retiree premiums are expected 
to be subsidized by active employee premiums. The projected benefit streams reflect assumed trends 
in the cost of those benefits and assumptions as to the expected date(s) when benefits will end. We 
then apply assumptions regarding: 

 The probability that each individual employee will or will not continue in service to receive 
benefits. 

 The probability of when such retirement will occur for each retiree, based on current age, 
service and employee type; and 
 

Expected retiree claims

Premium charged for retiree coverage
Covered by higher 
active premiums

Retiree portion of premium
Agency portion of premium 

Explicit subsidy
Implicit subsidy

102



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
38 

 

Important Background Information 
(Continued) 
 

 The likelihood that future retirees will or will not elect retiree coverage (and benefits) for 
themselves and/or their dependents. 

 
We then calculate a present value of these benefits by discounting the value of each future expected 
benefit payment, multiplied by the assumed expectation that it will be paid, back to the valuation date 
using the discount rate. These benefit projections and liabilities have a very long time horizon. The final 
payments for currently active employees may not be made for many decades. 
 
The resulting present value for each employee is allocated as a level percent of payroll each year over 
the employee’s career using the entry age normal cost method and the amounts for each individual are 
then summed to get the results for the entire plan. This creates a cost expected to increase each year 
as payroll increases. Amounts attributed to prior fiscal years form the “Total OPEB Liability”. The OPEB 
cost allocated for active employees in the current year is referred to as “Service Cost”.  
 
Where contributions have been made to an irrevocable OPEB trust, the accumulated value of trust 
assets (“Fiduciary Net Position”) is applied to offset the “Total OPEB Liability”, resulting in the “Net 
OPEB Liability”. If a plan is not being funded, then the Net OPEB Liability is equal to the Total OPEB 
Liability.  
 
It is important to remember that an actuarial valuation is, by its nature, a projection of one possible 
future outcome based on many assumptions. To the extent that actual experience is not what we 
assumed, future results will differ. Some possible sources of future differences may include: 

• A significant change in the number of covered or eligible plan members 
• A significant increase or decrease in the future premium rates 
• A change in the subsidy provided by the Agency toward retiree premiums 
• Longer life expectancies of retirees 
• Significant changes in estimated retiree healthcare claims by age, relative to healthcare claims 

for active employees and their dependents 
• Higher or lower returns on plan assets or contribution levels other than were assumed, and/or 
• Changes in the discount rate used to value the OPEB liability 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

103



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
39 

Important Background Information 
(Continued) 
 
Requirements of GASB 75 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement 
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and disclosure of OPEB expense and related 
liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial 
reports of state and local governmental employers. 
 
Important Dates 

GASB 75 requires that the information used for financial reporting falls within prescribed timeframes. 
Actuarial valuations of the total OPEB liability are generally required at least every two years. If a 
valuation is not performed as of the Measurement Date, then liabilities are required to be based on roll 
forward procedures from a prior valuation performed no more than 30 months and 1 day prior to  
the most recent year-end. In addition, the net OPEB liability is required to be measured as of a date no 
earlier than the end of the prior fiscal year (the “Measurement Date”). 
 
Recognition of Plan Changes and Gains and Losses 

Under GASB 75, gains and losses related to changes in Total OPEB Liability and Fiduciary Net Position 
are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time.  
 

• Timing of recognition: Changes in the Total OPEB Liability relating to changes in plan benefits 
are recognized immediately (fully expensed) in the year in which the change occurs. Gains and 
Losses are amortized, with the applicable period based on the type of gain or loss. The first 
amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 

 
• Deferred recognition periods: These periods differ depending on the source of the gain or loss. 

Difference between projected  
and actual trust earnings:  5 year straight-line recognition 

All other amounts:  Straight-line recognition over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that 
are provided with benefits, determined as of the 
beginning of the Measurement Period. In determining 
the EARSL, all active, retired and inactive (vested) 
members are counted, with the latter two groups having 
0 remaining service years. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

104



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
40 

 
Important Background Information 
(Continued) 
 
Implicit Subsidy Plan Contributions 

An implicit subsidy occurs when estimated retiree claims exceed the premiums charged for retiree 
coverage. When this occurs, we expect part of the premiums paid for active employees to cover a 
portion of retiree claims. This transfer represents the current year’s “implicit subsidy”. Because GASB 75 
treats payments to an irrevocable trust or directly to the insurer as employer contributions, each year’s 
implicit subsidy is treated as a contribution toward the payment of retiree benefits. 
 
The following hypothetical example illustrates this treatment: 
 

 
 

The example above shows that total payments toward active and retired employee healthcare 
premiums is the same, but for accounting purposes part of the total is shifted from actives to retirees.   
This shifted amount is recognized as an OPEB contribution and reduces the current year’s premium 
expense for active employees. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
41 

 
 
Important Background Information 
(Concluded) 
 
Discount Rate 

When the financing of OPEB liabilities is on a pay-as-you-go basis, GASB 75 requires that the discount 
rate used for valuing liabilities be based on the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general 
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher (or equivalent quality on another 
rating scale). When a plan sponsor makes regular, sufficient contributions to a trust in order to prefund 
the OPEB liabilities, GASB 75 allows use of a rate up to the expected rate of return of the trust. 
Therefore, prefunding has an advantage of potentially being able to report overall lower liabilities due 
to future expected benefits being discounted at a higher rate.  
 

Actuarial Funding Method and Assumptions 

The “ultimate real cost” of an employee benefit plan is the value of all benefits and other expenses of 
the plan over its lifetime. These expenditures are dependent only on the terms of the plan and the 
administrative arrangements adopted, and as such are not affected by the actuarial funding method.  
 
The actuarial funding method attempts to spread recognition of these expected costs on a level basis 
over the life of the plan, and as such sets the “incidence of cost”. GASB 75 specifically requires that the 
actuarial present value of projected benefit payments be attributed to periods of employee service 
using the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method, with each period’s service cost determined as a level 
percentage of pay.  
 
The results of this report may not be appropriate for other purposes, where other assumptions, 
methodology and/or actuarial standards of practice may be required or more suitable.   

106



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
42 

Appendix 2: MacLeod Watts Age Rating Methodology 
 

Both accounting standards (e.g., GASB 75) and actuarial standards (e.g., ASOP 6) require that expected 
retiree claims, not just premiums paid, be reflected in most situations where an actuary is calculating 
retiree healthcare liabilities. Unfortunately, the actuary is often required to perform these calculations 
without any underlying claims information. In most situations, the information is not available, but even 
when available, the information may not be credible due to the size of the group being considered. 
 
Actuaries have developed methodologies to approximate healthcare claims from the premiums being 
paid by the plan sponsor. Any methodology requires adopting certain assumptions and using general 
studies of healthcare costs as substitutes when there is a lack of credible claims information for the 
specific plan being reviewed.  
 
Premiums paid by sponsors are often uniform for all employee and retiree ages and genders, with a 
drop in premiums for those participants who are Medicare-eligible. While the total premiums are 
expected to pay for the total claims for the insured group, on average, the premiums charged would 
not be sufficient to pay for the claims of older insureds and would be expected to exceed the expected 
claims of younger insureds. An age-rating methodology takes the typically uniform premiums paid by 
plan sponsors and spreads the total premium dollars to each age and gender intended to better 
approximate what the insurer might be expecting in actual claims costs at each age and gender. 
 
The process of translating premiums into expected claims by age and gender generally follows the steps 
below.  

1. Obtain or Develop Relative Medical Claims Costs by Age, Gender, or other categories that are 
deemed significant. For example, a claims cost curve might show that, if a 50 year old male has $1 
in claims, then on average a 50 year old female has claims of $1.25, a 30 year male has claims of 
$0.40, and an 8 year old female has claims of $0.20. The claims cost curve provides such relative 
costs for each age, gender, or any other significant factor the curve might have been developed to 
reflect. Section 3 provides the source of information used to develop such a curve and shows sample 
relative claims costs developed for the plan under consideration.  

2. Obtain a census of participants, their chosen medical coverage, and the premium charged for their 
coverage. An attempt is made to find the group of participants that the insurer considered in setting 
the premiums they charge for coverage. That group includes the participant and any covered 
spouses and children. When information about dependents is unavailable, assumptions must be 
made about spouse age and the number and age of children represented in the population. These 
assumptions are provided in Section 3.  

3. Spread the total premium paid by the group to each covered participant or dependent based on 
expected claims. The medical claims cost curve is used to spread the total premium dollars paid by 
the group to each participant reflecting their age, gender, or other relevant category. After this step, 
the actuary has a schedule of expected claims costs for each age and gender for the current 
premium year. It is these claims costs that are projected into the future by medical cost inflation 
assumptions when valuing expected future retiree claims. 

 
The methodology described above is dependent on the data and methodologies used in whatever study 
might be used to develop claims cost curves for any given plan sponsor. These methodologies and 
assumptions can be found in the referenced paper cited as a source in the valuation report.  

107



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
43 

Appendix 3: MacLeod Watts Mortality Projection Methodology 
 

Actuarial standards of practice (e.g., ASOP 35, Selection of Demographic and Other Noneconomic 
Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations, and ASOP 6, Measuring Retiree Group Benefits 
Obligations) indicate that the actuary should reflect the effect of mortality improvement (i.e., longer 
life expectancies in the future), both before and after the measurement date. The development of 
credible mortality improvement rates requires the analysis of large quantities of data over long periods 
of time. Because it would be extremely difficult for an individual actuary or firm to acquire and process 
such extensive amounts of data, actuaries typically rely on large studies published periodically by 
organizations such as the Society of Actuaries or Social Security Administration.  
 
As noted in a recent actuarial study on mortality improvement, key principles in developing a credible 
mortality improvement model would include the following:  

(1) Short-term mortality improvement rates should be based on recent experience.  
(2) Long-term mortality improvement rates should be based on expert opinion.  
(3) Short-term mortality improvement rates should blend smoothly into the assumed long-term 
rates over an appropriate transition period. 

 
The MacLeod Watts Scale 2022 was developed from a blending of data and methodologies found in 
two published sources: (1) the Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2021 Report, 
published in October 2021 and (2) the demographic assumptions used in the 2021 Annual Report of 
the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal Disability Insurance 
Trust Funds, published August 2021. 
  
MacLeod Watts Scale 2022 is a two-dimensional mortality improvement scale reflecting both age and 
year of mortality improvement.  The underlying base scale is Scale MP-2021 which has two segments – 
(1) historical improvement rates for the period 1951-2017 and (2) an estimate of future mortality 
improvement for years 2018-2020 using the Scale MP-2021 methodology but utilizing the assumptions 
used in generating Scale MP-2015.  The MacLeod Watts scale then transitions from the 2020 
improvement rate to the Social Security Administration (SSA) Intermediate Scale linearly over the 10-
year period 2021-2030.  After this transition period, the MacLeod Watts Scale uses the constant 
mortality improvement rate from the SSA Intermediate Scale from 2030-2044. The SSA’s Intermediate 
Scale has a final step in 2045 which is reflected in the MacLeod Watts scale for years 2045 and 
thereafter.  Over the ages 95 to 117, the age 95 improvement rate is graded to zero. 
 
Scale MP-2021 can be found at the SOA website and the projection scales used in the 2021 Social 
Security Administrations Trustees Report at the Social Security Administration website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

108



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
44 

Glossary 
 

Actuarial Funding Method – A procedure which calculates the actuarial present value of plan benefits 
and expenses, and allocates these expenses to time periods, typically as a normal cost and an actuarial 
accrued liability 
 

Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits (APVPB) – The amount presently required to fund all 
projected plan benefits in the future. This value is determined by discounting the future payments by 
an appropriate interest rate and the probability of nonpayment.  
 

CalPERS – Many state governments maintain a public employee retirement system; CalPERS is the 
California program, covering all eligible state government employees as well as other employees of 
other governments within California who have elected to join the system 
 

Defined Benefit (DB) – A pension or OPEB plan which defines the monthly income or other benefit 
which the plan member receives at or after separation from employment 
 

Deferred Contributions – When an employer makes contributions after the measurement date and 
prior to the fiscal year end, recognition of these contributions is deferred to a subsequent accounting 
period by creating a deferred resource.  We refer to these contributions as Deferred Contributions. 
 

Defined Contribution (DC) – A pension or OPEB plan which establishes an individual account for each 
member and specifies how contributions to each active member’s account are determined and the 
terms of distribution of the account after separation from employment 
 

Discount Rate – Interest rate used to discount future potential benefit payments to the valuation date. 
Under GASB 75, if a plan is prefunded, then the discount rate is equal to the expected trust return. If a 
plan is not prefunded (pay-as-you-go), then the rate of return is based on a yield or index rate for 20-
year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.  
 

Expected Average Remaining Service Lifetime (EARSL) – Average of the expected remaining service lives 
of all employees that are provided with benefits through the OPEB plan (active employees and inactive 
employees), beginning in the current period 
 

Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method – An actuarial funding method where, for each individual, the actuarial 
present value of benefits is levelly spread over the individual’s projected earnings or service from entry 
age to the last age at which benefits can be paid 
 

Explicit Subsidy – The projected dollar value of future retiree healthcare costs expected to be paid 
directly by the Employer, e.g., the Employer’s payment of all or a portion of the monthly retiree 
premium billed by the insurer for the retiree’s coverage 
 

Fiduciary Net Position –The value of trust assets used to offset the Total OPEB Liability to determine 
the Net OPEB Liability. 
 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) – A private, not-for-profit organization which 
develops generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for U.S. state and local governments. 
 

Health Care Trend – The assumed rate(s) of increase in future dollar values of premiums or healthcare 
claims, attributable to increases in the cost of healthcare; contributing factors include medical inflation, 
frequency or extent of utilization of services and technological developments.  
 
 

109



Other Post-Employment Benefit Program of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

June 30, 2023, Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

  
45 

 
Glossary  
(Continued)  
 
Implicit Subsidy – The projected difference between future retiree claims and the premiums to be 
charged for retiree coverage; this difference results when the claims experience of active and retired 
employees are pooled together and a ‘blended’ group premium rate is charged for both actives and 
retirees; a portion of the active employee premiums subsidizes the retiree premiums.  
 

Net OPEB Liability (NOL) – The liability to employees for benefits provided through a defined benefit 
OPEB. Only assets administered through a trust that meet certain criteria may be used to reduce the 
Total OPEB Liability. 
 

Net Position – The Impact on Statement of Net Position is the Net OPEB Liability adjusted for deferred 
resource items 
 

OPEB Expense – The OPEB expense reported in the Agency’s financial statement. OPEB expense is the 
annual cost of the plan recognized in the financial statements. 
 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) – Post-employment benefits other than pension benefits, 
most commonly healthcare benefits but also including life insurance if provided separately from a 
pension plan 
 

Pay-As-You-Go (PAYGO) – Contributions to the plan are made at about the same time and in about the 
same amount as benefit payments and expenses coming due 
 

PEMHCA – The Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act, established by the California 
legislature in 1961, provides community-rated medical benefits to participating public employers. 
Among its extensive regulations are the requirements that a contracting Agency contribute toward 
medical insurance premiums for retired annuitants and that a contracting Agency file a resolution, 
adopted by its governing body, with the CalPERS Board establishing any new contribution. 
 

Plan Assets – The value of cash and investments considered as ‘belonging’ to the plan and permitted to 
be used to offset the AAL for valuation purposes. To be considered a plan asset, GASB 75 requires (a) 
contributions to the OPEB plan be irrevocable, (b) OPEB assets to dedicated to providing OPEB benefit 
to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms of the plan, and (c) plan assets be legally 
protected from creditors, the OPEB plan administrator and the plan members. 
 

Public Agency Miscellaneous (PAM) – Non-safety public employees. 
 

Select and Ultimate – Actuarial assumptions which contemplate rates which differ by year initially (the 
select period) and then stabilize at a constant long-term rate (the ultimate rate) 
 

Service Cost – Total dollar value of benefits expected to be earned by plan members in the current year, 
as assigned by the actuarial funding method; also called normal cost 
 

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) – Total dollars required to fund all plan benefits attributable to service 
rendered as of the valuation date for current plan members and vested prior plan members; a subset 
of “Actuarial Present Value” 
 

Vesting – As defined by the plan, requirements which when met make a plan benefit nonforfeitable on 
separation of service before retirement eligibility  

110



  

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To: C/CAG Finance Committee  
 
From: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Receive a presentation on the C/CAG Strategic Plan development process and participate 

in a discussion on the proposed Agency mission, vision, core values, goals, objectives, and 
performance measures 

 
(For further information or response to questions, contact Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org) 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the Finance Committee receive a presentation on the C/CAG Strategic Plan development process and 
participate in a discussion on the proposed Agency mission, vision, core values, goals, objectives, and 
performance measures. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total not to exceed amount for the development of C/CAG’s first strategic plan is $130,623. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
The adopted Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget includes funding for an agency strategic plan.  This project 
will be funded with a combination of general operation funds, Congestion Relief Program funds, and 
contributions from the Stormwater and Energy programs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
With the successful completion of the Agency's Equity Assessment and Framework, and the significant 
policy and regulatory changes effecting the transportation, energy and stormwater fields, C/CAG started 
the process to develop its first Strategic Plan to cover the next three to five years.  Through a competitive 
procurement process, MIG Inc. (MIG) was selected to perform this work.   
 
The Consultant will provide information on the strategic plan development process, and facilitate a 
discussion on the proposed mission, vision, core values, goals, objectives, and performance measures.   
 
Attachment 1 showcases the draft Strategic Plan framework.  
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
This item improves the administration/operations of C/CAG.  C/CAG is currently implementing its 

ITEM 8 

111



Equity Assessment.  The strategic planning process may identify additional desired equity outcomes or 
strategies.   
 
ATTACHMENT 

1. Draft C/CAG Strategic Plan Framework 

112



 

 

  

ATTACHMENT 1

113



 

2 

MISSION 

C/CAG provides a collaborative forum for all jurisdictions in San Mateo County to pursue our shared 
goals for an equitable, accessible, and robust multi-modal transportation network and a climate 
resilient future. 

 

VISION 

C/CAG is a leader in innovative and sustainable mobility, climate-resilient infrastructure, clean energy, 
and balanced land use, while achieving equitable outcomes and improved quality of life for San Mateo 
County’s diverse communities. 

 

CORE VALUES 

● Collaboration – We work together to improve quality of life in San Mateo County. 

● Transparency – We are open and accessible in all our communications and actions. 

● Equity – We take concrete steps to address the needs of underserved communities. 

● Sustainability – We commit to meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs. 

● Innovation – We are driven by continuous improvement. 

 

GOALS 

1. Transportation – Plan, fund, implement, and maintain a robust multimodal transportation system 
that is safe, connected, equitable, accessible, and environmentally sustainable. 

2. Stormwater Management – Manage stormwater as a resource, meet Regional Stormwater Permit 
requirements, and reduce climate risk through promotion of green infrastructure and a watershed 
management approach. 

3. Energy, Environment, and Climate – Enhance community resilience to climate change throughout 
San Mateo County. 

4. Land Use and Airport Compatibility – Meet the County’s housing and economic development 
goals while addressing airport safety impacts. 

5. Finance and Administration – Secure adequate funding and maintain effective organizational 
systems to support C/CAG’s mission. 

  

114



 

3 

GOAL 1 – TRANSPORTATION 

Plan, fund, implement, and maintain a robust multimodal transportation system that is safe, 
connected, equitable, accessible, and environmentally sustainable. 

 

GOAL 1 ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES 

● Planning 

○ Support regional transportation planning efforts. 

○ Coordinate with the San Mateo County Office of Education on Safe Routes to Schools 
planning and activities. 

● Operations 

○ Manage countywide Transportation Demand Management policy. 

○ Oversee the Smart Corridor program and its ongoing maintenance activities. 

○ Manage the San Mateo County Express Lane Program in partnership with the San Mateo 
County Transportation Authority. 

○ Implement asset management tools and practices to extend asset lifespan and minimize 
lifecycle costs. 

○ Support implementation of Local Roadway Safety Plan (LRSP) priority countermeasures for 

every jurisdiction. 

● Funding 

○ Obtain and distribute regional, state, and federal funding for C/CAG priority programs and 
projects. 

○ Assist local jurisdictions with the delivery and administration of regional, state, and federally 
funded projects. 

○ Provide planning and capital funding for active transportation and sustainable streets 
projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

115



 

4 

GOAL 1 – SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES 

Short Term (0 - 2 years) 

1.1 Support the MTC RTP Plan Bay Area 2050 Update (date TBD). 
1.2 Collaborate with the TA to craft an Automated Vehicle Strategic Plan (2024). 
1.3 Facilitate the Transportation Development Act Article 3 FY24-25 Call for Projects (date TBD). 
1.4 Complete Congestion Management Plan Update (2025 and biannually thereafter). 
1.5 Complete County Transportation Plan Update, including setting targets to increase bicycle and 

pedestrian mode shares (by 2026). 
1.6 Construct 92/101 Area Improvements project (2026).  
1.7 Complete construction of a Smart Corridor system in SSF, Brisbane, Daly City, and Colma (by 

2027). 
1.8 Complete biannual STIP Programing (2026 and biannually thereafter).  
1.9 Conduct a call for project for Cycle 7of Lifeline Transportation Funds (2024 and biannually 

thereafter). 
1.10 Conduct a call for project for the Measure M Countywide Transportation Innovative Grant 

(2025 and every 3 years thereafter). 
1.11 Participate in guideline development for One Bay Area Grant Cycle 4 process (date TBD).  
1.12 Complete the preliminary design and receive environmental clearance for a managed lane on 

US 101 from I-380 to County Line with San Francisco (2025).  
1.13 Complete San Mateo Countywide Local Roadway Safety Plan (2025 and every 5 years 

thereafter). 
1.14 Update the San Bruno/South San Francisco Community Based Transportation Plan (by 2026). 

Medium Term (2 - 5 years) 

1.15 Update the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian plan (complete by 2027). 
1.16 Develop a Measure M Implementation Plan that covers FY26/27 to FY30/31 (complete by 

2027). 
1.17 Revise the Congestion Relief Program Strategic Plan (complete by 2027). 
1.18 Develop a Countywide Adaptive Traffic Signal Synchronization Plan (2027). 
1.19 Implement a successful micro-mobility (bikeshare/scooter share) pilot program in the 

recommended geographic areas, leading to a countywide program (2025). 
1.20 Strengthen and update County Transportation Demand Management policy, including 

supporting strategies for the Coastside (date TBD). 
1.21 Plan and design 3.7 miles of buffered bike lanes along El Camino Real in San Bruno and Millbrae 

(date TBD). 
1.22 Continue planning and design of the US 101/SR92 Interchange Direct Connector Project and 

SM101 Managed Lanes North of I-380 project (2028). 
1.23 Leverage Smart Corridor infrastructure to increase the utilization for Transit Signal 

Prioritization, Emergency Vehicle Preemption, adaptive traffic signal synchronization 
technologies (date TBD). 

1.24 Continue planning and design of the US 101/SR92 Interchange Direct Connector Project and 
SM101 Managed Lanes North of I-380 project (2028). 

Long Term (5+ years) 

1.25 Construct the selected project alternative for US 101/SR92 Interchange Direct Connector 
Project and SM101 Managed Lanes North of I-380 project (date TBD).  

116



 

5 

 

GOAL 1 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

● Mode shift (proportion of trips made by transit, shuttles, high occupancy vehicles, biking, and 
walking). 

● Miles of new/upgraded bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 
● Implementation of the countywide CMP TDM policy. 
● Reduction of traffic-related injuries and fatalities. 
● Percent of grant funds allocated to Equity Priority Communities/Equity Focus Areas. 

  

117



 

6 

GOAL 2 – STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

Manage stormwater as a resource, meet Regional Stormwater Permit requirements, and reduce 
climate risk through promotion of green infrastructure and an integrated watershed management 
approach. 

 

GOAL 2 – ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES 

● Planning 

○ Adapt our street network to better address rainfall and heat related climate change impacts. 

○ Plan and implement multi-benefit green infrastructure at the parcel, street, and regional 
scales under a “OneWatershed” framework. 

● Operations 

○ Manage Regional Stormwater Permit for all permittees (22) in San Mateo County, including 5-
year term contracts with consultants and coordinating annual compliance. 

○ Explore Risk-based Integrated Water Management. 

● Funding 

○ Secure dedicated stormwater funding for water quality compliance and infrastructure 
implementation. 

○ Fund multi-benefit watershed-scale green infrastructure. 

 

GOAL 2 – SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES 

Short Term (0 - 2 years) 

2.1 Explore options to provide operational support to Orange Memorial Park project in South San 
Francisco (2026). 

2.2 Implement the recent $2.4M Federal Earmark for a regional stormwater capture project in San 
Bruno and seek additional funding for regional multi-benefit projects at Red Morton Park in 
Redwood City, and Twin Pines project in Belmont (2026 and ongoing). 

2.3 Clarify roles of C/CAG, One Shoreline, and the Resource Conservation District of San Mateo with 
respect to stormwater management (2025). 

2.4 Establish Pilot Bulk Rain Barrel Rebate program as ongoing program in conjunction with 
BAWSCA (2026). 

Medium Term (2 - 5 years) 

2.5 Complete institutional framework and program components for OneWatershed Climate 
Resilience Infrastructure Program (2029). 

2.6 Identify and initiate design on 3-5 new regional multi benefit OneWatershed projects (2029). 
2.7 Implement the Phase II Green Infrastructure Tracking & Mapping Tool (2029). 
2.8 Invest in green infrastructure at 12 school sites (2029). 
2.9 Obtain sustainable funding for stormwater management at countywide scale (2029). 

118



 

7 

Long Term (5+ years) 

2.10 Implement 5-10 high priority opportunities in Sustainable Streets Master Plan (2030). 
2.11 Establish goals for increasing groundwater recharge through green infrastructure projects 

(2030). 
2.12 Explore opportunities to further advance OneWatershed integration with wastewater and water 

supply systems (date TBD). 
2.13 Develop a fully operational OneWatershed Climate Resilience Infrastructure Program with 

funding and institutional structures (date TBD). 

 

GOAL 2 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

• Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit Compliance. 

• Volume of stormwater captured for beneficial use.  

• Completion of regional multi benefit OneWatershed projects. 

• Initiation of new OneWatershed projects.  

• Percentage of San Mateo County jurisdictions with completed stormwater plans. 

  

119



 

8 

GOAL 3 – ENERGY, ENVIRONMENT, AND CLIMATE 

Enhance community resilience to climate change throughout San Mateo County. 

 

GOAL 3 – ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES 

● Planning 

○ Support partner organization efforts to improve climate resiliency and climate change 
impacts. 

○ Modernize and best utilize the energy grid in the building and transportation electrification 
transition. 

○ Support streamlining of permitting and site upgrade processes at agencies, including utilities. 

○ Support State-level efforts to transition away from fossil fuels. 

○ Support Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency planning efforts to conserve   
sources of potable water. 

○ Support cities’ use of Regionally Integrated Climate Action Planning Suite (RICAPS) program 
resources and technical assistance. 

○ Initiate carbon neutrality planning. 

○ Integrate multiple mitigation and adaptation planning approaches where feasible. 

○ Explore alternative energy sources such as green hydrogen. 

● Operations 

○ Promote conservation and expansion of potable water resources through conservation and 
use of recycled water. 

○ Promote the installation of battery charging infrastructure. 

○ Provide access to energy efficiency and building and transportation electrification programs 
for government, residents, and businesses. 

○ Assist with local efforts to convert the public fleet to zero emission vehicles. 

● Funding 

○ Maintain, extend, or expand funding of the C/CAG - PG&E Local Government Partnership. 

○ Seek additional funding for RICAPS and Countywide Carbon Neutrality interim goal planning 
and implementation. 

○ Partner with organizations with available funding for efforts. 

○ Secure ongoing funding. 

  

120



 

9 

GOAL 3 – SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES 

Short Term (0 - 2 years) 

3.1 Collaborate with and clarify roles of C/CAG with respect to the roles performed by other 
agencies (2026 and ongoing). 

3.2 Implement the San Mateo County Energy Watch program and secure funding for next program 
cycle (January 2026). 

3.3 Continue development for Carbon Neutrality Planning (2026). 
3.4 Complete VMT/GHG Model Mitigation Program project (2025). 

Medium Term (2 - 5 years) 

3.5 Assist local jurisdictions in developing and implementing Climate Action or Carbon Neutrality 
Plans through the Regional Climate Action Planning Suite program (date TBD). 

3.6 Secure funding to implement the Laundry to Landscape Program (date TBD). 
3.7 Implement the Carbon Neutrality Plan (date TBD). 
3.8 Explore opportunities to increase tree canopy (date TBD). 
3.9 Support and track implementation of VMT/GHG-reducing projects or programs (date TBD). 

Long Term (5+ years) 

3.10 Support cities to meet State Carbon Neutrality goals (date TBD).  
3.11 Explore opportunities to promote microgrids to build readiness for the future (date TBD). 

 

GOAL 3 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

● Completion and implementation of a Countywide Carbon Neutrality Plan. 
● Reduction of greenhouse emissions and/or vehicle miles traveled. 
● Number of building energy efficiency projects referred to and completed by third-party 

contractors. 

● Level of carbon sequestration. 

  

121



 

10 

 

GOAL 4 – LAND USE AND AIRPORT COMPATIBILITY 

Meet the County’s housing and economic development goals while addressing airport safety impacts.  

 

GOAL 4 – ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES 

● Planning 

○ Assist member jurisdictions with meeting their Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
requirements. 

○ Facilitate compliance with MTC’s Transit Oriented Communities requirements. 

○ Manage Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans. 

● Operations 

○ Facilitate Airport Land Use Commission meetings. 

○ Manage Airport Land Use Commission project review. 

● Funding  

○ Continue to support 21-Elements effort.    

○ Advocate and secure funding for updating Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans. 

○ Advocate for State and Regional funding to assist local jurisdictions with Regional Housing 
Needs Allocations and meeting the MTC’s Transit Oriented Communities requirements. 

 

GOAL 4 – SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES 

Short Term (0 - 2 years) 

4.1 Address minor amendments in the San Carlos the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) 
with respect to childcare facilities in Zone 6 (date TBD). 

4.2 Support cities with Transit-Oriented Communities compliance (date TBD). 
4.3 Support cities with securing HCD Pro Housing Designation (date TBD). 

Medium Term (2 - 5 years) 

4.4 Update ALUCPs within three years of final Caltrans Aviation Handbook update (date TBD). 
4.5 Support cities with their Housing Elements (date TBD). 

Long Term (5+ years) 

 

GOAL 4 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

● Housing element certification. 
● Number of member agencies that have secured HCD’s Pro Housing determination. 

122



 

11 

GOAL 5 – FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Secure adequate funding and maintain effective organizational systems to support C/CAG’s mission. 

 

GOAL 5 – ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES 

○ Secure administrative and finance staff support.  

○ Advocate for federal, state, and regional funding for San Mateo County. 

○ Track and influence State and Regional legislation that may impact C/CAG goals. 

○ Facilitate Board committees. 

○ Increase visibility of C/CAG’s accomplishments and contributions. 

○ Enhance employee training and development. 

 

GOAL 5 – SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES 

Short Term (0 - 2 years) 

5.1 Implement financial planning and forecasting processes to support long-term sustainability 
(2025). 

5.2 Create an online data dashboard to showcase C/CAG’s accomplishments (2025). 
5.3 Develop and implement an onboarding process for new staff and Board members (by 2025). 
5.4 Create and maintain committee guidebook that includes procedures, work plans, and key 

documents (date TBD). 
5.5 Create and implement a community outreach public awareness strategy (2026). 
5.6 Update C/CAG website and include new performance tracking capabilities (2026). 

Medium Term (2 - 5 years) 

5.1 Substantially complete implementation of Equity Action Plan and begin update of it (2027). 
5.2 Streamline internal processes, such as contract management and grant compliance (date TBD). 

Long Term (5+ years) 

5.3 Secure a sustaining, dedicated funding source for C/CAG (date TBD). 

 

GOAL 5 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

● Achievement of one or more C/CAG dedicated funding source(s). 
● Completion and implementation of the Equity Action Plan. 

● Receipt of federal funding. 

 

123



 
 

ITEM 9 
 

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: May 22, 2024 
 
To: C/CAG Finance Committee 
 
From: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Discussion on changing the Committee meeting time.  
 
    (For further information contact Kim Wever at kwever@smcgov.org) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION  

That the C/CAG Finance Committee discuss the Committee meeting time and may approve a time 
change for the remaining 2024 calendar.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

None 

BACKGROUND 

At the November 29, 2023 Finance Committee meeting, the Committee approved the 2024 calendar as 
follow:   

Review Quarter Meeting Date (12:00 P.M. Noon) 
October-December 2023 Wednesday, February 14, 2024 
Draft Budget Study Session Wednesday, April 24, 20241

January-March 2024 Wednesday, May 22, 2024 
April-June 2024 Wednesday, August 21, 2024 
July- September 2024 Wednesday, December 4, 2024

 
At the April 24, 2024 Finance Committee meeting, the Committee expressed interest in discussing a 
possible change to the meeting time and directed staff to explore other time slots. Staff is recommending 
changing the meeting start time from 12:00 P.M. Noon to 9:00 A.M to create more flexibility for current 
and future Finance Committee members’ schedule. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

None 

124


	3 Finance 04-24-24 Minutes
	4 _SR Investment Statements
	4 A1 Cash Flows and Statements
	SM County 03-31-24 Statement 03412 CCAG.pdf
	March 2024

	SM County 02-29-23 Statement 03412 CCAG.pdf
	Feb 2024


	4 A2 LAIF Summary
	4 A3 and A4 CoPool Participants and Summary
	4 A5 Market Summary
	5 _SR Investment Reports
	5 A1 Q3 2024-CCAG Quarterly Investment Report
	6 _SR - Draft Final Budget
	6 A1 Estimated Member Fees FY 2024-25
	6 A2 - Consolidated_Budget_Document
	6 A3 - Work Plan
	6 A4 - Equity Assessment
	6 A4_A2 2024 Equity Board Update
	7 _SR OPEB Valuation Report to Finance Committee
	7 A1 CCAG DRAFT 2023 Val Rpt (ADCs & FYE 2024 GASB 75)
	A. Executive Summary
	OPEB Obligations of C/CAG
	OPEB Funding Policy
	Actuarial Assumptions
	Important Dates for GASB 75 in this Report
	Updates Since the Prior Report
	Impact on Statement of Net Position and OPEB Expense for Fiscal Year Ending 2024
	Important Notices

	B. Valuation Process
	C. Valuation Results as of June 30, 2023
	D. Accounting Information (GASB 75)
	Components of Net Position and Expense
	Change in Net Position During the Fiscal Year
	Change in Fiduciary Net Position During the Measurement Period
	Expected Long-term Return on Trust Assets
	Recognition Period for Deferred Resources
	Deferred Resources as of Fiscal Year End and Expected Future Recognition
	Sensitivity of Liabilities to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
	Schedule of Changes in C/CAG’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
	Schedule of Changes in C/CAG’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
	(concluded)
	Schedule of Contributions
	Detail of Changes to Net Position
	Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
	Detail of C/CAG Contributions to the Plan
	Projected Benefit Payments (15-year projection)
	Sample Journal Entries

	E. Funding Information
	Paying Down the UAAL
	Funding and Prefunding of the Implicit Subsidy

	F.  Certification
	Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions
	Section 2 - Summary of Retiree Benefit Provisions
	Section 3 - Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

	Appendix 1: Important Background Information
	Important Dates
	Recognition of Plan Changes and Gains and Losses

	Appendix 2: MacLeod Watts Age Rating Methodology
	Appendix 3: MacLeod Watts Mortality Projection Methodology

	8 _SR -  Strategic Plan Development
	8 A1 CCAG Strategic Plan Framework_DRAFT 05-09-24
	9 _ SR_Meeting Time



